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Business Overview

Delivering Future-Ready Spaces Responsibly:

Tata Realty a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited, is in the business of
design, development and management of commercial assets and few residential projects.
Your Company serves a large spectrum of customers across premium office spaces, retail
properties, residential hubs and infrastructure assets. As a truly diversified developer of
choice, your Company has a strong presence across the country.

Currently, the Company and its subsidiaries own and operate 7.5 mn. sq. ft. across 5 projects
in 3 cities (which includes 4 office developments (IT/SEZ/Commercial), a Retail asset in
Gurgaon & Hospitality asset in Chennai). The Company has concluded 1.37 mn. sq. ft. of
leasing (New & Renewals) in FY 2023 in the Operational Portfolio.

Intellion is now well established as exclusive office spaces vertical, reimagining the workplace
to deliver Smart, Secure, Sustainable and Social work environments. Our infrastructure
portfolio covers critical projects in different parts of the country, spanning across roads,
ropeways and metro rails.

During the year the Company has Partnered with CPPIB to secure Rs. 3,417 Crore including
1,900 Crore debt raised in Ramanujan Intellion Park via equity dilution and divested certain
portion of its shareholding in the erstwhile SPV's owning to assets i.e. Chennai & Gurgaon
Intellion Edge which resulted in a loss of control and the residual stake was recognised as
investment in joint ventures accounted using equity method.

The Company is also exploring various opportunities in the coming year, which are at various
level of discussion.

Sustainability has always been core tenet of our operations and we are fully committed to
maintaining our leadership position in this critical aspect for our futures. We strive to embody
the TATA values in how we engage with customers, employees and vendor partners. Our
ethos of delivering value with utmost transparency makes us focused on excellence, empathy
and innovation across the customer journey. Phase 1 & Phase 2 of Ramanujan Project has
achieved the EDGE Zero Carbon Certificate and it is 1st EDGE Zero Carbon project in India.
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Sustainability

Leading The Change With Purpose:

Our ESG strategy focuses on achieving business objectives, while ensuring that the needs
of the environment and all stakeholders are taken care of. It encompasses a purpose-driven
leadership approach, rooted in responsible action and sustainable building practices that
ensure collective progress through our 5R sustainability strategy which includes Responsible
value creation governance, Resilient structures, Replenish nature, Reap talent and Respect
lives.

Our 5R sustainability framework coupled with our
comprehensive Environmental, Health and Safety strategy

serves as a blueprint to establish responsible real estate. It
also includes our duty to nurture the planet that grants us
the land and resources for our projects, especially in light
of India’s proactive stance and commitment to achieve net-
zero carbon emissions by 2070 at the COP26 summit in
Glasgow.

We are striving hard to reduce our dependence on fossil fuels as well as to find better, more
effective ways to dispose off and recycle our waste products. Our comprehensive EHS policy
guarantees the safety of all our employees and stakeholders and also empowers individuals
who engage with us as employees, customers, and partners to create enduring value for our
stakeholders who have placed their trust in us.

We endeavour to erect enduring structures that stand the test of time, meticulously crafting
projects that exhibit resilience in the face of climate change. As we forge ahead, the paradigm
surrounding green buildings is rapidly shifting from being discretionary to becoming the
prevailing choice, as we endeavour to balance our requirements that may tax the planet’s
limited natural resources, while keeping the well-being of individuals in mind, and at the same
time, ensuring our financial gains. We see a growing trend among customers who perceive
responsible real estate as a means to rejuvenate and revitalize the planet — a manifestation
of an expanding consciousness that recognizes the need to embrace sustainable lifestyles.




IFC EDGE Zero Carbon Certified Asset

We are deeply committed to sustainability and
responsible business practices. We are fully
committed to the recently proposed Nationally
Determined Contribution (NDC) which seeks to
enhance India’s contributions towards
strengthening of global response to the threat of
climate change. Our ESG startegy can be
summerised as-our commitment at achieving all
our future business growth objectives, while
ensuring that the needs of the environment and all
stakeholders are taken care of. The strategy is
based on five strategic pillars that focus on
conceptualization, execution and management of
our real estate projects. Thirteen focus areas define
our transition pathway to a sustainable future. By
adhering to these principles and focusing on
sustainable development, we aim to created
long-term value for all our stakeholders while
minimizing our impact on environment and
society.
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Responsible Value Chain Governance
¢ Supply Chain Management

® Tenant Engagement

o Community Development

Reap Talent
e Training and Development
e Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Resilient Structures
e Climate Change

¢ Green Building

* Wellness

Respect Lives
¢ Health and Safety Management
¢ Human Rights

Replenish Nature

e Water Positive Assets
e Biodiversity

e Zero Waste to Landfill

Ramanujan Intellion Park was awarded
the IFC EDGE Advanced Certification for
achieving:

>40% energy savings
33% water savings
26% reduction in
embodied energy




Award and Recognition
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Directors Information

MR. SANJAY DUTT
(MD & CEO)

Mr. Sanjay Dutt is the MD & CEO for Tata Realty
& Infrastructure Ltd and Tata Housing
Development Company Ltd. He has been the
key architect in transforming TATA Realty
become a pioneer in Real Estate sector. With a
contagious level of energy and an undying
passion for challenges, Mr. Dutt is responsible
for directing TATA Realty’s business vision and
managing the business operations with the
over-arching strategic planning and execution.

Mr. Dutt holds a Post-Graduate in Marketing &
HR from the International Management
Institute. He is Chairman APREA Asia -
Advocacy Committee, President Elect
NAREDCO Maharashtra and Co-Chairman of
ASSOCHAM and a member of CoreNet Global.

MR. PRABHAKAR PANDA
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

Mr. Prabhakar Panda is M.A in political science
from Utkal University, Bhubaneswar. He has
completed Postgraduate diploma in Human
Resources Management/MBA from Osmania
University. He also has a Ph. D in Economics
(Political Governance of Public Funds) from
Delhi University.

Mr. Prabhakar Panda was also associated as
Director with Hitech-Medical College and
Hospital, Bhubaneswar for past 15 years. He is
currently involved with selection/recruitment &
organizing and attending seminars and
meetings, bringing up new projects and
research programs and deal with problems
linked with Government and Government
Organizations.

He has also being co-authored to a book
named as “Political Economy” published by
Asish publication house, New Delhi. He has also
received an Award in field of Cultural and
Organizational work from ‘Chinta-O-Chetana’
in 1998.

MR. BANMALI AGRAWALA
(CHAIRMAN)

Mr. Banmali Agrawala is the President,
Infrastructure and Defence & Aerospace at Tata
Sons Private Limited.

An active member of the Confederation of
Indian Industries (ClI), Banmali has held several
official positions within Cll such as Chairman of
the Western Regional Council, and currently is
also a Member of ClI’s National Council.

Banmali is a Mechanical Engineering graduate
from Mangalore University and an alumnus of
the Advanced Management Programme of
Harvard Business School.

MR. ANKUR DALWANI
(DIRECTOR)

Mr. Ankur Dalwani is Senior Vice President,
Group CFO Office at Tata Sons Private Limited.
Mr. Dalwani has more than 25 years of
experience in Corporate Finance & Strategy,
Investment Banking & M&A and Lending roles
across sectors including the real estate sector.
He has worked at leading investment banks -
DSP Merrill Lynch, IDFC Securities & Jefferies
India advising clients on several marquee
transactions. Prior to joining the Tata Group, he
was Business Head for Real Estate Lending at
L&T Finance where he successfully grew the
loan book in a difficult macro environment. By
qualification, he is MBA (Finance) from S.P. Jain
Institute of Management & Research, Mumbai
and Bachelor in Engineering from National
Institute of Technology, Rourkela.

MRS. SANDHYA KUDTARKAR
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar is a Commerce
graduate, qualified Chartered Accountant &
Company Secretary and has worked with
the Tata Group since March 1982. Having
held various positions in the Secretarial
function with Tata Steel, she was the
Company Secretary of Tata Steel from June
1994 till October 2001 when she moved to
the Group Legal Department. She retired
from Tata Services Ltd from the position of
Sr. Vice President - Legal Services in April
2018. She currently holds directorship in
many Companies.

MR. SUDIP MULLICK
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

Mr. Sudip is a Partner in Khaitan & Co. in the
Real Estate and Construction Practice
Group in the Mumbai office. His expertise
amongst others lies in real estate matters,
construction contracts and disputes arising
out of construction contracts and in matters
relating to the hospitality industry. Mr. Sudip
Mullick has often appeared before various
courts and in arbitration proceedings for
developers, contractors, corporate and
institutional clients on disputes pertaining
to real estate, construction contracts and
other commercial contracts. Mr. Sudip
Mullick is an independent Non-Executive
independent director on the Board of many
Companies.




MD & CEO Message

Dear Stakeholders,

| am pleased to share our Annual Stakeholder Report,
encapsulating the narrative of Tata Realty in FY 2023 -
a year characterized by resilience, transformation, and
unprecedented growth. The Indian real estate sector
is witnessing an uptick, propelled by urbanization,
improved affordability, evolving consumer aspirations
and favourable market sentiment.

Anticipated to reach a market size of $1 trillion by
2030, we are perfectly positioned to capitalize on
this wave of growth. As the sector shows promising
growth, our tenants and consumers continue to place
their confidence in us. Coupled with our solid balance
sheet and commitment to creating high-quality, safe,
and sustainable ecosystems, we are well-positioned
for a strong FY 2024.

Unprecedented Financial Performance

Despite a global atmosphere of volatility, Tata Realty
demonstrated remarkable resilience, resulting in one
of our strongest performances to date. We were
privileged to serve customers across our commercial, residential and retail segments,
reflecting growth in all areas. In FY 2023, we recorded a growth of 6% on revenue while
also emphasizing on enhancing free cash flows from partial stake sale in few subsidiaries,
which allowed us to markedly reduce debt at holdco level.

Residential Real Estate

Despite the turbulent times, our teams worked tirelessly to meet our commitments and
exceed our customers’ expectations. We accomplished robust growth across all segments,
serving more than 23000 consumers through our residential properties. | am proud to
report that our Company has exhibited a high level of resilience, leading to one of the
strongest performances in our history. We also placed a stronger emphasis on generating
free cash flow, which has allowed us to significantly reduce our debt.

Commercial Real Estate

This year, we have amplified our presence in the commercial real estate sector, with a 1.37
million sqg ft area leased (including renewals) to various corporate entities across cities. We
have a portfolio of 7.5 million square feet while 11 million square feet is under various stages
of design and development from our existing land bank.

A remarkable achievement was the launch of Intellion Park, Navi Mumbai, being developed
in partnership with our joint venture partners. Intellion Park, located opposite the Ghansoli
station, is one of the fastest-growing suburbs in Navi Mumbai. The project, sprawled across
471 acres, boasts a development potential of over 9-10 million square feet of leasable area,
promising to be the preferred IT destination for corporates. The project emphasizes health,
wellness and work-life balance with the aim to enhance employee productivity.
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We attained stronger market positioning by:

. Achieving an Annual Gross revenue (including JV) of Rs. 652 Crore and Annual Asset NOI
of Rs. 531 Crore

. Partnered with CPPIB to secure 3417 Crore towards future growth, by sale of partial stake
in few subsidiaries

. Enhanced Leasing/ Building efficiencies to increase Ramanujan IT Park valuation by
500 Crore.

. Our entire Portfolio is Edge Certified which is the largest in India.

. First full year of Operations of Taj Wellington Mews, with average annual occupancy of
62%.

Retail Real Estate

In the retail sector, we have consistently strived to create a seamless and superior experience
for consumers and retailers alike. Our commitment to scaling up operations in this segment is
driven by the need to cater to a rapidly evolving digital consumer base.

Sustainability: Towards a Greener Future

At Tata Realty, our commitment to sustainability remains at the core of our business ethos.
We strive to conduct our business responsibly, with a focus on creating safe and sustainable
ecosystems across our properties. Tata Realty has always endeavored to exceed its ESG goals
and has placed sustainability on high significance.

According to the International Energy Agency (IEA), by 2050, buildings and the construction
sector combined will be responsible for 30% of total global energy consumption and 27%
of total energy sector emissions. As a part of our ESG journey, we’'re committed to the local
community and environment and therefore as responsible real estate developers, plan to
develop green buildings with LEED platinum certification, WELL certification and IFC EDGE
certification.

We are proud to share that Ramanujan Intellion Park has become the first Indian campus to be
recognized with the EDGE Zero Carbon certification by the International Finance Corporation
(IFC).

The certification recognizes the Company’s efforts to construct green commercial buildings
that have negligible impact on the environment. Ramanujan Intellion Park has achieved a
complete reduction of emissions through renewables or carbon off-sets, saving more than
20% on water and embodied energy in materials while attaining over 40% energy savings
on-site.

A Great Place to Work

We are thrilled to be recognized as a Great Place to Work for the second consecutive year.
This recognition validates our efforts to create a supportive, inspiring and rewarding work
environment and cements our position as an employer of choice.

The Changing Real Estate Dynamics

As | conclude, | extend my heartfelt gratitude to our Board members for their continued
guidance, our employees for their unwavering dedication and our stakeholders, for unwavering
support and faith in us. We eagerly look forward to your continued partnership on this exciting
journey.

Yours sincerely,
Sanjay Dutt

MD & CEO
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To the Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited (the “Company” or “TRIL”) along with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023. The consolidated performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries has been referred to wherever required.

Financial Results

Key highlights of standalone and consolidated financial performance for the year ended

March 31, 2023, are summarized as under:
(Rs. in Crores)

FY - 22-23 | FY - 21-22 | FY - 22-23 | FY - 21-22
Revenue 127.46 127.01 864.55 1,324.59
Other income 81.03 283.30| 3,496.16 493.08
Total income 208.49 410.31| 4,360.71 1,817.67
Expenses
Operating expenditure 193.32 142.68 445,31 607.73
Depreciation and amortization 2.28 212 181.00 303.33
expenses
Total Expenses 195.60 144.80 626.31 911.06
Profit before finance cost and tax 12.89 265.51| 3734.40 906.61
Finance cost 162.03 216.96 524.09 688.62
Share of (loss) (net) from - -1 (349.87) (46.70)
Associates and Joint Ventures
Profit before tax (PBT) (149.14) 48.55| 2,860.44 171.29
Tax expense 2.97 (53.79)| (446.65) (88.38)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (146.17) (5.24) | 2,413.79 82.91
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the company 146.17) (5.24) 2,416.27 83.34
Non-Controlling Interest - - (2.48) (0.43)
Opening Balance of retained (826.44) | (831.89)| (1,569.16) | (1,652.50)
earning
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (146.17) (5.24) 2,416.27 83.34
Other comprehensive income / - - - -
(losses)
Total comprehensive income - - - -
Transferred from OCI to Retained 2,816.81 10.69
earnings on derecognition of
equity instruments
Closing balance of retained 1,844.19| (826.44) 84711 (1,569.16)
earnings

In view of the losses incurred during the year under review, the Directors do not recommend

any dividend for the year 2022-23.
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B
Transfer to Reserves

Your directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company.

Company’s Performance

On a standalone basis, the revenue from operations for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 127.46 crores
which is consistent with the previous year’s revenue of Rs. 127.01 crores. The loss after tax
attributable to shareholders for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 146.17 crores vis-a-vis loss after tax of Rs.
5.24 crores in the previous year as it does not include one-time capital gain on investments
of Rs. 152.41 crores in FY 2022-23.

State of the Company’s Affairs:

Commercial:

As a truly diversified developer of choice, we have a strong presence across the country.
Intellion is now well established as our exclusive office spaces vertical, reimagining the
workplace to deliver Smart, Secure, Sustainable and Social work environments.

TRIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited, is in the domain of design,
development and management of commercial assets and few residential projects. Currently,
the Company and its subsidiaries own and operate 7.6 mn. sqg. ft. of Commercial projects
across 5 projects in 3 cities (which includes 4 office developments (IT/SEZ/Commercial), a
Retail asset in Gurgaon & Hospitality asset in Chennai). The Company has concluded 1.37 mn.
sq. ft. of leasing (New & Renewals) in FY 22-23 in the Operational Portfolio.

During the year ended 31March 2023, the Company divested certain portion of its shareholding
in the erstwhile subsidiaries i.e TRIL Infopark Limited, Infopark Properties Limited, Arrow
Infraestate Private Limited, Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited and Gurgaon Realtech
Limited which resulted in aloss of control and the residual stake was recognised as investment
in joint ventures accounted using equity method.

The Group has recognised the residual stake at its fair value on the date of loss of control and
consequently, recognised the gains realised on such divestment and fair valuation impact on
residual stake of INR 3,396.98 Crore resulting in a Gain attributable to shareholders and non-
controlling interests for FY 2022-23 of Rs. 2,413.79 Crore.

Sustainability has always been core tenet of our operations and we are fully committed
to maintaining our leadership position in this critical aspect for our futures. We strive to
embody the TATA values in how we engage with customers, employees and vendor partners.
Our ethos of delivering value with utmost transparency makes us focused on excellence,
empathy and innovation across the customer journey.

The Company is also exploring various opportunities in the coming year, which are at various
level of discussion.

Infrastructure:

Dharamshala Skyway commenced commercial operations amidst the Omicron wave in
January 2022. The response of locals & tourists has been encouraging since inauguration.
During FY 2022-23, the Project achieved a topline in excess of Rs. 10 Crore & positive EBITDA
of ~ Rs 4 Crore despite facing headwinds especially due to major diversion of tourists to
Kashmir which has opened up recently. Further, extreme weather events like thunderstorms
& landslides are quite common in the area. The Company has deployed an experienced team
that manages ropeway operations in house & has received a letter of commendation from
the National Disaster Relief Force (NDRF) on the successful trails of vertical rescue in case




of emergencies. The Users of the ropeway have continued to give positive ratings for their
experience in Google & Trip advisor. The Company expects to further stabilize in the current
year with phenomenal response from tourists during peak season between May & July 2023.

In the financial year 2022-23, the execution of the Pune Metro Line 3 project from Shivajinagar
to Hinjewadi picked up pace. Metro Right of Way (RoW) to the extent of 99.75% is now
available with RoW for some Entry / Exit structures now pending. In terms of Overall Project
Progress, 27% of the project is now complete. The Project Milestone of expending 20% of
Project Cost within the first year, as per the Concession Agreement, has been achieved. The
diversion of Overhead High-Tension lines impacting about 4 kms of the alignment has also
been completed. The design process has moved forward with 70% of Civil design completed.
On the Systems side, 96% of Basic design and 60% of Final Design has been completed.

On the execution front, 71% of the foundations have been completed, de-risking the project
to an extent. Nearly 50% of the piers and 25% of pier caps have been completed. All the
plant & machinery required for the project, such as moulds and shutters, batching plants and
Launching Girders have been mobilised and approx. 2.7 kms of the viaduct, which forms the
base for the tracks has been erected in the current year.

Work has been taken up in all the 23 stations and superstructure works in 3 stations is in
progress. Similarly work has been taken up in key depot buildings like Sub-station & Operation
Control Centre as well as in the areas where tracks are to be laid.

Procurement of various long-lead items such as Rails and Lifts & Escalators is progressing with
Depot Rails and Sleepers having been completed. On the systems front, the manufacturing
of the trains has commenced with the first train scheduled to be delivered by Nov-23. 6 train
sets are expected to be delivered by Mar-24. Manufacturing clearances for long-lead items
such as transformers and cables have also been placed.

In the coming financial year, Engineering for Civil & System works will be completed as will
the Construction of Pile, Pile caps, Piers and Pier caps. Additionally, 19 kms of viaduct is likely
to be completed and 15 station priority rooms will be handed over to the Systems Contractor
for executing the works. All Major Depot building like the Operations Control Centre, Sub-
station, Inspection Bay, Workshop office and Central store will be completed. The Receiving
sub-stations will be fully operational. The entire Depot track is also planned to be completed.

Rolling stock production has commenced in Sricity, Andhra Pradesh & delivery of first coach
is expected soon. Trial runs on test track are expected to commence soon. The company has
finalized look & feel for rolling stock & stations to provide best in class experience for users.
As on date construction is in full swing & expected date of completion is Q1 FY 2024-25.

Subsidiary Companies

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 25 subsidiaries, 1 associate and 1 joint venture
companies.

The Company had entered into a Joint Venture arrangement with Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board (“CPP Investments”) to develop and own commercial office space across
India. The joint venture shall target to stabilise and develop assets, aiming to reach over INR
50 billion (C$800 million) in assets under management. As on date, the joint venture had
seeded in two assets, Intellion Park Chennai and Intellion Edge Gurgaon, National Capital
Region of Delhi which were owned and managed by TRIL.

Pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement between Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (TRIL),
Infopark Properties Limited (IPL) and TRIL Infopark Limited (TIL), TRIL had sold 99.99%
equity Shares of TIL to IPL, pursuant to which TIL has become the Subsidiary Company of
IPL w.e.f June 27, 2022.
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In terms of the Shareholders Agreement (SHA) and Securities Subscription and Purchase
Agreement (“SSPA”) executed amongst TRIL, IPL, CPP Investment Board Private Holdings
(4) Inc (“CPPIB”), TRIL IT4 Private Limited and TIL, dated 08 April, 2022 and as amended
from time to time, the Company had divested 49% stake in IPL, Subsidiary of the Company
in favour of CPPIB.

Also, pursuant to SHA and SSPA executed between the Arrow Infraestate Private Limited,
Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited and Gurgaon Realtech Limited (“TCG Companies”),
TRIL and CPPIB, dated 08 April, 2022, as amended from time to time, the Company had
divested 49% stake in TCG Companies, Subsidiaries of the Company, in favour of CPPIB
during the year.

During the year under review, the Company had acquired 18,24,81,751 Equity shares of Tata
Housing Development Company Limited (“THDC”). As on March 31, 2023, the Company
owns 43% in THDC.

The Company has also divested its investment in TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private
Limited, wholly owned subsidiary and has sold 100% stake held by the Company to Tata
Electronics Private Limited. As on May 09, 2023, TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private
Limited ceased to be wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Except as stated above, there were no other companies which have become or ceased to
be the subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company, during the year
under review.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), a statement
containing the salient features of financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture companies in Form AOC-1is attached to the financial statements
of the Company.

Update on Merger:

With respect to the Scheme of Amalgamation between TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects
Private Limited and Acme Living Solutions Private Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited and their respective members and creditors (1 April 2019 being the Appointed date)
filed with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Delhi Bench (“NCLT”), has being approved
by NCLT on March 17, 2022.

However, the Scheme of Amalgamation between Wellkept Facility Management Services
Private Limited and MIA Infrastructure Private Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited and their respective members and creditors (1 April 2019 being the Appointed date)
filed with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, (“NCLT”), is awaiting
approval from NCLT.

The Subsidiaries of the Company i.e. TRIL Infopark Limited (“Transferor company”) and
Infopark Properties Limited (“Transferee Company”), at their meeting held on September
29, 2022, had approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of TRIL Infopark Limited
with Infopark Properties Limited and filed the Scheme with the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench, (“NCLT”). Further, NCLT vide it's order dated June 21, 2023
approved the said scheme.
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Update on NBFC matter:

The Company along with its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, (“the Group”) remains
exclusively engaged in principal business of real estate and infrastructure development
(including purchase, construction or sale of immovable property, project management
consultancy services and investment advisory services). These business activities of the
Company are mainly carried out through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in the form of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. In carrying out such activities through the SPVs,
the Company funds the SPVs through a judicious mix of equity investments, loans or advances
basis the requirement of each of the entities.

Considering the nature of the business, while the Investments in SPVs constitute more than
90% of its total assets, however, the majority portion of its total income is generated from
operations. Therefore the Company would not fall within the definition of a non-banking
financial company as per the provisions of Section 451 (f) of the RBI Act, 1934. The Company
expects this trend to continue in future years also.

The Company prepares its standalone financials in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS). During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, a significant amount of
interest income and unrealized gains was credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss on
account of revaluation of the investments (issued by SPVs) in compliance with Ind AS 109
requirements.

This resulted in income from financial assets exceeding by more than 50% of the gross
income, which was purely temporary in nature. The slowdown in the economy due to adverse
conditions and temporary low residential sales in its projects, coupled with non-recurring fair
valuation gains had resulted in skewed operating income which in management’s view was
transient and temporary in nature.

Therefore the Company had made a written representation in May 2022 to the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) seeking clarifications and that registration as an NBFC may not presently
be insisted upon. This was based on ‘Principal business Test’ as per the RBI Press Release
No. 1998- 99/1269 dated 08.04.1999. The Company had further represented that it does
not intend to carry on the business as a NBFC and will undertake appropriate measures to
increase its operating income.

Covid-19 Pandemic Situation - Update on Operations

A. Impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on business:

During FY 22-23, unlike previous years, there were low to medium spikes of Covid-19
strains in the country at different times of the year with varying intensities across various
geographies. The office sector continued to witness newer work models including WFH
(Work from home), RTO (Return to Office), Hybrid/ Flexible as organizations continued to
test workforce resilience and productivity under various work cultures.

As the situations normalized in second half of 2022, many tenants decided to bring their
employees back with various hybrid work models while many of their employees continued
to choose work from home for business operations. By the end of the year, there was
increased focus by occupiers to bring employees back in a phased manner. Occupancy
levels at our parks rose from below 20% in June 2022 to 41% in March 2023. Almost all
corporate tenants have continued to pay rentals including maintenance charges during
the year, a testament to and acknowledgement of all the efforts to provide services in
these uncertain times. The retail tenants however continued to suffer due to limited
business activity and footfall due to limited return to office.
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The Company was also able to renew 100% of its portfolio tenants due for renewal during
FY 22-23. Committed occupancy levels have been at 89% with minimal churn. Construction
activities have also fully continued at all sites.

B. Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces functioning:

Construction sites: Construction has since then stayed resilient during the subsequent
Covid-19 waves and have continued seamlessly in FY 22-23.

Commercial office spaces: Services were kept functioning during with uninterrupted
access to tenants throughout the year.

Residential sales offices: Currently, the sales offices are functioning with 100% occupancy
and following Covid-19 safety protocols.

Corporate offices: Precautionary and proactive work from home was encouraged during
Covid-19 waves. In the present scenario, offices are operational with 100% occupancy
owing to reduction of cases.

C. Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations:

Clear SOPs continue to be implemented for construction activities and office complexes,
covering transport, social distancing, hygiene, and basic do’s & don’ts. Necessary
arrangements have been made to provide sanitizers, spare face masks, PPE kits etc. for
all personnel. Checklists are being adhered to and regular reports circulated to leadership
teams.

Contingency measures are in place for any detected cases, in collaboration with healthcare
facility providers. Regular planning meetings helped in reacting to changing situations and
taking rapid decisions. With the start of vaccination, measures are being taken to facilitate
vaccination for on-site eligible labour. In order to bring additional confidence to tenants
about our commitment to sustainability, wellness and safety the Company undertook
measures and achieved the following certifications:

i. Ramanujan Intellion Park became Indian’s first and Globally 9th Net Zero Carbon
Rated Asset by International Finance Corporation (IFC)

ii. Ramanujan Intellion Park, Intellion Park, Gurgaon and Intellion Edge, Gurgaon also
achieved EDGE Advanced Certification by International Finance Corporation

iii. Your company is also one of the pioneers in India to subscribe to WELL Enterprise by
International WELL Building Institute (IWBI) towards its commitment to wellness

D. Estimation of the future impact of Covid-19 on operations:

Covid-19 and associated strains continue to be a threat to employee safety and wellbeing.
While your company continue to take precautions to ensure health and safety of the
employees operating from its office assets, any such threats bring significant uncertainties
in work environments and need to be dealt accordingly. However, Hybrid Work Models
and Flexible Space Operators may continue to contribute as one of the key demand
drivers for the medium term.

E. Impact of Covid-19 on capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity position, ability
to service debt, assets and internal financial reporting and control:

The Company has adequate liquidity in the form of cash and cash equivalents and
undrawn facilities. Given its well capitalised balance sheet and strong business profile, the
Company does not envisage any issues in raising additional funds during the year as and
when required.

17




The Company has sound internal control measures for all its processes and there has been
no impact on the internal financial reporting and controls of the Company.

. Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party will
have significant impact on the listed entity’s business:

The Company is well positioned to fulfil its obligations and does not foresee any significant
impact on the business due to non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party.

Industry Outlook and Future Prospects:

Overview of Real Estate Sector in India:

The Indian economy with its sound fundamentals will remain a hot spot on the global map
in the 21st century, primarily driven by the attractive demographics of 1.3 billion population,
both from a supply and demand perspective. Younger population (median age in 2030 of
31.4 years v/s 40 years in US and 42 years in China) acts as a great talent pool and will
be the largest consumer segment. With ~10 million people migrating to cities every year,
the urban population will contribute 75% to the GDP by 2030.

All these factors will boost the demand for real estate in India across segments. By 2030,
India is likely to need 25 million affordable housing units to meet the urban population’s
demand. The growing economy will drive the demand for commercial and retail space.

As per India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF), the contribution of real estate sector was
expected to increase from current 6% to 13% of GDP by 2025 and the sector was expected
to reach US$ 1 Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 Billion in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5%
- however the current economic downturn due to Covid-19 may push growth by 1-2 years.

Indian real estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI over the next two
years, with US$ 8 billion capital infusion by FY22.

Commercial real estate:

The resumption of economic activity in Calendar Year (CY) 2022 post pandemic relaxations
led to the release of pent-up demand and a gradual acceleration of return-to-office plans
by occupiers, which propelled leasing momentum. Office space absorptionin India touched
56.5 million sqg. ft. in CY 2022, surpassing the 40.5 million sq. ft. leasing levels observed
in CY 2021 by about 40%. The leasing activity in CY 2022 was led by Bangalore, Delhi
NCR, Mumbai and Hyderabad with a cumulative share of almost 75%. Technology
corporates (32%) drove the leasing demand followed by Flexible space operators (11%),
Engineering & Manufacturing (10%) and BFSI (9%). Flex space operators emerged as the
second strongest leasing driver with 11% share in leasing activity (6.2 Mn sq. ft.). In a first,
Domestic firms (51%) overtook American firms (37%) in terms of annual leasing.

Supply marginally increased from 49.7 million sq. ft. in CY 2021 to touch 50.6 million sq.
ft. in CY 2022. Thus, gross absorption surpassed development completions during the
year, leading to improving vacancy levels across major cities. Hyderabad, Bangalore and
Delhi NCR drove supply during the year with a cumulative share of about 67%. Several
micro markets in Delhi NCR, Bangalore, Mumbai, Chennai, Hyderabad and Pune witnessed
a quoted rental growth of 1-9% Y-0-Y.

2023 Office Market Outlook:

Continued macroeconomic uncertainty due to monetary tightening, inflation, potential
downturns in developed economies and geopolitical challenges may impact occupiers’
expansion plans and decision-making in 2023. Even though the full impact of these




challenges on global corporates’ leasing decisions is yet undetermined, absorption may
face downward pressures during the year (-15%) with estimated absorption of 47-49 million
sqg. ft. Bangalore, Delhi NCR and Hyderabad would remain the biggest demand drivers
while sustained leasing activity is also expected in Chennai, Mumbai, Pune and Kolkata.

A steady supply pipeline of quality assets is expected to result in around 51-53 million sq.
ft. of space getting delivered in 2023. Bangalore, Delhi NCR and Hyderabad would continue
to dominate completions followed by Chennai, Pune, Mumbai and Kolkata. The share
of large sized transactions (more than 1 million sqg. ft.) is expected to grow in the coming
year, driven by upcoming completions in Hyderabad, Bangalore, Chennai and Mumbai.
The possibility of de-notification of SEZs may lead to more non-SEZ supply entering the
market in coming years.

Demand outstripped supply in 2022, causing vacancy rates to marginally dip across few
cities by end of year. Vacancy rates are thus anticipated to remain range bound in 2023.

In-line with global and APAC trends, hybrid working would continue to be the norm going
forward in India. Occupiers would continue to offer flexibility to their employees as holistic
hybrid working strategies are key to attracting and retaining talent.

Residential Real Estate:

In FY23, more than 6.5 lakh units were sold across India with a ~25% growth in absorption
over the last financial year. Markets have rebounded to much higher levels than pre-
Covid-19 and stayed there, with Q3 witnessing highest ever absorption in several years.
More than 5 lakh units were launched in FY23, an almost ~5% growth in new launches over
last year.

Inventory overhang ~17 months in Q4 FY23, is at one of the lowest levels in several years.

The move towards higher transparency and accountability has continued, evidenced by
the continued consolidation in the market towards reputed, trust-worthy developers with
strong processes & fiscal positions. While higher traction is seen in high-end and premium
segments, government’s policy push to affordable housing with its efforts under Housing
for All as well as infrastructure status will continue to drive traction in the affordable
housing segment as well.

*Sources: RBI Annual report, IBEF, Anarock, JLL, CBRE, PropEquity, Media reports, Press
articles

Infrastructure:

In the financial year 2022-23, the Company is happy to report a full year of operations for
all Road projects and Dharamshala Ropeway after second wave of Covid-19 pandemic.

Overall FY 22-23 has witnessed better traffic growth than expected across all corridors.
Overall, Toll income achieved of Rs. 659.5 Cr which is 29% increase from FY 22 (Rs. 509.4
Cr) with Overall traffic growth of 17%.

There are clear signs that India’s road infrastructure has a bright future and the government
has strived diligently to find new solutions and boost the transportation infrastructure
and connectivity. Between 2023 and 2030, the demand for freight transportation services
will rise in pace with economic expansion. Road transport will continue to be the key mode
of land transportation and despite improvements in rail freight development projects, the
proportion of road freight is anticipated to remain between 65-70%. Due to smaller trucks’
access to distant fulfilment centres, the growing demand for road freight from industries
like retail, fast-moving consumer goods and e-commerce is anticipated to increase. Real-
time cargo tracking, cargo condition monitoring, computer vision and telematics are some
of the digital technologies likely to see increased adoption trends, facilitating the seamless
movement of freight.
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India’s infrastructure outlook over the next decade presents a bright picture. It is lined with
attractive government schemes and a pipeline of major projects - supported by significant
funding and financing. Infrastructure development has been a major focus area for the
government so much so that it is slated to be instrumental in meeting the government’s
aim to become a $5 trillion economy by 2025. According to the Department of Economic
Affairs, Gol, the country needs to inject $4.5 trillion in infrastructure development through
2030 to realize its $5 trillion economy plan by 2025 and to continue growing at a fast
pace.

In the past few years, several schemes have been announced to drive the sector’s growth.
These include the National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), the National Monetisation Plan
(NMP), Gati Shakti and the National Single Window System (NSWS).

NIP is an aggregation of social and economic infrastructure projects, both greenfield
and brownfield. It gathers information from the stakeholders and creates a harmonized
list of projects - proposed, conceptualized or under construction. This is aimed at
enhancing investor confidence by ensuring better access to financing resources and better
management of projects, which will lead to lower rates of failure in project delivery.

The NMP transfers the operation of brownfield assets in sectors like railways, roadways,
airports, energy etc from the government to private players. The initiative aims to unlock
the value of public sector assets by leasing them and bringing in private sector money and
efficiency. This practice of asset recycling is not uncommon for governments to raise
money to undertake further construction.

While NIP and NMP look at projects individually, there is also the requirement for
coordinated planning for seamless infra development - a need that is being fulfilled by
Gati Shakti - India’s masterplan for multi-modal connectivity. Gati Shakti brings together
16 ministries to coordinate infrastructure development to ensure last mile connectivity and
network between the various modes of transportation.

Gati Shakti aims to address issues that have prevailed in Indian governance for a long time:
disjointed planning and asynchronized implementation. This has given an impetus to move
towards a logistics policy for ensuring efficient movement and minimum disruption. Large-
scale programs like Bharatmala and Sagaramala, seaports, dry ports, Special Economic
Zones etc will now be planned in sync with each other for maximum utilization.

The NSWS is another strategic policy for implementation of NIP and NMP. NSWS serves
as an online platform where investors can apply for clearances. It addresses issues of
delays in getting approvals and provides information on all the required clearances. The
portalis likely to come online this year. Gati Shakti and NSWS together provide a framework
for the implementation of NIP and NMP.

The Road and Highway sector has traditionally received the most significant attention
among other transport infrastructure in India. The government’s ambitious plans under the
Bharatmala program entail construction of 22 greenfield expressways including the Delhi-
Mumbai Expressway, 23 tunnels and bridges and 35 multi-modal logistics parks. Lastly,
the Company is well poised to participate in these opportunities and in the coming year
Company would also be focusing on acquiring new projects.

Share Capital and Other Securities:

A. Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 50,00,00,006 fully
Paid-Up Equity Shares to its existing Shareholders on Rights Issue Basis.
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As on March 31, 2023, the issued, subscribed and Paid-Up Equity Shares Capital of the
Company stands at Rs. 2117,30,76,980/- divided into 2,11,73,07,698 Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each.

B. Debt Management:

The Outstanding Debt as of March 31, 2023 stood at Rs. 1525 Crore. During FY23, the
Company achieved significant reduction in Debt to the tune of Rs. 2,555 Crore over March
31, 2022. This was achieved mainly through Divestment of stake in some of its Subsidiaries.

The Company raises debt through various sources such as Non-Convertible Debentures,
Commercial Papers, Short term loans, Overdraft facilities and Inter-Corporate Deposits.

C. Credit Ratings:

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

‘ Instrument Rating Agency Rating Amount Remarks
Commercial Paper ICRA ICRA Al+ % 2200 crore | Reaffirmed
(Short term) CRISIL CRISIL A1+ 21800 crore | Reaffirmed

CARE Ratings CARE A1+ % 2200 crore | Reaffirmed

Non-Convertible ICRA ICRA AA+ (Stable) T 3000 crore | Upgraded

Debenture CRISIL CRISIL AA+ (Stable) |2195 crore [Py one
notch from
AA (stable)

Short term Bank CARE Ratings CARE A1+ 375 crore Reaffirmed

Facilities - Fund Based

Short term Bank CARE Ratings CARE A1+ %190 crore Reaffirmed

Facilities - Non-

Fund Based - Bank

Guarantee

Short term Bank CARE Ratings CARE A1+ % 135 crore Reaffirmed

Facilities - Non-Fund

and Fund Based

Depository System

Your Company’s Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Securities Identification Number
(ISIN) assigned to the Equity Shares of the Company under the Depository System is
INE371K0O1016. In case of any query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the
Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. Kfin Technologies Limited, Address: Karvy Selenium Tower
B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032, Phone:
+91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40 6716 1602. As on March 31, 2023, 100% of Equity Shares of
your Company were held in dematerialized form.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and
secretarial auditors including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board
committees including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2022-23.




Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

ii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company’s composition of Board is adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors. In addition to provisions of the Act, the governance guidelines
adopted by the Board set out the role and responsibility of the Board, composition of the
Board and code of conduct.

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”) became applicable to
the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31,
2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No.
6/2023 dated March 29, 2023.

To comply with the said Listing Regulations, the Company re-constituted the composition of
its Board of Directors and Committees.

As on March 31, 2023, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

1. Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman and Non- Executive Director;

2. Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;
3. Mr. Ankur Dalwani - Non- Executive Director

4. Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar - Non- Executive and Independent Director;

5. Mr. Prabhakar Panda - Non- Executive and Independent Director and
6. Mr. Sudip Mullick - Non- Executive and Independent Director

Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar (DIN: 00028428) and Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal (DIN: 00057333)
Directors of the Company, had resigned as Directors of the Company with effect from the close
of business hours on March 30, 2023. The Board appreciated contribution and commendable
services provided by Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar and Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal as Directors of the
Company and acknowledge their professional knowledge and expertise shared during their
tenure and upholding the Tata values.

The members at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 15, 2022, regularized and
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approved the appointment of Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar and Mr. Prabhakar Panda as
Independent Directors of the Company for term of 3 years.

Mr. Ankur Dalwani (DIN: 10091697) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Director of
the Company, liable to retire by rotation with effect from March 29, 2023 to hold the office
till ensuing General Meeting of the Company.

During the year under review, the Board after considering the professional knowledge and
expertise, appointed Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Non-Executive and Independent
Director of the Company with effect from March 29, 2023 for a term of 3 years, subject
to members’ approval. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the
requisite expertise and experience and are persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill
the conditions specified in the Act as well as the Rules made thereunder and are independent
of the management.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 21, 2018, the Members
of the Company had appointed Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), as Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO) of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing
from April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2023. In view of Mr. Dutt’s experience and exposure in real
estate Sector, the Board vide its resolution dated February 10, 2023, re-appointed Mr. Dutt
as MD & CEO and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for a further period of 5 years
commencing from April O1, 2023 to March 31, 2028, subject to members approval.

Pursuant to the Regulation 17(1C) of the Listing Regulations, approval of Shareholders was
required for appointment of a person as Director on the Board at the next general meeting
or within a time period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier.
Accordingly, the members at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 16, 2023,
regularized and approved:

a -Appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), as MD & CEO of the Company for a
period of 5 years commencing from April O1, 2023 to March 31, 2028;

b -Appointment of Mr. Ankur Dalwani as Non- Executive Director; and

c -Appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick as Independent Director of the Company for term of 3
years.

Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Director of the Company who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-
appointment forms part of the Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the Independent Directors have
submitted Declarations that they meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations,
they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists
or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees
of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
the Company as on March 31, 2023 is Mr. Sanjay Dutt, MD & CEO of the Company, Mr. Aravind
Maiya, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Rashmi Jain, Company Secretary.

23




The details of KMP’s appointed and resigned during the period are mentioned below:

Sr. Name of KMP’s Designation Appointment/

No. Resignation
1 | Mr. Bhavesh Madeka |Interim Chief Financial Officer | Appointment | May 10, 2022

2 | Mr. Bhavesh Madeka |Interim Chief Financial Officer| Resignation May 31, 2022
3 | Mr. Aravind Maiya Chief Financial Officer Appointment | June 1, 2022
4 | Mr. Aravind Maiya Chief Financial Officer Resignation | April 25, 2023
5 | Ms. Rashmi Jain Company Secretary Appointment | April O1, 2022

Number of Meetings of the Board

There were 7 (Seven) meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said
meetings were held on May 10, 2022, May 28, 2022, June 15, 2022, August 10, 2022, November
9, 2022, February 10, 2023 and March 10, 2023.

Details of the Directors’ attendance are given herein below:

Sr. No. Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance
1 Mr. Banmali Agrawala 7 out of 7
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 6 out of 7
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar 7 out of 7
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

4 Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 7 out of 7
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

5 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 7 out of 7

6 Mr. Prabhakar Panda 7 out of 7

7 Mr. Ankur Dalwani NA
(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

8 Mr. Sudip Mullick NA
(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors had carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from
the committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

The Independent Directors held a separate meetings of Independent Directors on March 28,
2023 for FY 22-23 and on May 24, 2023 for FY 23-24 and shared their views for evaluation
amongst themselves over the performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a
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whole and the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director
to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc. The Chairman also
had one on one meeting with Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
discussing the performance of the Board.

In the Board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
performance of the board, its committees and individual directors was also discussed.
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board excluding
the independent director being evaluated.

Committees of the Board:

a) Audit Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22,2022, constituted the committee with effect from April 01,2022. However,
owning to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the Company and
appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Director as also
Independent, the Board vide its resolutions dated March 31, 2023, re-constituted the Audit
Committee of the Board as follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member
3 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
4 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22,2022, constituted the committee with effect from April 01, 2022. However,
owning to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the Company and
appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Director as also
Independent, the Board vide its resolutions dated March 31, 2023, re-constituted the
Committee as follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

‘ Sr. No. Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Banmali Agrawala Member
3 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.
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The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters
provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at “Annexure A” and
is also available on www.tatarealty.in.

c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22, 2022, constituted the committee with effect from April O1, 2022. The
constitution of the Committee as follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.

d) Risk Management Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22,2022, constituted the committee with effect from April O1,2022. Howevetr,
owning to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the Company and
appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Directorasalsolndependent,
the Board vide its resolutions dated March 31, 2023, re-constituted the Committee as
follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Chairman
2 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
3 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.

The Company’s Risk Management policy is also available on the website of the Company
i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company is set
out as in Annexure C. However, owing to the losses as per the calculation of net profit under
Section 198 of the Act, no contribution was made during the year under review towards CSR
activities. The disclosures as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 are set out in Annexure D of this report.

The CSR policy is available on website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the




relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that
the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of
the Company, there exists an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the
size of the Company.

The Shareholders of the Company at their Fifteen Annual General Meeting held on
September 14, 2022, had appointed M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm
Registration No.:101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term
of 5 years till the conclusion of Twentieth AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027.
The Auditors has conveyed their eligibility and willingness to continue as Statutory Auditors
for FY 2023-24.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed
M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial
Audit of the Company for FY 2022-23.

Auditor’s Report and Secretarial Audit Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company in their Reports on the Financial
Statements of the Company for FY 2022-23.

The Secretarial Audit Report, in the prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as Annexure B.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. D.
A. Kamat & Co in their Secretarial Audit Report on the Secretarial and other related records
of the Company, for FY 2022-23.

Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Charter & Policy has been developed with
the objective of establishing a common understanding and methodology for identifying,
assessing, responding, monitoring and reporting to provide management, the board of
directors with the assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said
Policy, a Risk Management Steering Committee ('lRMSC') comprising of MD & CEO and
Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies provide the overall framework
for Risk Management process which includes risk identification, assessment, evaluation,
treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee inthe RM Organization
structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is responsible for
adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They are charged
with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various
initiatives to the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and other stakeholders on a regular
basis.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the
executive team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management.
Risk identification is a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as
required. All the risks are evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the
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risk ranking, high risk areas are identified and presented to the Risk Management Committee.

In order to comply with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on March 22, 2022, constituted Risk Management Committee with effect from
April 01, 2022. Owing to changes in the Board i.e. the appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN:
06942241) as Additional Director as also Independent Director and resignation of Mr. Farokh
Nariman Subedar (DIN: 00028428) as the Director of the Company, the committee was re-
constitute by Board with effect from March 31, 2023.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition “Infrastructure Company” as provided
by the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
(except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regard to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated
a Policy on Related Party Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The said Policy also provides
guidance for entering into transactions with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure
is defined and followed for approval / ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable
between the Company and its related parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by
the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1)
of the Act. Given that all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under
review were at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the
transactions were material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for
financial year 2022-23 and hence does not form part of this report.

Further, the said policy has been modified by the Audit Committee with effect from May 28,
2022 to meet the additional requirement of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, which
were made applicable to the Company with effect from June 15, 2022.

The RPT policy is available on website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed
thereunder, the Annual Return for FY 2022-23 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall also
be placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in.

Particulars of Employees:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to
the Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to the which the
Company will not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act, read
along with Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to remuneration
and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will not
be applicable to the Company during the year under review.
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Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Deposits from Public

During the year under the review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was
outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings

and Outgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the “Annexure E” to this report.

Cost Auditors

Your Board has appointed M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, (Firm Registration No 00294),
Practicing Cost Accountant as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting cost audit
for the FY 2022-23. A resolution seeking ratification of the members for the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2023-24 is provided in the Notice to the ensuing AGM.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms
that it has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government
under of Section 148(1) of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or Tribunals

impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s
operations in future.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the report:

During the year under review, there were no significant and material changes affecting the
financial position of the Company.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a
policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under for Prevention and Redressal of
complaints of Sexual Harassment at workplace.
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) (“Internal Complaints Committee”) is
in place as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no complaints relating to
sexual harassment, pending at the beginning of financial year, received during the year and
pending as on the end of the Financial Year 2022-23.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy (“the Policy”), under Section 177 of
the Act with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company
to approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This
policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to
create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they
see a problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether
within or outside the organization and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson
of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm that during the
financial year 2022-23, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. Further, no Whistle-blower complaint was received by the Company
during the FY 2022- 23.

Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries’ Certificate
thereon, for the year under review prepared in accordance with the Part C of Schedule V of
the Listing Regulations, forms part of this Annual Report as “Annexure F”.

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit
Committee or the Board. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
There has been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there has been no details, which shall be required to be
given as regard to difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof, as no such events have occurred.
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Annexure A

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read along with
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations]

The remuneration policy of the company is designed to create a high performance culture
andis in alignment to the core values of Tata Group. This Policy sets out the guiding principles
for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to
the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
of the Company.

The remuneration philosophy is aimed to provide market competitive remuneration to our
executives and employees, in order to attract and retain the most talented and qualified
individual to the company.

The remuneration policy recognises the size, scope and complexity of the company and the
role, the market standing, skills and experience, Company’s capacity to pay in compliance to
the related regulatory compliance requirements.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions
of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the Company
shall abide by the applicable law.

While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has
considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under:

“(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals”

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

A. Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non- executive directors

(i) Independent directors (“ID”) and non-independent non executive directors (“NED”)
may be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees
of which they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits.

(i)  Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission
will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

(iii) Overallremuneration (sittingfeesand commission) should bereasonableand sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the Company
(taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth
imperatives).

(iv) Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.




(v) Theaggregatecommissionpayabletoallthe NEDsandIDswillberecommendedby the
NRC to the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors,
shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be
decided by the Board.

(vi) The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director
based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors
including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual
contributions at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in
meetings.

(vii) In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any
director such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the
director while performing his/her role as a director of the Company. This could include
reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board / Board
committee meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with
shareholders / creditors / management, site visits, induction and training (organized
by the Company for directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent
advisors in the furtherance of his/her duties as a director.

B. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for
services rendered by such director in any other capacity, unless:

(i) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

(i) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.

C. Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”), Executive Directors (“ED”) and Key
Management Personnel (“KMP”)

In accordance with the policy, the Managing Director, Executive Director, KMPs, Senior
Management and employees are paid fixed salary which includes basic salary, allowances,
perquisites and other benefits. Remuneration also covers contribution towards social security
benefits / retirement benefits in accordance with statutory provisions as applicable.

In addition to above, they may also earn annual incentive remuneration / performance linked
incentive / annual performance linked bonus subject to achievement of certain defined
qualitative and quantitative performance criteria and such other parameters as may be
considered appropriate from time to time by the NRC and the Board. The performance
linked incentive is driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the
performance of the Company.

Remuneration of MD/ED is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case of any
change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders.

The NRC may recommend and provide MD/EDs such remuneration by way of commission,
calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as
may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of
the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/EDs would be based on performance as
evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.

D. Remuneration for other employees

The policy relating to employees would be as per the remuneration policy of the company
as approved by the Managing Director in consultation with the Head of HR within the overall
framework of above remuneration philosophy and guidelines.
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E. Exclusion

Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The
remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long term settlements
or contracts.

F. Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-

Sanjay Dutt
MD & CEO
DIN: 05251670
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Annexure C

PREAMBLE:

At Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“TRIL” or “the Company”), we are committed
to Tata Group’s vision of Integrating environmental, social and ethical principles into the
core business, thereby improving the quality of life of the communities we serve and
enhancing long-term stakeholder value. At TRIL, we are sensitive and concerned about the
communities and region we are operating. Thus believing that through sustainable measures,
we would actively contribute to the Social, Economic and Environmental Development of the
Community.

CSR VISION AND MISSION:

The Company recognizes its responsibility towards the society and contributes significantly
towards the betterment of the local communities it serves.

We believe in creating value for the community we work and empowering our stakeholders
by touching the lives of one lakh people by 2025. The said vision- mission is proposed to be
achieved by implementing CSR programs in the key areas of Livelihood and Skill development,
Healthcare, Environment protection, Social development, Education and relief.

Activities undertaken in the past:

The Company and its subsidiaries have a wide geographical stretch covering throughout the
nation and has voluntarily initiated numerous CSR activities during its recent past like;

Health:

- Organizing awareness sessions on health and hygiene, free health check-ups and blood
donation camps in and around the project site.

- Installation of water purification plants at schools near project sites.

- Rural development programs like support on providing a garbage vehicle and providing
ambulance support.

Environment Protection:

- Undertaking plantation drives within the communities and schools to bring about an
awareness on environmental issues and creating balance ecosystem.

Livelihood:

- Entrepreneurship Development program (EDP) for socio-economically backward youth
involved in the construction sector.

- Skill development program for the construction workers.

- An onsite welfare facilitation program for construction workers to improve access to social
protection schemes.

- Working towards women empowerment by introducing scholarship program for girls
coming from socio-economically challenged backgrounds.




Education:
- Supporting educational institutes and universities in the conducting academic research.

Social Development and Relief:

- Support to Informal Workers of Urban Areas to Combat Covid-19.

- Support on improving medical infrastructure as a response to the Covid-19 crises in the
nation.

DEFINITION - CSR POLICY:

This CSR Policy is a statement containing the approach and direction given by the Board of
a company, taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, and includes
guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities as well as
formulation of the annual action plan.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY:

- Define the operational framework and to provide a pathway for undertaking CSR initiatives
for the company.

- The Policy sets out the rules that need to be adhered to while taking up and implementing
CSR activities.

- To lay down effective guidelines in carrying out CSR programs by aligning them to the
areas mentioned under the schedule 7 of companies Act 2013 and contribute efforts
towards meeting larger SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals) 2030.

The Company shall timely ensure appropriate utilization of contribution viz financial and
human resources to the benefit of the community at large.

CSR THRUST AREAS AND FRAMEWORK:

The programs designed towards integrating wider perspectives of SDGs 2030 will reflect on
doing a responsible business and invest in Social good.

The CSR Framework developed for the next 3 years, focuses on the following areas of
intervention, which are in line with Schedule VIl of Companies Act 2013 and beyond business
as usual.
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COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE:

The Committee shall be constituted with following members only if the CSR expenditure
amount to be spent by a company exceeds fifty lakh rupees:

D With minimum three directors of which at least one director shall be an Independent
Director from the Board of the Company; or

2) With minimum two directors from the Board of the Company, in case the company is
not required to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) of section 149
of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”).

If the CSR committee is not required to be constituted by the Company as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Responsibility of CSR Committee as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mandate of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the CSR Committee shall:

i) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in the areas or
subject specified in Schedule VII;
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ii) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities;
iii) Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

iv) To formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the
CSR policy, which shall include the following, namely:-

a) the list of CSR projects or programs that are approved to be undertaken in areas or
subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act,

b) the manner of execution of such projects or programs,

c) the modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects
or programs,

d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programs, and

v) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the
company

ADDITIONAL MANDATE:

i) Oversee the company’s conduct with regard to its corporate and societal obligations
and its reputation as a responsible corporate citizen;

ii) Oversee activities impacting the quality of life of various stakeholders;

iii) Monitor the CSR Policy and expenditure of the material subsidiaries (material
subsidiary” means a subsidiary whose income or net worth exceeds ten percent of the
consolidated income or net worth respectively of the Company and its subsidiaries in
the immediately preceding financial year).

IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURE/ ANNUAL ACTION PLAN:

The CSR programs will be designed systematically with defined timelines, objectives and
deliverables. All the CSR initiatives will have well-defined KPIs to measure impacts on target
groups.

Every year Company review the existing programs and will come out with Action Plan for
implementation of each of the CSR projects or programs, which were approved by the CSR
Committee.

The company will collaborate with select NGO/ voluntary organization for the implementation
of the programs. The engagement with the partner will be based on thorough due diligence
process and assessing the credibility of the organization.

The Company shall during the financial year i.e. any time between 1st April to 31st March
every year, carry out its above listed CSR activities. The CSR Committee shall, from time to
time, decide on the schedule.

The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or
programs:

The funds required for utilization on CSR activities shall be allocated out of the profits of the
Company. The Company shall spend on CSR activities an amount of at least two percent of
the average net profits, made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The
average net profit shall be reckoned in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the
Act.




However, in the absence of any profits, the Company may still volunteer to undertake/spend
on CSR activities.

The Company shall implement the CSR activities either on its own or by contributing in
form of donation to a registered trust / society. The Committee may from time to time
recommend selecting and implementing any of the CSR activities enumerated above and to
encourage employees to voluntarily participate in such activities toward society’s betterment
and overall well-being.

MONITORING AND REPORTING MECHANISM:

The Committee may from time to time monitor proper implementation of its CSR activities,
either by itself or through appointed authorized representative or by appointing independent
agency or as it may deemed fit. The concerned person shall supervise and submit a report,
containing details on implementation of the CSR activities to the CSR Committee of the
Board.

Details of Impact Assessment, if any, undertaken by the Company:

The Company may on its own or engage the services of professional / independent agency
in order to do the impact assessment of selected or applicable projects or programs on a
periodic basis, as may be required from time to time.

POLICY GUIDELINES AND REVIEW

This CSR Policy has been formulated as per prevailing provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended), the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and after taking into considerations of Clarifications / FAQ issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) from time to time. However, if, due to subsequent changes in
the law, a particular part thereof may become inconsistent with the law, in such case the
provisions of the law will prevail.

This CSR policy document will be reviewed from time to time. Any changes, if necessary will
be approved by the CSR Committee of the Board.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

sd/-

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai




Annexure D

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs:

The CSR policy outlines the objectives, composition of the Committee, CSR scope, activity
schedule, monitoring and reporting methods. The CSR policy can be viewed on the web-
site of the Company www.tatarealty.in

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

The MCA on January 22, 2021, also notified the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020,
pursuant to which Section 135(9) was inserted in the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), wherein
if the amount required to be spent by a company as CSR Expenditure does not exceed
fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee shall not be applicable and the functions of CSR Committee provided under
this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of the company.

Considering the aforesaid relaxation provided by MCA, the Board at its meeting held on
May 24, 2021, dissolved the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company
with effect from April 01, 2021.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.tatarealty.in

4. Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report):

The Company was not required to implement, monitor and report any CSR activities,
during the year under review.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

Sr. No. | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be
preceding financial years (in Rs.) |setoff for the financial
year, if any (in Rs.)

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Not applicable, as
Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the
Act) in last three financial years.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

The Company was not required to spend mandatory 2% CSR expenditure for the year
ended March 31, 2023, due to reasons mentioned in item 6 above.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: N.A.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): N.A.




8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: N.A.

Spent for

Year.(in Rs.)

Total Amount

the Financial

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VIl as

per second proviso to section
135(5).
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer the Fund transfer

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A.

m | @ @& | @ (5) ® | @
Amount Location of the Project duration.
Name of the Project. project. Amount allocated
Item from the list of activities in Schedule VII State District for theproject (in
to the Act. Rs.)
Local area (Yes/No).
(8) (¢:)) (10) n
Amount spent in the Amount transferred to Mode of Mode of
current financial Year | Unspent CSR Account for | Implementation mplementation
(in Rs.). the project as per Section | -Direct (Yes/No) - Through
135(6) (in Rs.). Implementing Agency
Name. CSR
registration
number

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year: N.A.

M| @ (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. | Name |ltem from | Local area Location of Amount Mode of Mode of

No.| of the | thelist of | (Yes/No). the project. spent implementation Implemen-

Project. | activities for the -Direct tation
in project (Yes/No) Through
Schedule (in Rs.). Impleme-nting
VIl to the Agency
Act.

State | District Name | CSR
regis-
tration
number
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N A.

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): N.A.
(g9) Excess amount for set off, if any: N.A.

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

©) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec- -
tion 135(5)

D) Total amount spent for the Financial Year -

@i Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmesor activ- -
ities of the previous financial years, if any

) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- -

(iv)
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A.
Sr. Preceding Amount transferred | Amount | Amount transferred Amount
No. | Financial Year to Unspent CSR spent to any fund specified | remaining
Account under in the under Schedule VII to be
section 135 (6) (in | reporting | as persection 135(6), spent in
Rs.) Financial if any. succeeding
Year (in financial
Rs.) years. (in
Name | Amount | Date of Rs.)
of the | (in Rs) transfer
Fund

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): N.A.

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): N.A.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5): Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses
(based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the Act) in last three financial years.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

sd/-

Sanjay Dutt

MD & CEO

DIN: 05251670
Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE E

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

At Tata Realty, our mission goes beyond building physical structures that become desirable
homes and workplaces. It is about leading with a purpose and acting responsibly, building
sustainably, and progressing collectively. Our ESG strategy is based on 5R sustainability
approach - Responsible Value Chain Governance, Resilient Structures, Replenish Nature,
Reap Talent & Respect Lives. Currently, Tata Realty and Infrastructure limited operates five
assets in Mumbai, Chennai, and Delhi-NCR. In all these assets, significant measures have been
undertaken to Energy Conservation, Energy Efficiency and Enhanced Renewable Energy.

The scale and complexity of operations require a considerable amount of energy. We
incorporate energy-saving interventions in the design, construction, and maintenance
operations to reduce our energy consumption and increase the share of renewable energy
in the mix to limit our GHG emissions. The construction industry is dependent on several
inputs, and we lean on our supply chain to partner with us in reducing our energy usage. We
measure and monitor our carbon footprint and take action to regulate and minimize it.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy -

Energy Meters * Smart energy meters are provided for all major equipment,
common areas, and tenant areas.

* Smart BTU meters are also installed to monitor energy usage
for the HVAC

Energy-efficient |+ All pumps greater than 3 HP have at least 75% efficiency. Other

Equipment pumps selected on ISI ratings to deliver standard performance.

* Intelligent group controls in elevators to optimize energy use

* Water level controllers to avoid overflows and water and energy
wastage.

* Energy-efficient LED light fixtures

* BEE 5-star rated air conditioners.

» Series Counter flow chillers

* EC Motors for AHUs

Electric Vehicles |+ At least 5% of parking slots across all projects have charging
facilities
for electric vehicles

Health and Safe- | ¢« Project designs allow optimal use of natural air and light to

ty reduce daytime energy consumption.

* Well health safety rated buildings.

* South and north direction facing walls of apartments and common
areas are provided with glazed windows to allow natural sunlight

and heating
Low loss * All projects have Level 2 transformers with little or no full load
Transformers losses




Smart * Common area lights fitted with timers and other energy-saving

Automation devices

* Smart home automation in apartments optimizes the consumption
of electrical devices .

« Command Centers for efficient energy usage

* ML/Al-based preventive maintenance systems

Our employees use energy-saving electronic gadgets and commute using carpooling. At our
corporate office, we switch off 50% of our air conditioning plant for an hour every day during
lunchtime. Smart systems help automatically turn off lights in offices where employees leave
by 6.30. The common areas and gardens in our projects have solar lights installed to increase
our usage of renewable power.

Installation of energy efficient equipment - Aluminum composite panels (ACP) are commonly
used for providing the external cladding of building facades. Although ACP is lightweight yet
strong, one disadvantage is its moderate performance in keeping out the heat. We introduced
an alternative application called Exterior Insulation Finishing System (EIFS) for the first time
at our Intellion Edge Centre project in Gurugram. The basic component of EIFS is expanded
polystyrene (EPS), which provides both durability and strength. The 50 mm thick EPS layer is
overlaid with cementitious coatings. Using EIFS has enhanced operational efficiency as it can
be installed faster. Additionally, it provides better thermal insulation, allowing us to reduce
the costs of internal cooling, which has given us significant energy savings.

To save the energy, Solar Power Plant on Uchit Toll Plaza at Km. 261.600, 6-laning of Udaipur
-Chittorgarh section of NH-48 in the state of Rajasthan has been installed on July 26, 2022
that has resulted in great financial and environmental benefits.

Use of maximum daylight - Use of maximum Day light in Offices and common areas by
providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction. Smart systems help automatically
turn off lights in offices where employees leave by 6.30 pm. The common areas and gardens
in our projects have solar lights installed to increase our usage of renewable power.

Renewable Energy Enhancement - We have achieved India’s first IFC Certified Zero Carbon
building i.e. Ramanujan Intellion Park, Chennai. Ramanujan Intellion Park runs on 93%
renewable energy. With rooftop solar plant installed, it uses 1 kwh renewable energy per
Sqa.ft. There have been 45% energy savings for lift operations through regenerative drive
systems. Ramanujan Intellion Park, Chennai is LEED and IFC Edge Advanced certified. At
Uchit Highway, subsidiary Company has planted approx. 5000 avenue plants along the
national Highway in FY 22-23. On 17th July 22 plantation drive conducted by inhouse staff
along with NHAI and |IE and planted 1000 Nos plants in a single day.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption and Benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

The Company has invested in various technologies from design to delivery to improve
quality and project timelines. Out of which the below technologies contribute to
sustainability by minimizing waste, optimizing energy/resource usage, reducing
environmental impact and promoting long-term operational efficiency.

* Drone usage in Construction Monitoring: Drones monitor our construction progress,
identifying inefficiencies and potential areas for improvement resulting in the
optimization of construction resources and processes.

* QA checklist using Autodesk Build ensures that construction activities meet specific
quality standards and prevent errors and defects and avoids unnecessary material
and resource consumption.
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* Design collaboration identifies clash detection and eliminates the need for rework.

* Our Command Centre monitor, control and coordinate various systems and
processes allowing for efficient resource management, proactive maintenance, and
effective incident response.

« The adoption of Cloud computing and SaaS improved energy efficiency and
resource optimization and reduced e-waste generation.

« Our Digital customer onboarding platform provides a sustainable alternative to
traditional, paper-based processes. It reduces paper waste and minimizes the need
for physical travel.

* HR digitization of the entire employee lifecycle from "hire to retire” including
employee awards and mental health and wellness and Digital Learning platforms
which reduces the usage of paper, prints and travel requirements in the complete
process lifecycle.

- Digital signatures, Online Vendor Portal and Management Dashboards eliminate
the need for physical paper documents, reducing paper waste and promoting a
paperless workflow hence reducing carbon emissions by eliminating the need for
physical transportation of documents for signing.

* Remote construction monitoring reduces the need for frequent on-site visits,
minimizing travel-related carbon emissions, optimizing resource utilization and
improving project efficiency and reducing environmental impact.

We have adopted Microsoft technologies like Teams and Office collaboration facilities
which help us to do virtual meetings, reduce paper waste, optimize processes and promote
sustainable work practices. These facilities enhance productivity and reduce environmental
impact by reducing travel, minimum paper usage and e-waste and energy.

(ii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)- The Company has not imported any technology
during the last three years immediately preceding the FY 2022-23.

(iii) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development. The Company has not incurred
any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2022-23.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Below mentioned is the information relating to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo for the
year ended March 31, 2023:

Foreign Exchange Earned: NIL
Foreign Exchange Spent: INR 99,16,863/-

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure F

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful
commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and
fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors
and the society at large. Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices
have been the Company’s hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company
has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. The Company
has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and the
Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its non-
executive directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which suitably
incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The Company’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened
through the Tata Business Excellence Model, the Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited’s
Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of Corporate Disclosure
Practices (“Insider Trading Code”). To the extent possible, the Company had complied
with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 15 to 27 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”). Pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated
March 29, 2023, the applicability of the said regulations/provisions has extended the ‘comply
or explain’ period for High Value Debt Listed Entities in respect of Corporate Governance till
March 31, 2024.

Board of Directors

i. As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 6 Directors. Out of the 6 Directors, 3 are
Independent Directors, 2 are Non-Executive Directors and 1 is Executive Director. The
profiles of Directors is placed on the website of the Company https://www.tatarealty.in/
board-of-directors. The present strength of the Board meets the requirement of
Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ii. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than 10 public companies.
None of the Independent Directors serves as an independent director on more than
7 listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public
companies as on March 31, 2023 have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors
is related to each other.

iii. Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules
framed thereunder. Interms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, confirmations
from Independent Directors have been received confirming that they are not aware
of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the declarations
received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management. Further, the
Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent
Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section




150 of the Act, read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014.

iv. There were seven Board Meetings held during the year under review and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings
were held on May 10, 2022, May 28, 2022, June 15, 2022, August 10, 2022, November
9, 2022, February 10, 2023 and March 10, 2023. The necessary quorum was present for
all the meetings.

v. Web link of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors: https:/www.
tatarealty.in/investor-info

vi. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”), names of other listed entities in which the Director is a director and
the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them
in other Public Limited Companies as on March 31, 2023 are given herein below. Other
directorships do not include directorships of Private Limited Companies, foreign
companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act. Further, none
of Director is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than
five committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director.
For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship
and membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
has been considered as on March 31, 2023, as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Name of the Category Number | Whether Number of Number of Directorship
Director of Board | attended Directorships Committee positions | in other listed
(DIN) Meetings | last AGM in other Public held in other Public | entity (Category
attended | held on Companies Companies of Directorship
during 14/09/ -
FY 2022 All
2022- (Yes/No) professional)
2023
Chairman | Member | Chairman | Member
Mr. Banmali | Non- 7 out Yes 5 2 2 The Tata Power
Agrawala Indepen- of 7 Company
Designation: | dent, Limited (Equity
Chairman Non- Listed);
DIN: Executive and Tata
00120029 Housing
Development
Company
Limited (Debt
Listed)
Mr. Sanjay Non- 6 out Yes 6 0 3 Tata Housing
Dutt Independent, | of 7 Development
Designation: | Executive Company
MD & CEO Limited (Debt
05251670 Listed)
And
Infopark
Properties
Limited
(Debt Listed)

55




Mrs.
Sandhya
Shailesh
Kudtarkar
Designation
Independent
Director
DIN:
00021947

Independent,
Non-
Executive

7 out
of 7

Yes

Tata Housing
Development
Company
Limited

(Debt Listed);

Mr.
Prabhakar
Panda
Designation:
Independent
Director

DIN:
02860918

Independent,
Non-
Executive

7 out
of 7

No

Mr. Ankur
Dalwani**
Designation:
Non-
Executive
Director
DIN:
10091697

Non-
Independent,
Non-
Executive

NA

NA

Tata Housing
Development
Company
Limited (Debt
Listed)

Mr. Sudip
Mullick**
Designation:
Independent,
Non-
Executive
Director

DIN:
06942241

Independent,
Non-
Executive

NA

NA

Tata Housing
Development
Company
Limited (Debt
Listed)

vii. During FY 2022-23, to the extent possible, information as mentioned in Part A of
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its
consideration.

viii. During FY 2022-23, 1 (one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on
March 28, 2023.

ix. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

X. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

xi. The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for
the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:
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Skills

Global Business

Detailing of such skills

Understanding, of  global business
dynamics, across various geographical
markets, industry verticals and regulatory
jurisdictions.

Name of Directors, who have such
skills/expertise/competence

Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. Sanjay Dutt
and Mr. Ankur Dalwani

Strategy, Finance
and Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic
choices and experience in guiding and
leading management teams to make
decisions in uncertain environments.

Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. Sanjay Dutt

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. Prabhakar
Panda, Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mr. Ankur
Dalwani

Governance

Experience in developing governance
practices, serving the best interests of
all stakeholders, maintaining board and
management accountability, building long-
term effective stakeholder engagements
and driving corporate ethics and values.

Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. Sanjay Dutt

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. Prabhakar
Panda, Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mr. Ankur
Dalwani

Legal

With expertise in compliance regulations
and dispute resolution mechanisms

Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mrs. Sandhya
Kudtarkar

*Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar and Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal had resigned w.e.f. 31-03-2023
**Mr. Ankur Dalwani and Mr. Sudip Mullick were appointed w.e.f. 29-03-2023

xii. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the
expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other
material reasons other than those provided: None

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific
areas. These include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Board of
Directors and the Committees also take decisions by Resolutions passed through circulation
which are noted by the Board/respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings.
The Minutes and the gist of minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board are circulated
to the Board of Directors for noting.

Owing to amendment to the SEBI Listing Regulations dated September 07, 2021, the Company
was classified as High Debt Listed Company, having listed NCD’s of more than Rs.500
Crore and the Chairman of the Board, also being related to Promoter Group. Accordingly,
to comply with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on March 22, 2022, approved the constitution Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee. Pursuant to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the
Company and appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Director as
also Independent Director, the Board re-constituted the Committees of the Board as follows
with effect from March 31, 2023:

(a) Audit Committee
Composition of the Committee:

Sr. No. Name of Committee member Designation

1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member
3 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
4 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
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The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Act and the Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. All the Members have ability to
read and understand the financial statements and possess relevant finance and / or audit
experience. Further, the Committee had met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review.
The said meetings were held on May 10, 2022, May 28, 2022, June 15, 2022, August 10, 2022,
November 9, 2022, February 09, 2023 and February 10, 2023. The details of the presence of
Members are given herein below:

Name of Committee member Meeting Attendance
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 7 out of 7
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda 7 out of 7
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar 7 out of 7
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)
4 Mr. Sudip Mullick NA

(Appointed as Member in Committee w.e.f.
March 31, 2023)

5 Mr. Sanjay Dutt NA
(Appointed as Member in Committee w.e.f.
March 31, 2023)

Terms of reference

The terms of reference shall be as per Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read along
with Part C of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The previous AGM of the Company was held on September 14, 2022 and was attended by
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the
year.

Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are attended
by the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary, the Statutory Auditors, the Head -
Internal Audit and other persons, as the Committee may consider appropriate.

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
Composition of the Committee:

Composition of the Risk Management Committee

Name of the Board member Designation in Committee
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Chairperson
2 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
3 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

The terms of reference of the RMC shall be as specified in Regulation 21 read along with Part
D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations including functions related to cyber security
of the Company.

Further, the Committee had met 2 (Two) times during the year under review. The said
meetings were held on August 09, 2022 and January 20, 2023. The details of the presence
of Members are given herein below:
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Sr. No. Name of Committee member Meeting Attendance ‘
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 2 out of 2
2 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 2 out of 2
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar 2 out of 2
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)
4 Mr. Sudip Mullick NA
(Appointed as Member in Committee w.e.f.
March 31, 2023)

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”)

Composition of the Committee:

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Name of the Board member Designation in Committee
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member

The terms of reference of the SRC shall be to specifically look into various aspects of interest
of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders and do such other acts as
prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read along with Part D of Schedule
[l of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Further, the Committee had met 1 (One) time during the year under review. The said meeting
was held on February 09, 2023. The details of the presence of Members are given herein
below:

Sr. No. Name of Committee member Meeting Attendance

1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 1out of 1
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 1 out of 1
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda 1 out of 1

During the financial year under review, the Company has neither received any investor
complaints nor any complaints received by the Company are pending or remained unresolved
for the year ended March 31, 2023. Further, Ms. Rashmi Jain, Company Secretary of the
Company has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

a. Non-Executive Directors

The Company paid Sitting fees to the Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and Independent
Directors (“IDs”) for attending meetings of the Board and the Committees of the Board.
The details of the same are, as under:




Name of the Director(s) Sitting Fees paid for attending Board/
Committee Meetings held during FY 2022-23

Mr. Banmali Agrawala
Designation: Chairman Rs. 2,00,000/-
DIN: 00120029

Mr. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar
Designation: Independent Director Rs. 18,60,000/-
DIN: 00021947

Mr. Prabhakar Panda
Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 02860918

Rs. 15,20,000/-

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal
Designation: Director

DIN: 00057333

(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

Rs. 1,40,000/-

Mr. Farokh Subedar
Designation: Director

DIN: 00028428

(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

Rs. 17,40,000/-

Mr. Sudip Mullick
Designation: Independent Director NA
DIN: 06942241

(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

Mr. Ankur Dalwani

Designation: Director

DIN: 10091697

(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

NA

The Remuneration Policy of the Company which, inter alia, lays down the criteria of making
payments to non-executive directors is available on the website of Company at https:/www.
tatarealty.in. None of the NEDs and IDs had any other pecuniary relationships or transactions
with the Company during the year under review, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee
of the Company.

b. Managing Director

Terms of appointment and remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director are as
under

Particulars Details

Period of appointment April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2023
Period of re-appointment April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2028

Notice Period and Severance Fees | The Services of the Managing Director may be
terminated earlier by either party giving the other
Party three months’ notice of such termination or
the Company paying three months’ remuneration
and other pro-rated incentive / commission (at the
discretion of the Board), in lieu of such notice. There
is no separate provision for payment of Severance
fees.
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Stock Options NIL

Fixed component (a) Rs.49556712/-
Bonus/Incentive Remuneration Rs.37500000/-
for FY 2022-23 to be paid in FY

2023-24 (b)

Perquisites and allowances (c) NIL

Retirement benefits (d) Rs.2202192/-
Pension (e) NIL
Commission (f) NIL

Salary for FY 2022-23 Rs. 89258904*/-
(a+b+c+d+e+f)

*As per the approval of the shareholders, a part of the Managing Director’s remuneration is
being reimbursed from Tata Housing Development Company Limited (THDC).

General Body Meetings

(a) Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Financial Date Special
Year Resolutions
Passed
2019-20 |29/09/2020 | 01:30 p.m. | Through Video Conferencing To approve
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means issuance of Non
(OAVM). The deemed venue for Convertible
the 13th AGM was the registered Debentures on
office of the Company E Block, Private Placement
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, |basis
Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033
2019-20 |21/07/2021 | 0500 pm. | Through Video Conferencing (VC) / | i- Payment of
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). | Remuneration to
The deemed venue for the 14th | Mr. Sanjay Dutt,
AGM was the registered office of | Managing Director
the Company E Block, Voltas Prem- | of the Company
ises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, | for the period
Mumbai - April 1, 2021 to
400033 March 31, 2023;
and
ii- To approve
issuance of
NonConvertible
Debentures
on Private
Placement basis
2019-20 [14/09/2022 [11.30 a.m. | Through Video Conferencing | i. Issuance of
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means | NonConvertible
(OAVM). The deemed venue for|Debentures
the 15th AGM was the registered | on Private
office of the Company E Block, | Placement
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, | basis
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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(b) Extraordinary General Meeting:

Financial Date Special
Year Resolutions
Passed
2021-22 16/11/2021 0430 pm. | Through Video Conferencing (VC) To approve
/ Other Audio Visual Means sale of 0.001%
(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM | NonCumulative,
was the registered office of the Compa- | NonRedeemable,
ny E Block, Voltas Compulsorily and
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Fully Convertible
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 Preference Shares,
(“CCPS”) held by the
Company of TRIL
Constructions Ltd
“TCL™)
21/12/2021 02:00 Through Video Conferencing (VC) i- To approve
p.m. / Other Audio Visual Means divestment/transfer
(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM | of 100%
was the registered office of the Company | stake/securities of
E Block, Voltas Durg Shivnath
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Expressways Private
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 Limited
ii- To approve
divestment/transfer
of 100%
stake/securities of
TRIL Infopark
Limited
2022-23 15/06/2022 10.45 Through Video Conferencing (VC) i. Approve
a.m. / Other Audio Visual Means Issuance of
(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM | Non-Convertible
was the registered office of the Company | Debentures on
E Block, Voltas Private Placement
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Basis.
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 ii. Appointment of
Mr. Prabhakar
Panda as an
Independent
Director
iii. Appointment of
Mrs. Sandhya
Kudtarkar as
an Independent
Director
2023-24 16/06/2023 11.00 Through Video Conferencing (VC) i. Approve re
a.m. / Other Audio Visual Means appointment of

(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM
was the registered office of the
Company E Block, Voltas Premises, T
B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033

r. Sanjay Dutt as
Managing Director

& Chief Executive
Officer of the
Company.

ii. Appointment of
Mr. Sudip Mullick as an
Independent Director
iii. Appointment of
Mr. Ankur Dalwani as
Director, liable to retire
by rotation Kudtarkar
as an Independent
Director

62




(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot - details of voting
pattern - None.

(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise - Not applicable.

(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot -
None.

(f) Procedure for postal ballot - Not applicable.

Means of Communication

The ‘Investor Relations’ section on the Company’s website (www.tatarealty.in) keeps the
investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely
information such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons responsible
for resolving investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can also send in their queries/
complaints at the designated email address at trilsec@tatarealty.in. Financial Results are
normally published in free press journal newspaper. During the year under review, there were
no presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

General shareholder information

(a) Annual General Meeting for FY 2023
Date: July 21, 2023
Time: 11:30 A.M. through audio visual means at
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 (for purpose of recording location)

(b) Financial Year: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(c) Dividend Payment: Not Applicable

(d) Listing on Stock Exchange and Listing Fees:

Name and Address of the Type of Securities Listed

Stock Exchange
BSE Limited
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001

Non-Convertible Debentures

Listing Fees as applicable have been paid for FY 2022-23 and 2023-24.
(e) Stock Codes/Symbol: Not Applicable*
(f) Market Price data - high, low during each month in last financial year - Not Applicable*

(g9) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index
etc. - Not Applicable*

(h) In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the
reason thereof. - Not Applicable

(i) Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are, given below:
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Registrar and Transfer Agents

For Equity Shares For Non - Convertible Debentures
KFIN Technologies Limited Universal Capital Securities Private
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial Limited
District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Address: 21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya
Hyderabad - 500 032 Saibaba Temple, Mahakali Caves Road,
Phone: 040-67162222, Fax: 040- Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093
23001153 Tel :+91 (22) 2820 7203-05 / 2825 7641
Contact person: Mr. Gopala Krishna KV | F: +91 22 2820 7207
gopalakrishna.kvs@kfintech.com Email: ravi@unisec.in
Contact Person: Mr. Ravindra Utekar
Website: www.unisec.in

(i) Share Transfer System:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023
and are freely transferable.

(k) Distribution of Equity shareholding as on March 31, 2023:
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited.

(I) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023.
Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”)
allotted to the Company’s equity shares is INE371K01016.

(m) Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or
any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not
Applicable

(n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:- Not Applicable
(o) Plant locations: - Not Applicable

(p) Address for correspondence:
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg,
Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

(a) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during
the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit
programme or any scheme or proposal: All the Equity shares of the Company are in
dematerialized form as on March 31,2023. Under the Depository System, the International
Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”) allotted to the Company’s equity shares is
INE371KO01016.

(r) Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund: During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence
certain details are not applicable to the Company.
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Other Disclosures:

(a) disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of listed entity at large:

There were no material related party transactions during the year under review that
have a conflict with the interest of the Company.

(b) details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the last three years: None

(c) details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy and affirmation that
no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee. The Company has a
Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been
denied access to the Chairman as detailed in the Whistle Blower Policy. The said policy
has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

(d) details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements; The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”)
became applicable to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply
or explain’ basis until March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to
notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. The Company
is in the process of taking necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining
the SEBI Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from
April 1, 2024.

(e) web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed; Following is
the web link, where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed at https://
www.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(f) web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions; Following is the
web link, where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed https:/
www.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(9) disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable

(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on
the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authority: The Company has obtained certificate from M/s. D. A.
Kamat & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority. The same is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure |.

(j) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed
along with reasons thereof: None




(k) total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of
which the statutory auditor is a part.

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors is given below:

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars Amount Amount

Audit Fees 1.46
Tax Audit Fees 0.5
Certification and other 0.5
Services 0.1
Total 1.57

() disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

(m) disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of
loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’: Nil

(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such
subsidiaries:

Name of Date and Place of Name and date of appointment of the
the Material Incorporation statutory auditors
Subsidiary
TRIL Infopark | Incorporated on March | The Members at the Annual General Meeting
Limited 20, 2008 at Chennai, | held on September 29, 2022 appointed M/s.
Tamil Nadu B SR & Co. LLP, as the Statutory Auditors of

the Company, to hold office for a period of
five years from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) until conclusion of
the AGM of the Company to be held in the

year 2027.
TRIL IT4 Private |Incorporated on | The Members at the Annual General Meeting
Limited January 04, 2014 at|held on September 23, 2022, appointed M/s.

Mumbai, Maharashtra |B S R & Co. LLP, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a period
of five years from the conclusion of this
Eighth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) until
conclusion of the Thirteenth AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.
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TRIL Urban Transport
Private Limited

Incorporated on
8, 2007 at Delhi (The
Company was initially
incorporated as Pioneer
Infratech Private Limited
and the name was
changed to TRIL Urban
Transport Private Limited
with effect from May 25,
2011. The Company has
shifted its registered
office from the state
of Delhi to the state of
Maharashtra with effect
from September 14,
2016).

May

The Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting
(EGM) held on April 27, 2023, appointed M/s.
MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, from this EGM until the conclusion
of the ensuing 16th Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in the year 2023. (Casual
Vacancy)

TRIL Roads Private
Limited

Incorporated on
September 27, 2007 at
Mumbai, Maharashtra
(The Company was
initially incorporated
as Navinya Buildcon
Private Limited and
the name was changed
to TRIL Roads Private
Limited with effect from
December 18, 2009).

The Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting
(EGM) held on April 27, 2023, appointed M/s.
MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, from this EGM until the conclusion
of the ensuing 16th Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in the year 2023. (Casual
Vacancy)

Hampi Expressways
Private Limited

Incorporated
23, 2015 at
Maharashtra.

on April
Mumbai,

The Members at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 21, 2022, appointed
M/s. MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a term of five
consecutive years from the conclusion of this
7th AGM until the conclusion of 12th AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.

Uchit Expressways
Private Limited

Incorporated on October
10, 2016 at Mumbai,
Maharashtra.

The Members at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 21, 2022, appointed
M/s. MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a term of five
consecutive years from the conclusion of this
6th AGM until the conclusion of 11th AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.

Durg Shivnath
Expressways Private
Limited

Incorporated on August
13, 1997 at Chhattisgarh
(The Company was
initially incorporated
as SMS Shivnath
Infrastructure Limited
and the same was
converted into private
limited Company i.e. SMS
Shivnath  Infrastructure
Private Limited with
effect from April 29, 2010.
Further, the name of the
Company was changed
to Durg Shivnath
Expressways Private
Limited with effect from
July 10, 2017).

The Members at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 21, 2022, re-appointed
M/s. MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a further term
of five consecutive years from the conclusion of
this 25th AGM until the conclusion of 30th AGM of
the Company to be held in the year 2027.
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Pune IT City Metro |Incorporated on March | The Members at the Annual General Meeting
Rail Limited 13, 2019 at Pune, | (AGM) held on September 21, 2020, appointed
Maharashtra. M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants
LLP, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company,
to hold office for a term of five consecutive years
from the conclusion of this 1st AGM until the
conclusion of 6th AGM of the Company to be held
in the year 2025.

Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of subparas (2) to (10)

above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed:

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”) became applicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read
with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. The Company is in the process of taking
necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining other regulations of the SEBI
Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from April 1, 2024.

The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary

requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il have been adopted:

i. The Company has appointed separate post of Chairman and the Managing Director, such
that Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not related to the Managing Director.

ii. The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the Company
on certain matters of the Company.

The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62(1A) of SEBI Listing Regulations

shall be made in the section on corporate governance of the annual report.

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”) became applicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read
with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. The Company is in the process of taking
necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining other regulations of the SEBI
Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from April 1, 2024The
Company has provided the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on
Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI
Listing Regulations for the quarters ended June 30, 2022, September 30, 2022, December
31, 2022 and March 31, 2023.

Declaration signed by the Managing Director stating that the members of board of directors
and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of

board of directors and senior management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive
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Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company’s website
(www.tatarealty.in). All the Directors on the Board and Senior Management Personnel of
the Company have affirmed compliance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by
the Managing Director to this effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure Il.

Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing Company secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with the directors’

report.

The Company has obtained compliance certificate from the M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co., Practising
Company Secretaries, on corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end of this
report and marked as Annexure lll.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account: Not

Applicable

By order of the Board of Directors

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029

Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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TATA

Annexure II
Declaration by the CEO on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015
I, Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEO of the Company hereby declare that all the

members of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with Code of Conduct, as applicable to them, in respect of the financial year 2022-23.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

=1 Sudr

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director and CEO
DIN : 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 21, 2023

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in
Website: www.tatarealty.in
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

PR

Farhad Bamiji

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:231056234BGXDYB6780
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian rupees in crorers)

A to the stat t of cash flows
R lliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars 1 April 2022 Flnal;cing Cash N‘un-cash Changes 31 March 2023
lows Other Changes)
Long-term borrowings
Non Converlible Debentures 1,970.00 (445.00) - 1,525.00
Shortterm borrowings
Commercial Papars from Mutual funds 1,820.00 {1,795.70)) {24.30) -
Shorl Term Loan from Bank 290,00 (280.00) - -
Others
Finance costs 5395 (177 44) 18583 62.34
Tatal 4,133.95 (2,708.14) 161.53 1,587.34
Particulars Financing Cash| Non-Cash Changes
1 April 2021

p Flow {Other Cha ) 31 March 2022
Long-term borrowings
MNon Convertible Debentures 2,370.00 (400.00}) - 1,970.00
Short-term borrowings
Commercial Papers from Mutual funds B75.00 1,146,234 (1.34) 1,820.00
Snaort Tenm Loan from Bank - 290.00 = 290.00
Others
Finance costs 198.06 [361.07) 216.96 5395
Total 3,243,086 675.27 21563 4,133.95

st Eag
Lot
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BSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

14th Fleor, Central B Wing and North C Wing,
Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,

Western Express Highway,

Goregaon {East), Mumbai — 400063, India
Telephone: +91 (22) 6257 1000

Fax: +81 (22) 6257 1010

ndependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tata Reaiy and Infrastructure Limited
{hereinaftar referred to as the “Holding Company"} and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), its associates and its joint venturas, which comprise the
consclidated balance shest as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss
{including other comprahensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including & summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referrad to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statamants of such subsidiaries,
associates and joint veniures as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statemants give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) in the manner so required
and give a trug and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consclidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and joint ventures as at 31 March 2023, of its
consolidated prefit and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

_Basis for Cpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Stafements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associates and joint venturas in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial staternents in terms of the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
" fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence oblained by us afong with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred 1o in
paragraph (b} of the “Other Matters” saction below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 1B(a) of the consolidated financial statements, which states that the Holding
Company had made a written rapresentation in May 2022 to the Reserve Bank of India ('RBi’) requesting
that registration as an NBFC may not presently be Insisted upon, based on ‘Principal business Tast'. The
RBI has not yet reverted on the maiter,

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this mattar.

Regletarad Offica:
B 8 R & Cuo. (a parinerehip firm with Regl: Hao. BA31223) convarted it B § R & Co. LLP (a 14th Fioor, Cenlral B Wing end Morh C Wing, Hesco IT Park 4, Nesro
Limiled Llighilty P i with LLP Regi Np. AAB-8781) with sffact from Oclober 14, 2013 Cenlar, Weab Highway, Goragaon {East), Mumbal - 400053
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

- Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a wholg, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not pm\nde a separate opinlon on these matters.

!mpafrment of certam Non cu:rent assets o

See Note 4{(a) , 4(c), 7, 8, 9 of consolldated financlal statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment assessment of cartain
Non-current assets [Aqresgate carrying value on
31 March 2023 : Rs. 8,842.87 Cr]

The Group has the fellowing account balances as
disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet as at
March 31, 2023:

Particulars Amount (Rs in
Cr)
Investment property 1,022.79
Goodwill 21172
Intangible assets under | 7.89
development -Service
Concession Arrangements
Intangible  assets  under | 3,503.21
Service Concassion
Arrangements
Investment accounted using | 4,087.26
Equily Mathod

The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets
under development for impairment annually. For
other non-current assets, the Group assesses at
each reporting date, whether there is any indication
that asset may be impaired. in such case, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount and compares it
to the carrying value of such assels,

The determination of the recoverahle valua of such
non-clirent assets involves significant judgements,
assumptions and estimates.

Our precedures includes the following:

-

- external independent valuer involved in

Evaluated and testsd the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of Holding Company's key
internal controls in relation to impairmant

assessment of these non-current assats.

Assessed management's determination of
recoverable amount as higher of fair value
less costs to sell and valua in use.

Evaluated the objectivity and
competence of the Group appointed

determination of fair value of non-current
assets .

We assessed the identification of relevant
cash generating unit {CGU) to which such
non-current assets are allocated.

Tested the assumptions such as such as
market rent levels, toll revenues,
expenditure to be incurred, vacancy
factors, prevailing market yields, market
transactions and cash flows, which
included comparing these results with
externally derived data as well as aur own
assessments basad on our knowledge of
the client and the industry.

Obtained understanding of the forecasted
cash flows based on our knowledge of the
Holding Company and the markets in
which they operate.

Performed our own sensilivity analysis.
Assessed the effect of possible reductions
in market rent levels, toll revenues,
expenditure to be incurred, growth rates
and forecasted cash flows and their impagct
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Considering the amounts, significant judgements, on the falr values.
assumptions and estimates involved, this is

considered as a key audit matter. *  Assessed the comparabiity of the

forecasts with historical informaticn.

+ Involved our valuation specialists for
evaluating the key assumptions used in
valuation. Tested arithmetic accuracy of
the cash flow models prepared by the
Halding Company.

* Assessed Group’s comparison of the
recoverable amount to the carrying value of
the non-current assets and its testing
of impairment provision.

* Performed analyfical procedures by
evaluating inputs, assumptions and fair
values on a year-on-year basis and
obtalned explanation for the variations.

+  Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements,
including disclosures of key assumptions,
judgments and sensitivities as per
requirements of relevant Ind AS.

| Other information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other infarmation comprises the informaticn included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial stataments does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otharwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit reports of other
auditors., we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this sther information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consoclidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
inceme, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associates and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principies generally accepted in India,
including the ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Management and Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group and of its associates and
joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detacting frauds
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and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriaté accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemal financial contrels, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo the preparation and presentation of the consolldated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Management and Board of Direclors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint venturaes are responsible for assessing
the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concem basie of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or tc cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint
ventures are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are {o obain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material migstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregata,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As pan of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intantional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

*  Obfain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonzbleness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriatensess of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, hased on the audit
evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosuras are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based eon the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its asscciates and joint ventures to caase to
cantinue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial staterents represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manmner that achieves fair presentation.

*+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
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husiness activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures to axpress an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consclidated financial statements, which have heen audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit oplnion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further
describad in paragraph (b) of the section titled “Other Matters” In this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the indepsndent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them al! relationships and other
matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most signiflcance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current perlod and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes pubtic disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a2 matter should not be communicated in our report hecause the adverse conssquences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

" Other Matters '

a. The consolidated financlal statements of the Group and its associates and joint veniures for the year
ended 31 March 2022 were audited by the predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified
opinion on 15 June 2022,

h. We did not audit the financial statements of fourteen subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflacts
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 6,141 Crore as at 31 March 2023, fotal revenues
{before consolidation adjusiments) of Rs. 532 Crore and nat cash flows {before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs. 22 Crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consclidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit (and other
comprehensive income) of Rs. 0.72 Crore for the year ended 31 March 2023, in respect of one associates
and two joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial
gtatements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, and our
report in terms of sub-section {3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associatas is based solely on the reporte of the other auditors.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above maiters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of tha other auditors.

‘Report on Dther Legal and Reguiatory Requiréments :

1. As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Saction 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the axtent
applicable, that:
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aferesaid consclidated
financial statements.

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consoclidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and tha reports of the other auditors.

The consclidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of

. account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Saction 133 -of the Act.

The matter described in the Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our gpinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Holding Company.

On the hasis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Helding Company and the
repotts of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companias and joint
venture companies incorporated in india, none of the directors of the Group companies, its
asscciate companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on
31 March 2023 from heing appointed as a director in terms of Section 1684(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial conirols with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint
venture companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to cur separate Report in "Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in cur opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given fo us and based on the consideration of the repart of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted
i the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a.

The consclidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint
ventures. Refer Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group, its associates and joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023,

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or ifs subsidiary companies, associate companies and
joint venture companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate

companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial statemants have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint venture companies respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and beliaf, other than as disclosed in the Note 62(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have heen advancad or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies to or in any other
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”), with the undarstanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behali of the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies, associate companias and joint ventura
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companies {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantae, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The respective managament of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint venture companies respactively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 62(b} o the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint venture companies from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entitles (“Funding Parties™, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidlary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies shall directly or indirectly, lend cr invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultmate
Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or the llke on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(it} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies,
associate companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors notice
that has caused us or other auditors to believa that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(i of Rule 11(g), as provided under (i) and (ii} above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companles, associate companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India have nelther declared nor paid any dividend during the year,

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicabla for the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary companies, asscciate companies and joint venture
companies only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of tha Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reparts
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during tha
cuvent year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint
venture companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 187 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Cempany and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies is naot in excess of the limit laid down under Seclion 197 of
the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of
the Act which are requtired to be commented upon by us.
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ForBSR & Co. LLP
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X
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Farhad Bam]i

Partner

Membership No.: 105234
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ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’' section of our report of even date}

{od) In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
qualiications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consolldated
financial statements.

ForBSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WN-100022

AN

Farhad Bamji

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.; 105234
Date: 25 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:231056234BGX0YC2644
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause {i) of S8ub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2A{g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”} as of and for the year endad 31 March 2023,
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, its
associate companies and joint venture companias, as of that date.

_Mhnagement’s'and Eoard of Directors' Responsibilities for Inter.n_a'[-F_inal.tcial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are rasponsible for establishing and

maintaining internal finangial controls based on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guldance Note”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate intermal financial
controls that were cperating effectively for ensuring the crderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective Company's palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prascribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable {0 an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethicat requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable
agsurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such contrals operated effectivaly in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference ¢ financial statements and their operating effectivenass. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with refsrence to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
hased on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stetements, whether due
to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidance obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venfure companies in terms of their
reports referred {0 in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with raference to financial statements.

. Meaning of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Fin_ahcial Stégterﬁent‘s-

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accardance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inciude those
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policies and procedures that (1) partain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to parmit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and
directors of the company; and {3} provide reasonahle assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposltion of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limit_ations‘_df I'nternaf Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statemants,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management everride of controls, material misstatemants
due to arror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any svaluation of the intemal
financial controls with referenca to financial statements fo future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financlal controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion and basaed on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies, as were audited by the other auditers, the Holding Company and such companies
incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and joint venture
sompanies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were aperating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on
tha intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies
considering the éssential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note.

- Other Matter -

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)()} of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to fourteen
subsidiary companies, one associate and twe joint venture companies, which are companies incorperated
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248WMW-100022

R

Farhad Bamiji

Partner
Place: Murribai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDYC2544
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Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 33 Marvch 2023
{Currency: Judian tnpees o croms)
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For B SR & Cn, LLP For ani on belinlF oF e Board of Divectars of
Chartered Ascoontants ) Tula Reatty ond Infrasiructuve Limited
Fiere's Regisiration No.: 101245 W1 00022 CIiN: UT0102MIE2007 PLCT 68300 :
, i
AN \ “7 avaal ~——m== TN
e :
Farbad Bamji Banasalt Agraw, Saniay Dt
Parter Chairmzn Managing Dicectnr
log2 3L DI - 001206629 DIN - 05251670
Rastand
Cowpuny Seevatary
Wlermhership No: ACSIESTE
Bisnhai LT
Diakeds 25 MWay, 2023 Dated: 25 May, 2023
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Cwrency: Indian rupees in crores)

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Cash flows from operating activities :
Proiit before tax 2,860.44 171.29
Adjustments for:
Depreciation end amortization expense 181.00 303.33
Profit on gale of current investments in Mutual Funds {1.27) (4.60)
Mark 1o Market {gain) / loss on Derivative Contracts - {12.63)
Mark to Market gain on corrent investments in Mutnal funds {0.87) (1.0%)
Interest income (88.42) {13.34)
Finance costs 524,09 A88.62
Gain on remeasurement of previously held equity interest - (441,70}
Gain on loss of control in a subsidiaties {3,396.98) {15.01)
Share of loss ftom an associate and joint ventures 14987 45,70
Provision for diminuiion is value of Investments - 18.01
{Gain} / Loss on sala of property, plant and squipment (0.31) 0.01
Operating Profit before changes in working capital 421.55 739.63
Working capltal adjusiments:
{Iniecesse} in Trade Receivables (35.10} . {2,09)
Decrease in [nventories 5285 £9.26
{Decrease) / [ncrease in Loans, Other Financial Assets and Other Non-Current Assets and Other (39.86) ) 110.00
Current Asseis
{Decreasze) / Increase in Trade payables (18.73) 21.74
{Decrease) / Increase in Other financial linkilities, cumrent and non current liabilities and 762.44 (37.53)
provisions
Cash flows generated from operating activities 1,093,25 851.01
Tax (paid) nat of rafunds during ihe year (312.88) (12.48)
Net eash flows generated [roo operating activities 780.37 838.53
Cagh Mows from investing aetivitics :
Acquisition for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment {0.38) -
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 198 B.08
Acquisition for intangible assets / intangible assets inder development {65.37) (19121)
Acquisition for investment property / investment property under construction 4.34) 46.80)
Investment in joint ventures and assaclate (2,021.30) (555,00}
Redemption of equity shares of other investments - 304
Proceeds from sale of investments in mulnal funds 1,882.26 1,806.94
Investments in mutwal! funds (1,845.91) (1,664.33)
({Investment} / Redemption of fized deposits under lien (net) {37.44) 29.20
Payment made for acquisition of a subsidiary - (110.58)
Proceeds on account of sale of subsidiaries reaniting in loss of contro] 4,217.64 47.13
Interest received : 86,37 12.31
Net eash flows genorated from f (nsed in) invesling activities 221211 (672.22)
Cash flows from finarcing actlvities ¢
Proceeds / (Repeyment) from short term borrowings (nef) (2,251.25) 1,162,08
Proceeds from long term botrowings 607.08 2935926
(Repayment) of long term borrowings (1,261.77) (3,341.3%)
Principal payment of lease Habitities 0.13) {11y
Proceeds from Righls Issue 1,000.00 -
Finance costs paid (466.27) (950,29)
Met cach Oows (used in) financing aetivitios {2,372.34} (170.39)
Net inerzase f (deerease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+HB+C) 620,04 {4.07}
Cash and cash equivalenis at the begioning of the yeer 183.93 181,96
Increase in cach and eash equivelents due to aequisition of a subsidiary - 605
Decrease in cach and cash equiveients due to loss of contrel in a subsidiary (101.28) {0.01)
Cagh and cash equivakents af the end of year (vefer note 17) 702,60 183,93
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows as at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

{Curreney: Indian rapees in erores)

Muotes:

1) Cash and Cash aguivalents include the fllowing : 31 March 2023 1 March 2022
Cask and cash gquivalents
Cash balunce 0.17 Q.17
Balance with schedolod banks:
- In cotrent pecaunts an 105.73
- in dleposit accounis H68.60 78.03

T02.69 183.93
Reconcilintion of changes in liabilittes aristng from flnaoelng actlvities
Paritculars E Aprll 2022 Fiuanciog Aciubsilion ! Nen-CCash Changes 31 Mareh 20123
Cnsh Flows (Disposaf} of {Accrunls and Oiler
Short Tenn Borrawings 113026 £2,251.29) {13.66) 113,80 145
Loug Term Botrowlngs 7,002.09 (654.60) {1,969.88) {113.80) 4,484.62
Lanza Einbilitiea 128 (0.13) - - 1158
Toberest acorsd but not dus 8244 {46627y - 443,66 64.83
Tobal 9,334.97 E3,373.343é {1,883.54) 448,66 4,527.15
Partlcalacs 1 Aprit 2021 Finaueing Acquisition f Mon-Cash Changes 3 March 2022
Cagh. Flows {Disposal) of [Ateruals and Other
Subddlasies Atliaskmsnis)

Short Term Bortowings TE&rAa0 1,L62.08 356,32 {12804 2,158.26
Loug Tewn Bormewings 7,460,00 (38207 703 12804 109205
Lease Liabilitles 134 1 - - 128
Tuterest accrued bt not dua 21978 B50.29) - 81194 2,44
Fotal 8,249.08 (170.39) 443.04 8124 9,334.97

Note:

The Staterent of Cash Flows bas been prepared under the indirect mathod as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Tnd AS 7' on Slabement nf Cash flows.

‘The accompanying ooies | to &5 form o integral part of these consolidated Hoancial atatements,

i termy of our report of even date minched

For BS R & Co. LLY
Chartered Accouniante
Firmy's Registration Mo, 10124 8W/W- 100022

Farhnd Bamfi
Partner

loS284

Mumbai
Dated: 25 May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tutu Realty and Infrastencture Lirlted

CIN; URI02MH00TPLC168300

DN - 06720029

e | DItV e

Sanjuay Dutt
Marsging Director
DIV . 0525 L1570

\.

Compeny Secretary
Membership No: ACS189TS

Mot
Dated: 25 May, 2023
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
{Currancy: Indian rupees [n etores)

1
1A

1B
w

b}

Background and basis of preparation
Baclgronnd

Tata Reslty aod Infrastructure Limited (*the Parent Company™ or ‘the Company*) s 2 whelly owned subsidiery of Tata Sous Private Limited. Tha Perant Company
along with its subsidiarics, joint ventures and associates, collectively refosred o rs the “the Group” & cxclusively engaged in the business of real estate and
infimstrctuss developiment (including purclwse, construction or sale of immovable property, project management consultancy services and investment advisory
setvices) . These business activitics are mainly cartied out through Special Purpose Vahicles (SPVs) in the fonn of subsidiatiss, jolnt ventues and associates. In
carrying out such activities through the SPVs, the Parent Company funde the SPVs through a judicions mix of equity Investnems, loans or advances basis the
requireinent of each of the entities.

Basis of preparatlon

Statement of compliance and basls of preparation

These Consolidated financial statemants have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of s Compandzs Act, 2013 (the Act) and ofhier relevant provisions of the Act and presanted in the maomer
tequixed by Division IT to Sehedule 1H to the Act, after consideing the nature of the Parent Company’s business described ahove,

These Ind AS financiol statemants were approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 23 May 2023,

The Parent Company akong with its subsidiaries, jolnt ventutes and associates, collectively refermed to as the “the Group” remains exchusively engaged in principal
business of real estate and infrastuctine development (including purchase, construclion or sale of inmovable property, project manageners eonsuliancy seevices
and investiment advisory services). These business activities of the Group are mainly catried out thoough Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVS) In the fotm of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. In carrying out such activities tirough the SPVs, the Parent Company funds the SPVs through a judiclous mix of equity
invegtments, loats or advances basis the requirement of sach of the entittea,

‘Congidaring the neture of the business that the Parent Campany is ito, for the year ended March 31, 2023, while the Investments in SPY5 constitate more than
90% of ita tofal assers, however, the majority portion of its tatal income is gencrated from operations. Therefors, the Parent Company would not Bl within the
definition of & non-baoking finencial company as per the provisions of Section 451 (fy of the RBI Apt, 1934, The Parent Company expects this trend to contimue in
figture years also.

The Parent Compeany prepares is standalone Enanclals ln accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Ducing the financial vear ended 31 March
2022, a sipnificant amount of interest incomw and unrealized gafns was crodited to the Statement of Profii and Loss on aceount of ravaluation of the investments
(issund by 5PVs) in complienoe with Ind AS 109 requirerents. This resulted in incoroe fiom financial assets exceeding by imore than 50% of the gross incawe,
which was purely teraporaty in vature. The slowdown in the sconamy due to adverse conditions and temparary low residential salos in its projects, coupled with non-
recutring fair valuation gains had resulted in skewed opermting income, which in wanagewent's view was transtent and tetpomry i nahoe.

Therefore, the Farent Compary had mads a wtitten reprosentation in May 2822 to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} secldng clarifications and ¢hat registration aa an
NBFC may not presently be insisted upon, This wes basesd on “Principal bosiness Test” 23 por tha 1B Press Release No, 1998- 9671269 dated 08.04.1999, The
Farent Company had futther represented that 1t docs not intend ta carry on the business as a NBFC and will underlske appropriste measures o increase its opetating
incame. RBI hes nat yat raveriad on the matter.

Guing Concern

‘Fhe Parcnt Company ia primerily engaged in development of Comenercial and Infrasttucture projects to generat stable cash flows and eapital appreciation over the
life of the assets fecugh livestments in various project Specal Purpoas Veldeies (SPVS),

The Parent Company has incuered net loas of INR 146,17 crores during year ended 31 Mash 2023 (31 March 2022; nes loss of INR 5.24 crores) and bas a positive
nat worth of INR 5,823,39 crores as at that date (31 March 2022 INR 3,896.28 crores). As at 31 March 2023, the Parent Company has a not current Hability
position of INR 10522 evores (31 March 2022 INR 2,711.89 crores) where the cucreot Liabilitizs of INR. 1,040,53 crares akceed the cument assely of INR 925.31
cromes and include inventories of INI2 149.08 crores which dus to thelr nature may be realizable in periods beyond | year, Based on schedeled repsyment of
bortowings, INR 800,00 crotes {included in. the currant Nabifities figure of INR 1,040,53 crorcs above) is due for wepayment within 12 montés fram the approval of
these consalidated financial sfaterments.

Further, chiring the year ended 31 March 2023, the Patent Compeny bas entered into joint venture agreements with an jovestor whereby, it bas divested a part of its
stake i certaln assets and the proceeds of such divestient kas bown utilised to repay debt and have recognised gain. Accordingly, the overall debt (short-leom and
long-tarm) hes reduced from INR 4,080.00 crores as at 31 March 2022 to INR {,525.00 orores as at 31 March 2023, Also, during the year, the Parent Campany
has received additional equity of INR 1,000.00 crores fhom its ultimate holding comparny,

Munagstoent cash Sow projectlon for next 12 monfbs indisates that the Parent Compeny will incur operating losses, The Patent Company’s ability t mest its
oblipations flling due in pext 12 months depends on additional fmd raising froin the matket in the form of commensia] papers and Non-convertitde Debentures
(NCDs) and coutinued] finsnzial support fipm the wiimate holding company.

The Parent Company will raise fimds through issuance of commercial papets / NCDs / term loans ete. Accordingly, there will be adequata cash balanse to meet ifs
debt and fabilities uple 31 March 2024 &z and when they falt due for payment in the normval course of business,

Accordingly, fiie Board of Directers have prepared these consolidated financial atateménts on a going concern bagis and thevefore, the assets and Liabilities are
recorded on fhe basis that the Parent Company will be abls to wse or Tealize ils assets at least at the racorded amounts and dischatge fis Habilities in the vsaal coursc
of buginess,

salidated Enancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which i alsa the Company’s funstional aurrency, All the financial information have
fed n Indian Rupees (TNI) and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores with two dechmals, except for share data and as otherwise




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial sintements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Correnny: Indian rupees n crotes)

LY

©

]

Basts of measerement

The Congotidated Financial stab s have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the Following sssets and ligbilities which have been measwred at frir
value:

Certain financial asseis angd Habilitfes

Defined benefit plans - plan assets measored af fair value

Use of judgements and estimatos

B preparing these Consolidated financial statements, managament has made judgements, esiimates and assnptions that aifeet the application of accoumting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Egtlimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are recoguised prospectively,

{1} Judgements

Information ahoot judgemenis made in applying accounting policies that heve the most significant effeats ot the amownts recognised in the conzoliduted fnancial
statements mafaty perlatn to ihvestments accounted for nsing the equity method: whather the Group has significant influence ovor an investes as incloded in Note &
of the financial stateananta,

Control
It the Group awns less than one-helf of the voting power amd it is able to conttal the company wlich inter-alia provides the Group with powet to appoint majority of
the board of disectors and power over relevant activitisa, Congequently, the Group consolidates its investinent in such companies, (Refer Note No, 52(a))

If the Group owns more than one-half of the voting powes but it doss not have control over the Compunies then the CGiroup bas joint contro! over the companies, Tn
other words, decisionz about tha relevant activitles - ie. those that significantly affect the retuns of the anangement - require the affinnative consent of the
irvestors, Consequontly, the Group has classified its iterest in these compantes as jointly controiled entéty (Rafar Note no, S2{b).

(it Assmptions and estlmation wncertnintles

Information about assumptions and estimation wncertaintes that have a significent risk of vesulting {n A material adfustment during the year is incloded in tha
fiollowing notes:

Note 3 io & ~ Impairment st of non-foancial asssts: ley assumplions undenlying recoversble amounts inclding the recoverabifity of sxpanditirs on acquired
intangible asseta {goodwill);

Naote 3 to 8 — Useful lifs of Property, plant and equipment end other intangibles assets;

Note 12 - recopuition of deferred tas assets: availability of furre texable profit against which tax losses carried forward can he nged;

Note 27 — recognition and measurement of provisions and coutingencies: key assuuptions about the likaliivod and magnitsde of an cutflow of TEIOUCES)

Nota 35 - mueasurement of defined benefit obligations: key actverial assumpticna;

Note 50 ~ mequisition of subsidiary: fair value of the consideration transferred (inclnding contingent consideration} and feir velue of the assets acquired and
liabilities agsumed, measured on a provisional bagis;

Nate 52 - detenmining the fair value of investments an the basis of significant unobsorvable inputs; and

Note 52— impairment of financial naysts.

Measmvement of falr values

The Group's aceounting policies and discl quire the ont of fair values, for both finencial and non-financial assets and lisbilities. The Graup hias an
established control framework with respect to the measureroent of fair vahucs. The finance tenm has overall respongibility for oversesing all significant fair value
ucasyurstenis, fncluding Lavel 3 fair values, mud reports directly to the CFO,

They regularly review significant unoliservabilo inputs and vahuation adisiments, It third party Information is sed 1o measure fir valyes then fhe finpnoe team
asscases 1he gvidence obiained from the third parties & support the conclusion that such valustions meet the requi of Ind AS, including fe level i the fair
value hisrarchy in whdch such valuations shovld be classified,

When weasuring the: fair valuc of an asset or a liability, the Group uass observable marke data as far as posgible, Fair values are cateporized uto different levels in
a fair vahe histatchy based on the joputs used in the valuation techniques aa followa:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical asseis or liabilities,

Leval 2: inguts other than quoted prices included in Levol 1 that are abservable Tor the asset or lability, cither direstly {i.c. as prices) or indirectly (1.6, derived
froun prices).
Level 3: inpnuts for the asset ar liability that are nol based on cheervabls murket data (imobservable ings),

For assets ad liabilities \hat are recogmised in the financial statenwents on a recurring busiz, the Group determines whether transfers have oooumed between Jeval in
the hieratchy by re-nsseseing categorisatinn (based on the Jowest kovel input that is significant to the fair valne reaserement as & whole) at the end of each reporting

H the ivputs nsed to measure the fair value of ai asset or a liability fall intn different levels of the falr valus higrarchy, then the fair valu measurement is caieporized
in ita entirety in tha same level of the fair value hisrarchy as tiio fowest lovel inpot that iz sigaifiennt o the entive measarement,

Farther information about the assumptions inade in messuring the fair values is ingtuded in the follewing notes:
- Noie 4 - Investiment propenty ity
- Moke 4% - loss of control in subsidainy
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian upees in croves)
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Forelgn curreney trangastions

Foraign currency tranaactions are trunslated into the fanetional currency usiog the exchange rates at the dates of the ransactions, Foraign exclmge gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of sucl transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and linbflities denoimivated in forsign currencies at year snd exchange
tates are generally recopnized in profit or loss,

Non-monetary ftems that are measured based on historical cost ina foreign curmency are trenslated ot the exchangs rte at the date of the wansaction, Non-monetary
itormy thet are wweasured ac fir value o a foredgn currency are transtated vsing the exchange rates at the date when the fir value was detenmined, Translation
diftbrencas on aagets andt Nabdlities oanied at fhir vale ate teported s pat of the fair valne gain or loss. The pain or loay arising on translation of non-monetary
items meaaured at fair valus i3 treatsd in Hne with the tecoguition of the gatn or loss on the chauge in fair valus of the item (i.e., tamlation differances an jtems
whase fair value gain or Joss {a recognised in OCH or prafit or loss are also recognised in QCT or profit ot luss, respectively),

Current/ Non Coreent Classification

The Gromp classifies an saset 25 corrent asset when;

- it sxpects to ranlise the asset, or intends o sell or consume it, i its normal operating cysle;

- itholds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading,

- it expects o realise the aazet within twelva months after the teporting peried; or

- the agset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from belag exchanged or wsed o scitle a Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting
perlod.

Al other assels are classified a¢ now-current.

A Yability is clasaified 2z current when —

- it expects Io realise the asset, or intends to sell or consune it, in its oonnal opermling cyels;

- it holds the Lability primarily for the purposs of ttading;

= thw Hability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting perfod, or

- It dues not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability fr at least twelve wonths after the reporting perind, Tarms of 1 lability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in jts sottlstoent by the issue of equity instuments do not affset jts classificatlon.

All other iabilities are classified as non-current,

The apemting cycle is the time betwesn the acquisition of assets for p itgz and their realisation in cash ar cagh equivalents. The Oroup's normal operating cycle
is twelva monihs,

Significant aceounting policies

Basin of conselidation

Stubsidiaries

SBubsidinries are all entities over which the group has contral The group controls an cntity when the group 13 exposed to, or bas Tights te, variable retarns fhom itg
invalvernent with the entity and hes the ebility to affsct those retwms thtough its power 10 direct the relevant activities of the ontity. Subsidiaries are fully
consplidated from the dals on which control is trnsferred to the group, They ara daconsolidated fiom the date that control coases, Changes in the Group's intorest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted For as equity ensactions.

The gronp combines the fioanclal stabements of the pavent and #ts subsidiarizs [ine by line adding topether Kie ltems of assets, lighilites, equity, Income and
expanges, Intergroup transactions, bal and utwealised gaing on 1 tions between group companies ara elimisated. Unrealised losses ame also eliminated
unleas tha irensaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where DeCEdsAry (D ensuts
consi v with the policies adopted by tha group.

Nog-controlling interests in the resulis and equity of subsldiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and Joss, consolidated statement of
chanpss in equily aod balanos sheet respectively.

Jolnt arrangemeants

Undor Ind AS 111 Jolnt Arrangements, investmstds in jolnt arrangements ars classified a5 vither joint operations or joint venfiras, The classification depands on the
contractual rights and abligations of each investor, rather than the legal structuse of the joint arrangement, The gronp lias only jaint venturss.

Saint veniures
Joint ventures are entities over which the group has joint contr] along with another enlity. Interests in joint vennres are accountzd for using the equity method, after
initially betng recogsed at cost in the consolidated bal sheet, The i t is initially recognized at cost, and the eartying nmount 78 inctensed or decreased

to recognize the invesiot's aliats of the profit or loss of the investes after the acquisition date unkil the date on which joint control ceases.

Associzies

Asceciates are entitiea aver which e goup bas significant influence but aot control. Investmenis in associates are accounted for using tha equity mothed of
geconmting. The investment Ja initially recognizod at cost, and the canying amount js incrensed or decreased Lo recognize the investor’s share of the profit or lass of
the inyestes after the acquisition date uniil the date on which significant influencs ceases,

Lags of Contral

Changes in the Group's interost in a subssidiacy that do ot result in 2 loss of control are accounted for 63 equity fransactions, When the Group toses conirol over a
subsidiary, it derecopnises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiacy, and any related NCF and other conponents of equity. Any resulting gain or logs s recognised
in pwofit or loss. Any Interest relained i the foriner subsidiary is megswred at fir valuo when cooirol ia lost

Sepment reporiing
Opersting segmants are taported i 4 manner consistent with the internat reporting provided to the chief operaling decision maker (CODM). Chief operating
decision maker's function is to allacats the resonrces of the entily and access the performance of the eperating sogment of the Gronp.

The Maaaging Direcior asseases the financial performance aod positlon of the Group sad makes stategic decisions and is identified as being the chief operating

'd_c'cisigp\rgnlmr fior the Gronp, Refer nete 26 for segment nfonnation presaniad,
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Revenne on sale of completed property

The Group earns revenue from sake of completed property (residential and comnercial).

The Group recopniees revenua when it detenmines the satisfaction of perfonnance obligations at a point in time. Revenue is recognised upon tranefer of control of
proanisad products to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products, the Group retains
veither continuing menagerial involvemeni to the degree usvally associated with the ownership nor effective control over the completed property sold and it is
probable that the economic benefit and it s probable that the consideration to which the Group will be entitled ta an transfer of ¢ontrol of promised produsts to
customer will flow o the Group, the congideration can he measured reliably and substantial consideration has been recetved by the entity.

In arrangements for sale of uodts the Group has applied the guidance in IND AS 115, an “Revenue from comtract with customer”, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each distinet pecformance obligation. The atrangements with custemers generally meet the crlteria for considering sale of units as distinet
performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Growp has measured the revemse in respect of each performance obligation of a contract st its
relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when eold separately is the best evidence of its standalene selling prics. The
transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the tima value of money if the contract includes & significant financing component Any consideration payable to
the customear is adjusted to (ha trangaction price, unless it is & paymenl for a distinet product or service from the cuatomer,

Revenue recognition under service concession axrangements

Inlangible assets reauiting from the application of Appendix C of Ind AS 115 are recorded in the tinancial statemants as intangible aseets. Tha Group secounts for
guch intangihle assat (being rights over infrastructure} (aloog with the present value of commiited payments towards concession arrangement (o the grantor at the
appointed date e.g. Nagetive Grant, pramiuns ety in accordange with the provisions of IND A8 32 and i3 amortized based on projected traffic count or revems, as
detailed in Note 2.07, taking into account the estimated period of commetcial operation of inftastructure which generally coincides with the concession period, and
nte amortized, generally on & straight-line basis, over the contract tern. Refer Note 8 thereon.

Under the intangible assef model, ravemia nclodas:
revenue recorded on & completion basis for assets and infrastructure under construction (In accordance with TND AS 115);
toll sharges collected from users (refer point (v} below)

Rendeving of services
Asset management fues, Project management consultancy fees, parking fees, maintenance incoms and utility income ars recognized in accordance with terms of
agreement with customers.

Rental incoma

Renta! income from investment property is vecognised as part of tevenue from opetations in profit or loss o g straighi-line basis over the texm, of the lease, Lease
incentives granled are recognised as an integeal part of the total rentel income, gver the tenn of the leass, Rental income from sub-leazing is alsa recognised in a
slmilar manner and incleded under other income.

Toll Revenue
Toll collection from users of the infrastructure factlity constructed by the Company under the $ervice Co ion Armangement s recognised in the period of
collection of toll / user fee which coincides with the usage of ihe infrastructure facitity. Income from sele of smart cards ia tecognized on cash basis,

Claims

Claims raised with the concession manting authorify towards reimbursement for costs incurred due to delay in handing over of unencumbered land to the Cownpay
for consinsetion or othar delays atiributable solely to the concession granting authority are recognised when there i3 a reasonablz covtainty that there wifl be inflow
of aconomiz benetits to the concemed Company. The claims when recognised as soch are reduced from the carrying amount of the indgugible asset under
development to he extent the eleims relate to costs earliar inchided as a part of the carrying amount of these assets. Further, tiese claims are eredited to Profit and
Loss ta the pxtent they relate to costs eartier charged off. The elaima are presented separately as a finaneial asset. In ease where the ¢laim is estimaied to be recsived
over a period of thme and the time vale of money is matertal, these clalms ere mensured at a discounted amount at the time of recognition. The unwinding of the
discount is tecognised as an interest income,

Other Tncome;

Interest and dividend:

Dividend is recognized as tevenue when the right to receive payment bas been established. For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprebensive income, interest ingome (s recarded ysing the effective interest rate (ETR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated titurg
cash payments or teceipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrving amount of the financiaf asset
or o the amoctised cost of a financial tability.

Rendering of International Conventlon Ceatre Services:

Revenue from teudering of Intemational Convention Qentre Services is recogmized at the transaction prics that is allocated to the performance obligation, Revenue
includes raomn revenue, food and beverage sak: and banquest services which i rscognized once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sokd and banquet
services have teen provided as per the contract with the custoiner respectively.

Governmont grants

Grants fom the govermnent related to assets are initially recognised as defarred ncome ot thefr fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant wiil
& reogived and the group witl camply with all attached conditions, they are then recoguised in profit or loss as ofier income on 4 systematic basis over the useful

i F'“g}rﬁm{@ wpensate the Group for expenses incrated s cecognised in profl or loss on s systematie basis In the periods i which the expenses are recoguised
Contial £ Lunkss oo q.mons for revedving the grant are met aficr the related expenses have bean recopnised, in which case, the gran o Ehe
Horti © Vg .
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Propecty, plant and equipment

Recopndtion and ement

Freahold land s carried at historical oost. All other items of properly, plant and equipment se meesured at cost leas accumalated depreciation and any accunlated
anpainnent losses.

The st of an item of properdy, plant and aquipmend comprises:

a) s pwchase piice, ncloding import dutles mnd non-refundeble purchage taxes, after dedpeting tade dscounts and rebates.

b} Auy costs direetly apributable i bringing the asset to the Jocaton and condition necesseary for it o be capable of opeating in the manner intended by
TR REIEE,

o the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and remmeving the iten and restoring he elbe o0 which # is located, the obligation for which an entity lncurs
sither when the item is acquired

Income end expenses related to tha incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to e lpcation and condifion wacessary for it to ha capable of operating in
the mawer nteaded by mansgement, are recognised m profit or loss.

If significant parts of an ftam of property, plaot and equipment have different nsefil lives, then they are sccomibed br 83 sepante fems {mejor compeonents} of
praperty, plant and equipment, Any gain or toss on dispossl of an item of property, plant and equipment & recogmised in profit or loss,

Suhbsequent expenditure

Subsequert expenditiee i capitalised only if it is probahle that the fiture economiz benefit; associated with the expenditore will Bow to the Group and the cost of
the: ibzin car b mesarred  relinbly.

Trangltion ty Tnd AS

The cost propenty, plant and equipment at 1 April 2016, the Ciroup’s date of iransition to Ind A5, was detenmined with sference b its catrying value recomnised as
per the previous GAAT {desmed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

FProperty, plaot and equipment {Continued)

Deprociation

Depreciable amount for assots is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, les its estimated residual valus,

Depreciation iz provided ueing the straight line mathod in the manner and at the mies preacibad by Part T of Schedule 11 of the Act. Deprecistion i& charged on a
monthly pro-rata basis for assots purchased or sold duning the year,

In the following cases, the nsedyl Yife 15 logs than the corrasponding ngefis] Life prascribed in Part "C' of Sohedwla IT of the Act, based on internal teohnical evaluation,
taking into account the nahwe of the massts, the estimated wsage of the sasef, the opemting conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
teclmelogical chianges elc.:

Plant and Machinery B-15 years
Furaiture and Fixtures §-14) years
Offics squipsmsnks 3-8 years
Electrical Fitlings 10-15 vears
Compuiers 1-4 yapra
Motor Vehiales 5-7 years
Building 5-32 years

Leasehold improvements are amprilsed aver the lease period,
Depreciation metbods, usefil lives and residual valuss are reviewed at eachureporting date and ad{usted if appropriate,
Cins and losses an disposals are determiued by comparning procecds with carrying amournt. These are inchded in profit or loss within ciher pains/ (losses).

Invesiment property

Recognition, cment and derecopnitl

Property that is hald for long-fenn rental incoms or for capital appreciatios or both, and et is not scoupied by tha group and is not beld G sals in the sdinary
course of busiiess, {5 classified as investmant property. Inv ploparty is d infiially at its cost, including related tranasction coats and where applicable

bormowing cozts. Subsequont to nitial recomdtion, investinent property is imncasmed at cost lma accunmbilod dopresiation avd accwmilated impaineat losses, if aoy.

Tovestment property is dercognised either when it has been dispoesed of or when 3t Is pertanently withdrawn fiom use and no fiture economic beneflt is expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss on disposel of investment property {caleslated es the difference between the net procesds from disposal and the canying amount
of thea Ttemn) i3 vecogmised inprofit or Insa.

Sebsoquont Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditare iz capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount ondy when it is probable Bzt Toture sconnmic beneffis associaled with the expenditure will fow
1o the proup anel the cost of the itemn can be measused reliably, All ather repairs and maintepance costs ars sxpensed whnt incumed. When part of an investment
property is replaced, the carrying amouat of the replaced part is derccoguised.

W
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Depreciation

The Batimated veefl lifo in yesrs is as follows:

Building 25-60 years®

Plant and Machinery 10 years¥

Office aquipments 10 yaars *
Hiectrical Fittings 10 years

Teaschald Land over the {ease perlad
Cotnpubers 3-4 years

*For this class of assets, based on techuical evaluation and itbernal aseessment of nsage pattern, the management beleves thet the useful hids a8 adopted best
represents the period over which the management expects to nse these assets, Hence, the useil L of these assets ate lower from the usefid lives as preseribed
undker Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Ay galoor foss on dispogal of an investment property is recognized in the staterent of Profit and Loas.

The Fair Values of brvestiment propetty s disclozed in Note 6. Such Faiv Values are determined after considering valnation by an independent valuet who helds 2
recognized and nelevant protessional qualification and experlence in tespect of the investruent property belng valued

Transition to Ind AS
The cost of mvestment property at 1 April 2016, the Group's dats of tansition to Ind AS, was detennined with reference to its canying valoe recognised as per the
previons GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Investment propeeiy under congtrunetlon
Propetty that i3 being constictad For e ese a3 mveatment property i acecunted for as inveatment property pnder construction il construction or developiment
is gomplata, All epsts which are directly attributable to consiruction of tha investment property ave capilalized.

Entanglile assots

w} Gl will

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill s not amortised but it 15 tested for Inmpairment anpwally. Tt s caried at cost less
accunmilated impairment losscs, Galns and loases on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill i allocated to cash-generadng units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation 13 made to fwse cesh-generating unita or grovps of cash-
generating units that are expented o benafit from the business combinstlon in which the goodwill avosa, The units or groups of pnits are identified at the lowest fevel
at which goodwill is monitarad for internel management purpoees, which io owr case ate the cperating seginents.

b) Bervice coneession intangible assets

(I} Passenger vopeway facility

Inispible asaets comprise a right to charge users for passenger ropoway facility. The cost of ftangibls assets acquired n cachange of rnomewy Or np-menstary
assels is measard at fair vahue unless (d) the exchange bansaction lacks conmercial sybstance or (b) the fair value of noither the assct mwecived nor the asset given
np s reliably measurable, If acquired assct cannot be measured at falr value, its cost is measured at the cacrylng amount of the asset given wp, The thir value of the
assot is measured with reference to the Tir value of construction services provided.

(i) Toll collection right
Toll collection rights tepresenting right to receive fes fom user of fcility ara obtained in consideration for rendoring consiruction, operation and maintenance
services in ralation to boilding and maintenancs of tha project oa Boild, Operate and Tranafor basis. The consideration received in o service concessien arangsment
ie measnred at fair value upon initial recogniticon. 1.8, constuction cost. Subssquent to indtial recognition the intangible asset is measured at cost, which includes
cepitalised bormrowing costs, loss accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditue is vapillized only when it increases the fubnre sconomic beoelite embodied s the specific asset to which it relates.

(iii} Amwrtration of gervice concession intangible asscts

The intangible rights refating to (hese infrasuncture assets, which are recoguized in the fonn of right to chatge vsers of the luft asssl ars amontized by
talding the proportion of actwal traffic comnt for the perlad over total projected waffic oount from project 1o cost of intangible assets; Le. propottion of actual trat’ﬁs
for the petiod over total projectzd trafiie connt from the intangible pasets expected io be eamed over the balenes e ion pariod as aati d Ty tha e

However with respact 10 toll road assets constrocted and in operation s at March 31, 2016, the emortization of such intangible righls are based on aciual ovems
earned comparad bo fotal projected revenne Fom the project over the batance concession peried to cost intangible assets, insiead of maffic count, Total projectsd
revenue / traffic count is reviowed at the ond of sach finencial year and is adjusted to rellect any changss in (he estimates which lead to the actual collection at the
end of the concessios period as permilted by transitional provisions of Thd A5

¢} Otler intangibde assels
Other intangible assels comprise epplication software purchased, which are not an integrat part of the related hardware, and ae atoortived on a weitien down vatne
hasis pver a periad of ten years, which in Mavagement's estimate represents the patiod duting which the sconpnuic benefits will be derived from thedr use.

. Subsequent expenditore is capitalized only when it increnses the fistare economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes fo the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Cursency: Indisn rapees in crores)

1,08 Impairment of non-Kaancial asset

.09

O

At each reporting dats, the Group reviews e camying of its non-financigl agsets (other than investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferrad
tax agsets) to dewnnine whethier there is any lndication of hopaicment. IF eny such indication exisis, then the asset’s recoverable amount s estlmated. For
Impainuent testing, assets are grouped weethet into the smallest aroup of zssots that generntes cusk inflows from continwing use that are largely independent of the
cosh inflows of other assets or OGUs, Goodwill arlsing fom a busitcss combination is allecatnd to CGUs er groups of COUs thal ste expected 0 benefit Som the
synergies of the combination, The meoverable ammumt of an individval asset or CGU s the greater of it valuo in use snd ite fair valus less coats of dispazal. Valoe
in use is based on the estimated fijure nash flows, discounted to thelr present vaiue using a pre-tax discount 1ate that reflects current market assessments of the fima
vale of money and the risks specific to tha asset or CGUL An impalnuent loss i3 wecognised If de carrying amount of an asset of CGU exceeds its recoverable
amownt. Irpairment Josses atc recognized in profit or [oss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated ko the CGU, and then to
teduce the camying amounts of the other assets in the CGU ona pro raies baais.

Goothwill and intangible assets that have an indeffulte vseful life are not subject to amortization and are tested amally for imgmirment, or move frequently iPevents
or changps in circumsmnces jndicats that they might be impaired. Such assets are tested for inpainnent whenever events or changas in citcumstances Indicete that
the cemmying amount may ot be recovarable. Management periodically assesses using, sxéena] aud internal sovroes, whither there is an indication that v asset may

b impaired.

Impairment of Toll Collection Bighis:

[mpaitment exiets when the earrying yalue of an asset or cash generating it exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair valus lass cogls of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal caleulation is bssed on available data for similar assets or vhservable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in nse calenlation ia based on 2 DCF model. The cash Bows are derived from the budget gencraliy covering a
period of the concession agresuments using Jong terms growth rates end do not include restniciicdng aotivities that the Group is not yet comumitted o o significant
fiture investmerts that will enlitnce the aseet’s parformances being tested, The recoverable omount is sensitive to the discownt mte used Sor the DCF modet as well
as the expected fitwe cash-inflows aod the growth rate used for exwapolation priposes. Further, the Group considers fivourable stbitration. awards towards its
claim fFom various amthoriiies in the impairment as period as permitied by transitional provisions of nd ASunits as distinet pesf

Borrowlng eost

General and specific borpwing costs that are dircctly attributable in the scquisition, canstruction or produetion of 5 qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is requiced to complete and prepare the asset for ifs intended vse or sale. Qualifying assets are nssets that ily take a sul ial perfod of time to
et ready for their intended use or sale.

[nvestment incoms earmed on the temporary investment of specific bonowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted Fom ihe bomowing costs
sligibls for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs & expensed in the perfod inwhich they are incurmred,

[utome-tax
cotne tax expenss comprises current and deferred iox. It is tecognised in profit o¢ logs except to the extent that it relates Iteis recognised divectly in equity or in
0CI

Curront iax

Current tax comprises the cxpectod tax payable or reccivable on tho taxable income or foss for the year and any adjustisent to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previovs years. It is measuned usivg tax rates enacted or substantively spscted at e reporting date. Manngement periodioglly evaluates posidans taken In
tax ranurng with respect o sitmations in which applicable tax regalation s subject to interprotation. It establishes provisione wheee sppeoprinte on the basis of
amots expectsd to ba paid t the tax authoritiss,

Current {ax assets and liabilitias are offset only If, the Group;
a)  hss 8 lepally anfbreeable right to set off the recognized rmounts; and
b)  irtends alther to setile on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Bability sinmltancausly.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax i recognised in respect of temporary differonces between the camying amounts of assats and Habilites for financigl reportng purposcs and the amaunts
used for tazation pposes, Bowever, defetred tax Habdlities are not recognised if they arise from the inftial repognition of goodwill Defbrred income @x 18 alio not
aceounted for if it arlses fom initial recognition of an asset or liabllity in & ransaction other than a business combination that at the €me of the ransaction affects
neither accounting profit nor trxebie profit (tax loss),

Defoured tax ssgets ar recognised for unused tax dosses, untged tax oredits and deductible temporary differences o the extent that it is probabla that firure inxablo
profits will be available against which they can be used. Defarred tax asseis are reviewed at cach roparting date and ase reduccd to the extent thet it is na longer
probable fiat the relatod tax benefit will be realised; such radections are d wlien the probability of fitwts Bzable profits improves, Unrecognised defermed tax
assefs are masgessed at sach toporting date and recognised to the extent that It has become probable thet fiture taxable profits wilk be available against which dey
can be used, ’

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to ba applied 1o emporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively ecacled
at the teporting date and are sxpected to apply when the related defarred incoma tax asset is reatised or the defetred incomes tax Liability Is settled,

Deferred tax Hobilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the camying amount and 1ax bases of investmanta in subsidiaries, branches and
maseciates and interest in Joint aangements where the group {s able to control the timing of the: rsversal of the temporary differances and it i probable chat the

- differences will not reverse in the forsseenbla future.
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Defered tax agsels are nok recognised for temporary differences between the cairying amount end tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and assuciates
and intarsst in joint amangements where it i not probable that the differences wilt roversc in the foresesable fitbore and taxable profit will not be evailable against
which the temnporary dilference can be uklised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only &

a)  the entify has a legally enforceabls viglt to set off current tax assets against current tax labilitles; and

b)  the deferred tax asssts and the doferred tax liabilities relate to incoms taxes levied by fhe same taxation authority on the same faxable extity but they Intend to
settlo current tax labilitiss and assete o0 8 net bagis or their tax asssts and Habilides will be vealised simultansously

Business enmhinations

The acquisition method ef accounting 35 used 1o account for all business comnbinations, repardiess of whether equity 1 or ather asscts are acquired, when
{he acquired sot of activities and assets meets the definition of a business and controd is fransferved to the Group, The consideration transferred for the aoquisttion af
a subsidiary comprises the:

falr valoes of the asseta (ransferred;

lighilities incwred to the fonmer owner of the acouived businass;

Siuity interears issued by the group; and

Fair value of aty assst or liabHity resulting fom 8 contingent comsideration arrangement,

Idkettifiable assets acquived and liabilites and contingent Habilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, racasured inftially at thelr fair
values at the acquisttion date. The group recognises any non-controlling intersst in the acquived etitity on an gecmisition-by-acquisiion basis either at Hir value orat
the non-controlling interest's propordanate share of the acquired entéty's nat identifiable assats, Acquisition-relatad costs are axpensed a3 incurred except if related
to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The excess of the

- congidecation transferrad;

- ampunt of any non-conteolling intersst in (he acquired entity, and

- Avquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest tn the acquired entity over the fair velue of the net identifigble assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less tan the fir value of the et idemtiBable assets of the buslness acguived, the difforance It recopnised in pthar eomprabensive income and
aecumilated in equity as capital reserve provided thers 15 olear evidence of the inderlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargein purchase. In
other orses, the bargain purchase gain is recognised direotly in equity as capits! serve.

+ Where setilement of any part of cash consideration is defetned, the amaumts payable in the finurs are discounied to their present value sa at the date of exchanga.
The discontit rate used is e entity's incremental borowing rate, heing the rate at which a similar botrowing could be obtained froin an independant Sranciar under
compamble terms and cenditans. '
+ Contingent consideration ia elasaified either as equity or a Enancial lisbilily., Amounts ciassified as a financial Hability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or kss.

« Ifthe business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisiion date cairying value of the acquirer’s previously hald aquity intavest in i acquire is remeasured to
fhir value at the acouisition date. Any gaing or losses arising froon such remeasurement are recognised in profit or less or other comprehensive ncome, a5
approptiate.

Cash ani cash equivalenis

For the purpose of presentation in the stalement of cash flows, cash and vash equivaknis includes cagh on hand, deposits held at call with fingnciat instimtions, other
shart-lemm, highly liquid invostinents with otiginal maturities of three monts or less that are readily cotvertble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an isigpificant risk of changes in value,

Taventories

Dircet expenscs lke lad cost, devslopment rights, site Jabour cost, material used for project conslruction, cost of borowing, project management consaltancy,
costy for moving the plant sud machinery to the site and general sxpenses incurred spacifically for the respective project like insurance, design and techaical
nasistamee, and constuetion pverheads ave takian as the cost of the project work I progress and cost of unsold Bats.

Matedat at site comprise of building saterial, components, stores and spares,

Inventories are valied ot lower of cost or net malizable valus, cost is determined on weiphted average basis. Net realizable valuc is the estimated selling price in the
orlinaty coursc of bushisss, kes estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale,

Financlal instrumeuts

A financial instrtrment is any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of one eniily and o finemeial tiability or cquity msoument of another eatity. Finanwial
instrutecnts also include derivative contracts such as forelpn curency fhreign exchange forward eonboacts, interest eate swaps and coreency opliong, and embadded
derivalives in the host commet, Financial instruments .e. Flnencial Asssts and Finanelal Liabilities ara recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
sontractual provisions of the nsttuments. Finassial fstouments are initially measored at faic valus. Transaotion costs that are directly attributable to (he acquisition
or issue of financiel hstramenis (other than financial instrments at fir velue Orough profit or loss) am added to or deducted from the fir value of thie financial
instumeants, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs ditectly atitibutable to the acquisition of finencial insteuments agasts or financial liabilities at fajr
value through profit or peried 2z permitiod by rosilional i
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{Currency! Indinn rupess in croms)
{/ Tinancial rsgety
Subseqguent Monsaroment

All recognised financial assets am subsequently measured st amertized cost using effective interest inethod encept for financial sasets canied at fair vale Hwough
Profit and Loss (FYTPL) or faiv vahee throngh other comprehensive income (FYOCT). on the baeie of ite business mndul for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characieristics of the financial asset,

Tattial recogultion and ement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued ave Imitlally secognised when Ih:jt pre originated. All other financial assets and financial ligbilities are initially
tecognised when the Group becomes a party to the conactual provisions of the nstrumest,

A financinl seset (unless it is a trade receivable withoui a significent financing ¢omponent) or finaucial iahility is initially mansured at fadr valua plns or minus, fr
an item not at FYTPL, tansachion costs that are directly atintutzble to its acquisition or issue. A trade recejveble withowt a significant fnancing component &
imitially d at the t tion prics. Financial assats ans nol reciassifisd subsequent to i intial rscognition unless the Group changes in Business model for
tmemaging financlal asseis, in which case all affected fitiancial asscts are reclassificd on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
mads,.

Debt jnstruments

A, “debt instrument’ is meastired at the amertized cogt and is not designated as FVTFL if bath the foflawing conditicns are met:

a} The asset is held within 4 business model whose objective {5 bo hold assets for collecting contractual cash Bows, and

W Contractual terme of the asest give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are sokely payizents of pricipel and interest (SPFL) on the prncips]l amount
ratstanding.

Aftar initia) measuremant, such fnancial eseeis are subsequently measured et amortized cosl vsing the effactiva intersat rate (EIR) mathod, Amortised cast iz
calevlated by taking inbo account any discount or premivim and foes or costs that ave an integral part of the EIR. The BIR ewortisation is incledad in fingnoe income
in the profitor logs,

Equity Investment in Joint Venture and Associatos
The group subseouently measures all squity lovestrents in companics other than equity lnveshuents n, joint ventuwes and asspciaes ai fair valpe,

Equity [uvestment (Otlor thet investment in Joint Ventars and Associates)
Alk equity Tvestnents falling within the scope of Ind-A3 109 are mandatorily measurod at Fair Value theough Prodit and Losa (FVTPL) with all fair vale ohnngau
recopnized in the Statement of Profit amd Loss,

On initisl recognitlon of an equity investment that is not beld for trading, the Group has an irevocable option of deslgnatiog certain equity instuments as FYOCL
Opilion of designating instruments 85 FVOCT i3 dova on an instromant-by-ingtrument basis. The alesalfication made on initlal recognition is irtevocable. I the Group
decides to classify an equity instument az FVOC, then all fair vahue chenges oo the inatrument ave racognized in Siat it of Other Comprehengive T (OCTy,
Auncwts from OCT are oot subsequently transtorced to peofit and loss, even on sale of investment,

De-recognition

A finapciat asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & Group of similar financial azsets) {3 primedly detacognised (Lo, removed from the
Group’s balance sheet) wihen:

The contractual ghts to recelve ensh flows from the asset bave expired, ar the Group bas tamsferred its riplts 10 receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation te pay the raceived cash flows In full without mmterial delay to 2 third party under a ‘pass-hrough’ armangement, and elther (a} the Group hes
iransfermed substantially g1l the risks and rewards of tho saset, or () the Group has neither impaferred oor relained substantially all the visks and rewards of the
aszst, but bas transforred coairal of the assct

‘When the Group has transferred its righis to receive cash flows fiom an asset orbaa entered Into n pass-fhrough ammangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it Ligs
retainad the riaks and rewards of ownersldp, When it has neither ransferred nor retsined syl ially all of the risks end rewards of the asset, not fangfered
control of the assef, the Group continues to recognise the trapaferred essel to the extent of the Group's contining invelvemsnt, In that case, the Group also
recogniscs an associated liability. The tansfored asset and e associabed liability are measurod on a basts et reflects the rights and obligaticns that the Group has
retained,

Contimuing imalvamant that takes the foon of 2 g tes over the transforred agset is d af the lower of the orignel eanyiog amount of the asset and the
mexfmum emount of consideration Hat the Group could be reguired to repay.

Feipairment of fimancial azsets

Tn accordance with Ind-AS 149, dhe Group appes expected credit Joss {ECL) model for casureinent and recognition of impairment loss on the fllowing financial
assets and credit ridk exposure:

8)  Finarcial assets that ars debt instraments, and are measured at amortised coste.g., koans, debl securitics, deposits, and bank balance;

) Lease receivables; and

¢)  Trade receivables.

The Group fallowa ‘sitaplified approach’ for recognition of impatrment losa allowance on

a)  Trade receivablas which do not contain a significant finsncing component; sd

By All lzase receivables vesuldng from eamactions.

The application of simplifi=d approach dees not require the Groap to track changes i credit risk. Rather, it recopnises iropairment logs allowance based on lifstime
BCLa at each raporting date, right foom its infilal teeognition.

For recognition of bopaitment loss on otleer finsoclal assets and risk exposure, the Group detennines that whether there has been a aignificant increase in the credit
risk since intial recognition, IF exedit risk bas not increased sipnifieantly, 12-month BCL js used to provide for impaitment ks, However, if creditrisk has increaged

-signlﬂcandy, lifatime ECLL is vsed. If, in & subsequent perlod, credht quality of the instromnenst ivproves such that thers is oo longer 4 signifieant increase in credit

mksui}aumm racognition, then the satity raverts fo recoprising inpairment loss allowsnes based on 12-month BCL,
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Financial liabilitics

Finaneial Habilities gre classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liabitity is classified as at FYTEL if it is classified ag held-for-trading, it s a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financin] lisbilities st FVTPL ae measured at fair value and oet gains end losses, incloding any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss, Other financial labilities are subseqnently measurad at smortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and [ogses are recognised in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or logs.

Derivatlves

Derivatlves are intifally meammed at fafr value, Subsequent to inital recegnition, derivatives are measured at fit value, and changss therein are generally recognised
in profit or loss,

The Group desighates certain decivatives as hedging instraments to bedge the vardability in cash flows assaclated with highly probable forecast iransactions arising
from changes in Foreipn exchange rates and interest rates and, certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabitities as hedges of foreign exchange risk on a net
investinent in a foreign cpergton.

At inception of designated hedging relafionships, the Group decuments the risk menagement objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group elso
documents the economio relationship hetween the hadged item and the hedging instnmment, including whether the changes in cesh flows of the hedged item and
hedging ingtmment are expected to affset each other.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Giaing and Josses are recognised
in profit or loss when the Habilities are derecognized. Amartised cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium oe acquisition and fizey or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amoriization iz included ag finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

This catagory generally applies to interast-bearing losns and borrowings.

Comnpound Firancial Instruments

Tha fair valie of the liability portion of an opticrally convertible bonds ia determined using a markst intesest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds, This
mmount 18 recorded as a linbility on an amortised cost bagis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds i
atttibutable to the equity portion of the compound instrament. This iz recognised and included in shereholders’ eguity, nst of income tex effects, and not
subsequently remeasured,

Where flie terms of a financial ability are renegotiated and the sntity issues equity instraments to a creditar to extingufsh all or part of the liabiligy (debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss iz recognised in profit or Joss, which is ineasuted as the difference betwees the carrying amount of the financial liability apd the fair valae of
ihe squity ingirumends izsued,

Derecognltion

A financial liability is detecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expites. When an existing financdal lisbility is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exisiing lHability are substantinlly modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the tecognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recommised in the
statemeant of profit or loss.

Offsctiing of financtal Ingtraments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount i8 reporied in the balance sheat whare thers is a fegally enforeasble right to offzet the recogmised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis ot reslise the asset and setile the lability simultaneonsly. The legelly enforceabla right must not be
contingent on fature events and must be enforceable in the normal cowrse of business and in the event of defanlt, insolvency or bankruptey of the group or the

counterparty,

Emplayee benefits

Short-term employee beoefits :
Short-tarm employes banafits are expenced as the related service is provided. A ifability is recognised for the amount expested to be paid if the Group has a present
legel or constructive obligation to pay this ampunt as a result of past sarvice provided by the employse and the obligalion can be estimated reliably.

Compensated absences

The liabilities for eamed $eave and sick leave are not eapected 1o be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
releted service, They arc therefore measured ac the present value of expected future paymants to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the teporting period using the projected onif credit method. The beoefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the texms of the telaiad obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience sdjustments and changes in ectuarial assumptions are recognissd in
profit or loss, The obligations are presented as cnrrent lizbilitiea i the balance sheat if the Grovp does not have an unconditional right to defer the setlement for at
least twelve months afier the reporting dats.
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Drefined eowtribution plans
A defined contrfbutlon plan ia e post-employment benefit plan whera the Grovp's legal or constructive obligation 1s limited to the amount that it contributes to a
sepatate lagal emity. Obligations for contributions to defined confribution plans are expensed as the telated service is provided. Prepaid confributions are recognised
az ao asset to the extent that s cash refund or a reduction in fisure paymeats is available. The Gronp makes specifind montldy contiibutions owards Govecnmsat
administered providont fund scheme.

Deflned beneflt plans

A defined benefit plao is 8 post-employinent benefit plan oiber than 2 dafined contritmtion plan. The Group’s vet cbligation in respect of defined bensfit plans is
caloulated s=parately for cach plan by estimating the amousnt of future benefit that employess have samed {n the current and prior periods, discounting that amowrt
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calewlation of defined benefit cbilgations i3 performed annuelly by a qualifled actoary using the projected wnit credit method. When the celculation results in &
potential reset for the Growp, the ranognised asset i3 limited to the present valua of sconomic banafits available in s form of any flutare refunds from the plan or
reductions in futwe contributions {o the plan. To caloulete the present value of economic benefits, considesation is given to any applicable minimun fanding
requirements. These defmed bensfit plans expoese e Group to achuarial fsks, such as longovity risk, inieret rabe risk and mardket Govestment) risk

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actariat gaing and losses, the tetun on plan asesls (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asaet coiling (if any, excluding intsrest), ace recognised inmediately in other comprohensive incoms (OCI), Net interest axpense (income) on the nei; defined liability
(assets) iz computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined Uability {asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the fvancia] year
after taking into account any chenges 88 a resull of contribution and benelt payments during the year, Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss,

When the benefits of 8 plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in bexefit that relates to past service orthe gain or loss on crttailment {5
recognised iminediately in pradt or loss. The Group recogulses mains and losses on tha settlernent of a dafined benedit plan when tha settlement ocons,

Other long-term employee benefits
Tha Group's net obligation in reapeet of long-term smployee benefits ia the amount of fiture benefit thet employees have earmed in reton For their secvice in the
current and prior periods. Fliat benefit is discouated to determine its prosent value, Re-measutciusat are recogrised in profit or koss in the period in which they arise,

Thesze plans typically expose the Company to actuarial rlsks such as ¢ 1 risk, i tate sk, longevity sk and salary riske

{E) Imvestment risk : The prescut valua of the defined benefit plan Habdlity iz caleulated wsing the discount rate which s detsrmined by reference to market yields at
tlie end of the reporting peried on goverarient bonds, For other defined benefit plans, the discount tate Is detsemined by referance o market yields at the end of the
reparting period on high quelity comporate bonds when thete 1s 5 deep market for such bonds: i the return on plan asset {3 below this rate, it will create a plan
deficlt. Carrendy, for the plan in Indla, It hag a relalively balanced mix of mveatiwents in government secivities and other debt instruments. Further,

{ii) Interest risk : A decreaze in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liahility; however, this will be partially offet by an increase in the retutn on the plan's
debt investments,

{iiiy Longevity visk : The present valoe of the defined benefii plon Liabilily ia caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the martality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An increase in the 11 expectancy of the plan patticlpants will Sncrease the plan's lability.

{lv) Salary rlsk « The present value of the defined benofit plan ability is caloulated by reference to the future salaries of plan pacticipants. Aa increase in the Salary
of the plan pasticipenis will increase the plan's liability.

Provislons

Pravislons are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or construetiva) 83 & result of a pest event, It Is probable thet aa ouilow of rosonmes
enibodying economic benalits will ba required o satila the oblgation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amonnt of the obligation. Expected fitturs operating
keazss ave not provided for,

Long-tetm provisions are determined by discounting the expected fitvre cash flows specific to the Habiliyy, The uowinding of the discount Is recognised as Anance
cust

Provisions are measured at the prosent vains of management's best estitmte of the expeaditure requirsd to settks the present obligation at the end of the reporting
petiod, The disconnt rate used to detennine the prasent valye is a pre-tax rate that reflects curtent macket assesstnents of the me value of motcy and the risks
specific to the Hability. The increase in the provision due to the passags of tioss i3 recognised a3 intersst expenss.

Contpagent Liabilitles

A disclosure for a contingent Babiliyy is made when thare is 5 possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of
resoamee, Information on comtingent Kabilitles i3 disclosed tn the noes to fnancial statements unbess tha possibility of an cutfiow of resources embodying aconoamic
benefit i3 remote, A contingent asset is nol recopnised it disclosed in e financial statemenis where an inflow of economic bepefit is probable.

Earmings per share

Basic emtnings per shara is computad by dividing tha profit / (loss) sftec tax by e woeightad average oomber of equity sharss ontstanding during the year. The
weighted averape number of equity sharea ootstanding during the year 3 adjusted fr the events for bonus issue, bouus element in a rights issve to existing
shareholders, share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares).

Dikated carings per share iz computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) sfter tax 2 adjusted for dividend, interest and other charpes to expense or locome {het of ay
atteibutable taxes) relating 1o the dilutive potential equity shares, by flie weiphted sverage rumber of equity shares considered tor deriving basie esmnings per share
and the weighted average mumbear of equity shares which could bave been {ssued on conversion of alt dilutive patential equity sharag
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Gronp as A Lessec

The Group applies a single recapaition and measurencnt approach for all leases, except for short-tenn Ioases and leasss of low-value assets, The Gronp racognises
lansa labililies to make lease payents and tight-ofuse assers representing the right to use the uaderlying assets. At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether a confract is, or contains, 4 lease. A contract 43, or contalns, » Jease if the comtract conweys the right to control the vse of an identified asset for a period of
tine in exchange for consideration

{I) Right of tze Asset .
The Group recagnises right-of-nse assets at the commmencerment datz of the lease. Right-ofuse assets are measured at cogt, less any accomulated
depreciation and iinpaitment losses, and adjusted for any of leass Nebilities, The coat of right-ofuse assets inclodes the amount of kease liabilities

recognised, initial dirsct costs ineurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date lass any lease Incentives recetved,

The right-of-use asset is subseqmently depreciated using the straight-ling method from the commencement dete to the earlier of the and of the peeill! life of the right-
of-use agset or the end of the lense term, nnless the leage teansfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right;
af-nse ssset reflacts that the Growp will exenclse a purchase option,

The right-of-use assets are alse subject to impeinnent. Refar to s accounting policies of fipainnent of non-financinl assets,

{1} Lease Linhilitfes
At the commenoeanent date of the lease, the Gronp recognises Iease [Habilitics naswred at the present value of isase payments o be made over the leass term. The

- Jeasa payments includa fixed paymanis Jess any lease lucentives recefvable, varinble lsase payments that depend on an index or & rate, and amounts expectad to be

paid under residual value gusrantees. The lease payments alio imdude the exercise price of a purchase option bly cettein o be exarcized by the Group and
payments of penalties for tetminating the lease, if the loese term reflscts the Group exercising the option to terminate,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on en index ora rake ars roognised a5 sapenses in the period in which the event or candition that telggers the payment
oecours,

In calenlating the prasent value of lease payrents, the Group wses its incremental bomowlng rate at the lease o date t the i mte unplicit
in the lease & not Eadily determinable. Afier the ament data, the of lense Kabilities is Increased to meflect the accretion of interest and redused for
the lsase payments wede. In addition, the canying smount of lease lebilitiss is remeasured if thete Iy a modification, a change in the lease teem, a change in the
Iease payments ot a change in the agsesstnont of an option to parchase the underlying esset.

When the lease Uabilify is remensured fn this way, a conrespouding adjustment is made to the camying amount of the rghi-of-use asset, or is racorded in peafit or
Insa if the sarrying amannt of the right-ofnse asset has been reduced o zaro,

(it} Short term beases und leascs of low value of assets

The Group apphies the short-tonn lease recognition exemption to its short-torm lases of machinery and equipment, It alao appllag the lease of low value gssets
Tecognition exemption to leases that are considered 1o be Jow value, Lease payments on shork-term leases akd leases of low-value assets aro racognised a5 expensa
ana straipht-line bagla over the lease term,

Group a3 a Lessor )

Leasea in which tha Group doas not tramsfer sebstmtally all the xisks and rewards incidental 4o awnership of an asset ars classificd as oporating leases. Rental
income arising is acvounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease teewns. Inftial direet costs incurred In negotisting and aranging 2n cpetating leass ave added lo
the carying amount of the loased asset and recognised over the Jease term on tha same bagis ay remtal income, Contingent renis Ate recognised as roveme in fhe
petlod in which they are earned,

Receut pronouncements

Minisiry of Corporaie Affaits (“MCA") notifies new standad or amsndments to the existing standaids under Comprnies (Indian Accouniing Standards) Rules as
fssned from time to time, On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Cormpanies (Indian. Accounting Stendards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Compantes (kndlan
Accoumting Standais) Amendment Rules, 2021, applicable from Apeit 1, 2023, as below, Other amendments included in (he potification does not heye any
significant impact on tha financial stniements.

Iml AS 1 - Presontation of Financial Stotements

The amendments require ompandes to disclose thoir inaterdal acooanting policies rather than their significant accounting poliefes. Accounting poYicy information,
topether with other information, is material when it can rsasenably be expected éo infiuence decisions of primery users of ganoral puepose finanalal statements. The
Compamy does not expect this amendment to have avy significant impact in jts finencial statorments.

Tod AS 22— Incone Taxes

The emendments clarify bow companies account for defirred tax on transactions such as leases amd decommissloning obligations, The amendicitts narcowod the
seope of the meogaition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exempton) so thar & no lenger applics to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give tise to cqual taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect s smendinent to have any sigoificant fmpact in fis
Anancial statements,

Ind AS 8~ Acesunting Policies, Changes in 4 ting Lstimates and Berors

The amendments will help enthties to distinguish between accounting policles and accaunting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of acoounting estlimates. Under the new definition, sccounting sstimates are *! tary amounts in financiat statcroouts that are subject to
nxaswreinent uncerlainty”. Hotities develop accomnting estimates if accounting pelicles require items in Snancia) staternents © bo measured in a way that involves

measrement uncettainty. The Company does nat expeet this amendmeant to hava any signiBeant impact in it financial statements,
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(Cutvency: Indisn vapees in croges}
Note 4 {2)
Tavesiment Property
Partlculnrs Frpehold lad Legpehold | Beihling Comy Frrniture Oilce Elactrical | Eiantand Toigl
nd and fixtures | equipment fitings Machinery

Coat / Beented Cost
At3] March 2021 2558 3691 254248 Q.01 183 1168 163.75 354,02 13636
Add: Additions for the year - - 20553 048 48,36 983 17.00 60.54 43274
Add: On account of acquizition ofl 2 subsidiacy {Refx Noto - - 934,26 - 0407 - 4.4 237 SOLed
500
Lesz Disposals for the year - - - - - - - - -
Al 3] Mareh 2022 25.68 3691 132268 033 5025 2161 18569 416,93 4,560.75
Add: Adeitians for the year 042 . " - - 004 - 0,59 L4
Lews Digposals for the pear - - - - - N - . -
Less Qi aceconmt of loss of conbol ofinvestment in {1029) - [Z07.54) {0 RE} (49,933 {21.47) (13037 (301,400 (3 462.18)
subsidlarles {refir nots 50)
ALY Marcle 2003 [5.81 34.91 101473 0.0 £33 LINE) 552 26.12 1,099.61
Accomipa lated Depreciation aad Impalrment
At March 2021 46T 2303 83,01 - an 467 69,25 L7 1y 5490
Addf: Depreelation foe the yaar . - 13178 121 1538 00 1621 ame 18022
Lesg Disposals for the year = - - - - - - - -
(4431 March 2812 4.67 22.0% TOLGT X1} 260 867 3544 20093 103512
Add: Depreciation for the yeer - .55 49,20 0.07 N 269 438 1199 .66
Lese: Disposalg for the year - - - - - - - - .
Lesg: On account oftose of contiol of investment in - - (709.19) (.17, (4.20) (11.15) {88.55) {215.74) (1,02897)

beidizries (refar note 50)
At 31 March 2023 447 22,59 41.68 - @17 020 L23 1 7681
Net Carrying Amount 25 ot 31 Mareh 2022 201 14,88 312100 .90 47.66 1294 106.2) 2070 L3562
[ Net Carrying Amount a¢ at 31 March 2023 11.14 14.34 973.05 .00 1,16 (BN 443 1950 i022.7¢
B Amaunis cacogaised [n prrotlt mml loss for Investment peoperty
Farlleulary 31 Marek 31 Merch

M3 2022

Rerotal icome 164.09 575.03
Diract opecating expenses from property that genemted rental income 040 21126
Direct cperating expenses from praperty that dld not generata rental {ncome - 49.31
Al) Leasing arrangements
The Group hes leased propentias unuu flabile operating leases fn the capacity of 8 lessor. Refer Hote 471 for fhture minimun lemse payments in sespact of these prepecties 1 1he apicy oElock in
pedod. There are no further bligetions to purch or develop invesonent propesty or for repairs, maintenmas or enhancements,
Inveshnent property comprises g munter of commergial pmpertm that are lensed o thivd parties, Each of the leases entered are nomnally for & perod of 5 fo 10 yeats. Subsedy 3 ara ated with
{hia Teshae o7 a5 e the berma ofinitial ag are anke y 1. No contingent rents are chaged.
iit) Measurement of falr valnes
The fair value of i property ane o ined after ideri huation by an acoredited indepsadent valuer whe holds a szt e relevant professional qualifcation and experiencs in respact
Df thc investmient properly being valwed A valuation model in it writh that ded by the 1 fional Vahsation Standards Committes has bwn applicd for vabuations performed by

welunr (g a tep] dvaluer as defined under rile 2 of Companics {lieglstered Valuers and Vetiation) Rules, 2017,

wvaluer. Tha {ndep

Thu: Fair vatue for ali of the property has been. } s 8 Leval 3 fair valne based on the inpais to the valusion technigue uyed,

i) Valuntion technlgoe:
2. Valustlen of some subject property hasbeen done by Sales Conmpariaon Mathod ender Markel Approach. A comparison b made i the popose of valuation wlth similar propetics thet have recently been
0k in the market and thue heve o transaction ptice. The sales compacdson appranch is the prefimed approach when sales data era mveilallo, Comparable properties e selecsed for simikadity to the subject

property comsidering attributes ke age, elre, shape, quality of conztructlon, building featucss, conditlon, doslgn, peatry, ete. Thelt sale pricas ara then edjusted for thair difference from the subjeat property.
Finally a markeet valug for the subject peoperty is estimated from the adjueted sales price of the comparable propetties.

b. Tho Group alsos hie Followed discounted cash Bows {'DCF) tochnique for rome properiies which iders the pregent valus ni'net cash fows to Te penerated from the property, vsing ridk-adusted Hacount
s taking tnlo acequnl the expected rental prowih rabe, vacant periods, oovupancy rals, leses incuntive sosis such 2s rend-freo pegiods and other coste oot paid By tenanis

¢, In case oFa valvation ofa lage land parcet, whete M denvelgpment potential & realisod vver 2 period of lima (i.c. time value of money comes into the picturs) and alse whete there arw no or ew immediate

similar propertics (Le, comperable) availdble for comparison, DOF method considering relovant pobtntial devel of the projecf is used,
Resoneliiniipnof fulc vaiue

The lollowing is the recanciliation in the Ml valwes az of 31 March 2022 znd 31 March 2023

Parliculars Amaunt

Opening hrlange 8z of 1 April 2021 £,622.34

Add: Additlons for the year 51,94

Add: On account of acquisition of 8 aubsidiery (Refer Note 1,00t.04

5000

Add: Figrcase in Falr veloe 184,68 X
Clogtng balance a5 of J1 Macch 2022 T.561.80 !
Al Additions for the year 1.04

Less: On pocount of disposal of i in subsidiai {6427 48)

rezulting in loss oiconizol {refer note 340} .

Add: increasa in Pulr valus 113.85

Closing balancs asof 31 Mareh 2023 1,245.21




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Cutrency: Fwllan rapees in erores)
Nota 4 (h}
Tglit-of-use arseld

Partlculars Teasehold land Qffice Total

Prembies

Cost
At 31 March 2021 141279 151 1414.30
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2022 LA1279 1.31 1,414.30
Less; On account ol loss of comire] of jovestnent in {1,412.7%) - (1412.78)
subsidiaries (refer note 50)
At 31 Warch 2023 - 151 L.51
Accemualated Depreeciation
At 31 March 2021 180.06 .21 18027
Add: Depreciation for the yeer 1436 4.17 1443
At 31 March 2022 19432 0.38 194720
Add: Depireciatian for the yesr 387 .17 4.04
Lasa: On acocunt of loss of conirel of investoaenl in (198,19} - [198.19)
subsidiaries {refer note 50)
At 31 March 2023 - .35 0,55
Net Carryieg Amouat psat 31 March 2022 1,258.47 113 1.119.60 |
Net Carryiog Amnouor as at 31 Mareh 2023 - .96 195
Noto 4 ()
Gaodwill

Goodwill acquired on busines: covbination 18 allovated, st eoquisition to the cash generating unfts {C3Js} that are expeoted to banefit from that buslness combination. The
carrying mnount of Goodwill has been allocated as follows:

Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 | 31 March
2021
Goodwill in respect of:
TRIL Infepark Limiled - 190.54
TRIE IT4 Private Limited (Refer Wote 50 (bj) 211,72 21172

272 ] 402,36

n accardance with IND AS 36 “ Impairment of Assets” the Gronp perfonned impalement tésting of Goodwill assigned 1o the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) as at March 31, 2023, The Greup is
engaged in tha business of resl estate and infmstuchre development (including purchass, construction qr sale of immewable property, project management consultancy setvices and
ivestinent advisory services) for whish, recoverabla ataomnt s determdued for investment property ab czoh reporting date e individual CGAUTs, The Company Bllows discounted eashflows
techimigue which conzidars the presenl value of net cashilows to be generaled from the property taking into account the axpected cental growth raie,vacant period, occupanay rate, lease
incentlve costs such as rent free periods and other costs not pald by tenemts The exy A net costflows ara di g uafng tisk-adjusted discount rates of 12.08% and g lease escalation kale
ranging froam 12% to 15% . Among, other faciors, the discount rate eetimation considers the quality of B buflding and its location, tenant credit quality ond leass terms, The estimated fiir value
of the OGU was hipher than {ts respective canying amount, hence impairment provision recorded during the conend yaar is € Nil (March 31, 2022 - € Nil), Management believes that any
yeasonably possible change In the key nssurions such as estimated lease ront, rent growih p.a | oscupaniy, capitalisation rate and discount rate on which reeovecable amount ia based would
nol cause the aggregate garrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable auaum of the Goodwill
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Curency: Indisn rupees in crores)

specifias that the Company ia required to buifi and operaie of the lotel
aree of commnacial infragnuehare and an area of 5% i.e 466 5.t shall be
raserved for Auto Showroom/Anto Workehop,

MNota B
{hther Intangible aszets
Parviloulars Sofiwars Service Concession Tatal
Arrangements
(refexr foot pote
helow)
Cost { Deemed Coat
At 31 Maveh 2021 4.47 1.964.05 1,9568.52
Add: Additions for the year 13.56 1,890.39 1,903.95
Lessy Disposals for the year - - -
At 31 March 2022 18.03 3,854.44 38T2AT
Add; Additions for the year L1z §2.37 6349
Less: Disposals for the year 0.0%) {1.66) (L79)
Less: On sceount of toss of control of ivestment in (14.405) - (14.03)
subsidiarics (refor norte 50}
Af 31 Mareh 2023 £.101 391515 3,520.17
Accamniated Amertisation and impaicment
At 31 Maveh 2021 3.4 20501 20845
Add: Amettization for the yenr 1.39 104.32 105,91
Less; Disposals for the year - - -
At 31 March 2022 4.83 309.53 14,36
[Add: Amortization for the year 131 102,42 103.73
Less: Disposals for the yoar {047 - %47
Lesa: On sccount of loss of control of vestioent in (1.90) - (1.9}
subgidiaries (refer note 30}
At 31 March 2023 376 41196 415,72
{Net Carrying Amount ag ai 31 March 2022 1320 3.844.01 3,558.11
Net Carrying Awount a8 at 31 Maveh 2023 128 3,503.20 3,504.44
Bervice concession agreements
Weune of entity Deseription of the arrangement Sigulficant ternm of the arcang
Intzrnatfonsl mitabaild By, L. As per the Conceasion Agrasient (CA) the Company {5 required to build |Paciod of concession: 33 years (2017-2030)
and operate Multl Level Car Parking and collect Parking fees from L grant fiom {om pranter : Mil
Vehicles and Ussr feas for Poblic Convenience Facilities, The CA also |y and 1 obligations | Wil

Basis upon which re-pricing o1 re-negotiation is determined ; Inflation
Premiut payable to grantor [Rs, 2,66 arg plus escalation increase

Chafnuge ¥ 214870 to Km 308,370 in the State of Rajesthan (Length
93,500 X} on DBFOT (Toll} Mode under NHDE Phase V (Package -
1)

Hampi Expressways Povate Limited Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transter (DEFOT) basis, Period of concesaion: 26 years (2016 - 2041)
pugmentation of the existing road from km 209,00 to lan418.750 Bemuneration : Toll Fee Collection from Road Users
(approximately 120,18 kan} on the Hoaper-Cliiradurga seclion of Inv grant from grandor : Nil
Natiowal Highway No.12 (New MNational Highwiy No.50) ! and | obligations : Wil
Basis ypon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is detennined : Inflation
[Prexviuum payable Lo grantor :Rs.18.15 cre plus acealation increase
Uchit Bxprepsway Privale Lid, Six Laming of Chittorgerb-Udaipue Section of NE-76 from Degign Period of concesslon: 29 Years (2017-2046)

Permmertion : Toll Fee Collection from Reoad Tsecs
Trvestinent grant fiom cobeaggion prantar : NIL

t andd | oiligations : VEL
Basis upen which ve-pricing or re-negotiation s deteitmined : WA

{Premiwm payable to grantor : Bs. 25 ors plus escalation inareasa

g Shivngth Expressways Drivate Lim{tad

[Foii eollcetions fron: the usets and aperation and maintenance of olal
stretch of 18,5 ks aL I H-5, Durg Bypass aa agreed between tha
Company and National Highways Amthotity of India (NHAL} on Build,
Operate and Tranafer (BOT] basie

1) Paripd of {oocossion: 32 Year and & months (2007.2030)
DR {ow1: Tall Fea Collection trom Road Users

1} Investment Grant Bem Concession Grantor ~IL

43 Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is d

will be revised 151 April of every yaar eonsidaring WPL

5} Premivm pagable be Grantor— NIL

1—Toll Tarift

Dharamshala Ropevay Litnited

Agreement entered with The Department of Tourism & Civil Aviakion,

Petiod of eancession: 40 Years from the appoiniment date (2{20-2060)

Transfar Model), referred to as "Passenger Ropeway Faciling™,

Himachol Pradesh (* Anthority' for the of B o tion : Coflection on Ropeway tickets
Tlopeway o fragr DO hala o Mc leodgany, Length of 1777 h prant from ion grantor : NIL
Meters imder DEFOT Model { Deafgn, Build, Fieance, Operate and Iov angd | obligations : Mit

Basis upan which re-picing or re-nagotiation 12 datermined : AS per

COUGESSION agrecment
Premiwm paysble Lo grantor: Bs, 1 o7 plus

L T

Matheran Ropoway Private Liniled

Developinent of 3 Ropeway project in Matheran, hal 2 of appron.
4500 Meters connecling Blutivali Villago to Madhavji Poiat al
Matharan, on Design, Bulld, Finance, Operate and Transfor (DBFOT)
taate. The Project would have all eterents of sustanabillty and wonld be
noise free, slestricity driven, Eco-Giendly and non-polluting; It is
estimated that the Project would save ~ LOJ0 tome of sarbon diodda
emissions.

The Company has signed an Agresment with The Matheran Gidsihan Nagar
Parishad, Matheran on 20th May 2003 for a period of %5 years, The Company
hes rgreed to pay eompensation aqual to 5% of its net profits of sach year o
Matheran Girfsthan Magar Parishad, Mathecan.




Tata Realty and Infrastroeture Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial siatements for the year ended 31 Marck 2023

{(Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 5
Capital work-in-progress (Refer Note 58 for ngeing)

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Project consultancy and technical charges 0.63 0.63
Others - 0.62
0.63 1.25
" Movement in Capital work-in-progress
Cpening Balance 125 0.62
Add: Additions - 0.63
Less: Capitalisation to investment property / property, plant and equipment 0.62 -
Closing Balance 0.63 1,25
Nete s
Investment property under constrnciion
Land - 1140
Project Development Expenses - 251.14
Finance Cogts (including vowinding of intevest) - 5.98
Construction Cost to Contractor 024 024
0.24 208.76
Movement in knvestment property under construction
Opening Balance 268.76 848,75
Add: Additions $.00 -
Less: Adjustiment on loss of control in subsidiaries 268.52 193.67
Less: Capitalisation to investment propetty / property, plant and equipment - 38632
Closing Balance 0.24 268.76
Note 7
Intangible assets umder development under Service Concession Arrangements (Refer Note 59)
Construction Cost to Contractor .75 7.00
Other Expenses 0.14 -
7.89 7.00
Movement in Investment property under constraction
Ompening Balange .00 1,732,15
Add: Additions 0.89 165.24
Less: Capitalisation to investment property / property, plant and equipment . 1,890.39
Closing Balance 7.89 7.00
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Cwrrency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 9
I Investment accounted using Equity Method:
A. Investment in Joint Ventures:
Unquoted equity shares, fully paid-up
2,386,711 (2022: 2,386,711) equity shares of Punc Solapur Bxpressways
Private Limited, of Ra.10 each fully paid up.
3,256 (2022: 3,256} equity shares of INR 100 each in Indystrist Minerals and
Cheemicals Company Private Limited (Refer Foot Note 1 befow)
19,987,400 (2022: 19,987,400} equity shares of INR 10 sach in Mikado
Realtors Private Limited {Refer Foot Note 1 helow) (Net of Frovision for
Impairment of Rs. Nil (2022: Rs. 18.01 crores) based on fair valuation)

839,899,999 (2022: 244,199,999) equity shares of INR 10 each in Pune IT City
Metro Rail Limited

38,079,459 (2022: Nil} equity shares of INR 10 each in Infopark Properties
Limited

2,058247 (2022: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each m Aazow Iufra Estates
Private Limited

2,183,554 (2022; Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each in Gurgaon Realtech
Limited

6,078,093 (2022; Nil) equity shares of INR. 10 each in Gurgaon Constructwell
Private Limited

B. Invesiment in Associates;

Unquoted equily shares, fully paid-up

24,400,000 {2022: 24,400,000} equity shares of INR 10 each in TRIL Censtructions
Limited

12,151,200 (2022: 12,151,200) 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares in
TRIL Constructions Limited

350,817,119 (2022: 368,335,368) equity sheres of INR 10 each in Tata
Housing Developuent Company Limited
(A

L Investments earried a¢ Amortised Cost

Invesément in debentures of Jolut Ventures:

Urnqgunoted Debentures

7,089 (2022; Nil) Non-convertible Debentures of INR 10 Lacs each in Infopark
Properties Limited

11,174 (2022: Nil) Non-convertible Debentures of INR 18 Lavs each in Mikado
Realtors Private Limited
19,015,686 (2022: Nil) Unquoted 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible

Debentures of INR 10 each in Arrow Infra Estates Private Limited

20,322,110 (2022: Nil) Unquoted 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 each in Gurgaon Resliech Limited

49,782,372 (2022: Nil}) Ungroted 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 each in Gurgaost Constrmctevell Private Limited

11,787,460 (2022: 11,787,460} Unquoted Compulsorily Convertible
Debentires of INR 160 each in Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Company
Drivate Limited

®

(A+ D)
Note:
(i} Aggregate Carrying Vahue of Ungquoted Tnvestments (Net)
{if) Aggropate amount of impairment in value of vestments
Foot Notes:

Asat
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

5837 30,05
218,13 218.81
152,68 18145
801.63 234.84
309.81 .

25.60 -
64.28 -
T4.75 -
2427 24,40
1215 1215

1,299.40 960.70

3,041,07 1,662.40
762.10 .

9238 -
18.68 -
20.90 -
4426 -
11787 117.87

1,056.19 117.87

4,097.26 1,780.27

4,097.26 1,780.27
102.57 10257

1. The Group bhas provided non disposal undertakings to the lenders / investors of its joint ventures for the minimum shaveholding that

the Company needs to maintain notil the final settlement date of the loan.




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {or the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

As at Ag &t
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 10
Other Investments {non-cwrrent)
Invesiments carrvied at Fair Value through Profi¢ or Loss
Invostment in Equity Shares of Other Companies fully Paid-up
Uncquoted equity shares, fully paid-up
Nil {2022: 136,500) equity shares of Vagarai Windfarms Timited * - 0.14
Nil (2022: 2,380,000} equity Shares of Perinyx Neap Private Limi{ed* - 2.38
Nil (2022: 45,578} equity shares of Echanda Urja Private Limited * - 045
19,000,000 (2022; 19,000,000} equity shares of Taj Air Limited - -
- 2.57
Note:
(1) Aggregate Carrying Vale of Unguoted Investments (Net) - 257

(ii) Agprogate amowtt of impairment in value of Tnvestments -

* The said investments represent investments in equity shares of the above mentioned entities purswant to the requirement under the
Biectricity Act, in connection with the power puichase atrangement that the Grong hag in place with these parties. As per the termns of
these investments, the Group is not entitled to any other returng or benefits and will be entitled to receiva the amouni investad equivalent

to the face value of the equity shares upon expiry of such agrecments,

Note 11
Other financial assets (mon~current)
Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposit having matmity more than 12 monthe under lien* 7.54 0401
Lease reptal receivable 0.06 208
Security Deposits 1,80 10.69

: 11.40 12.78

* Fixed Depogits created againat Benk Guarantees and heace, under lien

Note 12
Deferred tax assets (Net) (refer note 54}
Deferred Tax Assets 6425 68.00
Defecred Tax Lisbilitics (37.27) ©.79
Total - Net Deferred Tax Assets 27.03 67.21
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Notes to the consolidated finzucial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 13

Non corvent tax assets {Met)
Advance tax
Eess: Provision for iax

Mofe 14

Other non-current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances

Balance with Government Authorities
Prepaid expenses

Lease equalisation reserve

Note 15

Inventories

(valued at cost or net realisable vatue whichever is less)
Finished goods

Consumables stores and spaves

Note 16 :
Trade recelvables {Refer Note 61)
~ From related parties
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaived
Less : Allowance for credit impaited Trade Receivables
~ Fram others
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaired *
Less : Allowance for credit impaired Trade Receivables *

Arat As at
31 Maych 2023 3 March 2622
221.29 201.91
{166,212} {104.56)
§5.007 97.35
.86 19.45
14.48 1177
248 1114
8.48 137.24
26.30 185.60
149,08 201.85
- 0.18
149.08 20203
- 028
54.79 546
- .06
- (3.06)
- 14.04
1.75 1.66
5.70 3.20
{(5.70) (3.20)
56.54 21,44

* Previous year includes unsecured, ¢redit impaired Trade receivables / provision thereon aggregating INR 2,02 chores on acquisition of

a subsidiary,

Note 17
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
- current accounts
- deposits with original maturity less than three months
Cash on hand

MNote 18
Banlc balanzes other than cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits with original matwity more than three months but less than
twelve months

Term deposits with original meturity more than three naonths but Iess than twelve
menths under lien®

* Fixed Deposits created against Bank Guarantees and bence, vnder Hen

3392 105.73
668.60 78.03
0.17 0.17
T0L.69 183,93
74.30 39,30
24.68 224
98.98 61.54
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Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Notz 19
Investments (corrent)
Quoted Investmenis
Investment in mutual funds, fair valued through Profit and Loss
Units Held: 211,133,831 (FY 2022 : 304,988.725) of Face value of Rs 1,000 74,28 102 .49
(NAV - Rs. 3518.3452 per unit (2022 : 3360.4521 per unit)} each in quoted
investment namad TATA Ligquid Fund - Regular Plan - Growth
74.18 102.49
Note:
{iy Agpregate Market Value of Quoted Investiments (Net) 74.28 102.49
{ii) Aggregate Carrying Value of Quoted Investments {Net) 74.28 102.49
(iii) Aggregate amount of impairnent in valus of Investments - -
Note 20
Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Inter corporate deposits to related parties 2,25 -
(Unsecured, credit impaired)
Inter corporate deposits to other parties 5.17 517
Less : Loss Allowance for doubtful loans G117 5.17)
2.25 -
Note 21
Other financial asseis (current)
{Unsecured, considered good)
Interest acerued on deposits 4.01 1.96
Claims Receivable from NHAI (utility shifting) 7.33 290
Contractually recoverable expeneses from related parties 707 729
Unbiiled revenue - 8.9¢6
Claim Receivable froma NHAT (Refer foot note below) 42.61 42.61
Seourity deposits 0.74 0.71
Advances recoverable from others ) 4752 44.68
109.28 11611
Foot Note:

{a) Claim Receivable from National Highway Awuthority of India ("NHAI™) pertaing to claims towards change in law as per clause 41.1
of Service Concession Agreement entered by Hampi Expressways Private Limited with NHAI. Theso are back to back claims mada by
Contractor for Fngineering, Procurement and Construetion work ("EPC") snd a8 per clause 242 of EPC agreement and the same are
payable to the EPC Coutractor only to the extent such claims are recognised by NHALI as change in law and payments are released. To
the extent such claims are not accepted by NHAI the same shall accordingly not bo payable to EPC contractor and accordingly
corresponcding liability shall redyce {(also Refer Note 32),

{b) Advance recoverable from others pertains to advance made to the EPC contractor towards change in law as per Service Concession
Agreement ontered by Uchit Expressways Private Limited with NHAL Whilst these are back to back claims made with the NHAL such
claiims have not yet been recognised by NHAI as change in law payments, Hence, the advatice recoverable from the EPC Contractor

have been disclosed seperately,

Note 22

Other current assets

{Unsecured, considered good)

Advanee to vensdors 127 273
Balances with Government et other authorities 8.60 13.37
Prepaid expenses 5.85 11.10
Lease equalisation reserve 8.09 10.31
Capital advances 42,19 -
Others 1.58 5.81

67.64 4332
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Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian rupses in crores)

Note 24
Other equity

Reserves and sarplus
Securities premium

Capital reserve

Retained carnings

Defined benefit plan adjustiment

Ag at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,257.69 757.69
49.11 48,11
847.11 (1,569.14)
.76 1.18
2,154.67 (761.18)

Note: Debenture redemption reserve ("DRR") has not been created as per Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 due to losses ibcurred

post issuance of debenhires,

Securitles premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Tssue of equity shares during the year

Capital reserve
Balance a¢ the beginning and end of the year

Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net profit for the year ativibutable to owners

Defined henefit plan adfustment

Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan

Income tax relating o iterns that will not be reclessified to profit or loss

ppaki Y
I

757.69 75769
500,00 -

1,257.69 75769
49,11 4911
49.11 49,11
(1,569.16) {1,652.50)
241627 §3.34
847.11 {1,568.16)
113 1.63
(0.44) 0.65)
0.02 0.20
0.76 1.18
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated Ananclal statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
{Carrency: Indian rupees in ctores)

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2622
Non-conirolling interests
Balance at the beginning of the vear 2400 35.02
Less: Reduction due io loss of control in a subsidiary (Refer Note 50 (a)) - (52.59)
Loas for the year (2.48) {0.43)
: (0.48) 2.00

Nature and purpose of the reserves:

Securities premlum

1} Securities prearivm. is vsed 10 record the premium on issue of shaves. This reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

2) Dring FY 2013-16 100,000,600 equity shares of INR 10 each at a premiun of INR 10 each were issued on conversion of certain
converiible preference shares.

3) 0.41% Compulsorily convertible debentures were compulsorily convertible into equity shares by 25 August 2016 or before af the
optien of investor. During the Financial year 2016-17 {on 24 August 2016), these debentures were converted into 192,307,692 Equity
shares of INR 10 each at a premivm of INR 3 each.

4) During the FY 2020-21, 60,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR 18 each: were allotted from share application inoney pending allotment at
a premivm of INR 10 each

5) During the current year, 50,00,00,006 Equity shares of INR. 10 cach were issued and allotied at a premium of INR 10 each,

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of INR 49.1}F crores was created to record excess of net assets taken ovar pursuant to schems of merger sanctioned by
the Boinbay High Court in the year 2015-16 between Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, Mara Builder Private Limited and TRIF
Real Estate and Development Limited.

Retained Earnings
Retained Eamings ara the profits of the Group earned il date net of appropriations.

Defined Beneflt Obligatlons
Remeasumement of defined benefit oblipations pertaining to post employement beneftts,

Note 25

Non Current Borrowings

Secitred

Term Loanas;
~From banks and financial institutions 2,650.97 4,714.55
{Net of Current matwsities of long term borrowings from Banks and financial
instiwitions of Bs, 40,26 crores (20G22: Rs, §0.26 crores)

~From others 239.00 239.37
Unsecnred
Non convertible debentuares: 625,00 1,023.33

{(Net of Cwrent maturities of long term borrowings fiom non convertible
debentures of Rs. 899.37 crores (2022: Rs. 944.91 croves)

Term Loans: .
-From banks and financial institations - 90,57

3,514.97 6,067.82
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Tata Realty and Infrastructare Limited
Notes to the conselidated financlsl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 26

Other financial liabilities {non-current)
Financial Hability for preminm payment at fair value
Security deposits from cusiomers

Liability towards purchase of shares

Retention money payable

Note 27
Frovisions
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity (refer note 55)
« Compensated absences {refer note 53)
Provision for:
- Consiruction cost
- Major Maintenance of Other Assets
- Major Maintenance of Roads #

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
699.54 692.63
23,48 144,42
- 310
0.13 (.42
T23.15 836,57
512 575
5.00 6103
28.51 28,51
338 449
75.60 47.17
117,58 9195

# Ag per the best estimate of the managernent, provision is been made, towards cost of major maintenance of ¢he roads in terms of the

agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of Indis,

Movement in Major Maintenance of Roads:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balance st the beginning of the year 53.05 54,38
Add: Provision for ihe vear 3181 2782
Less: Utilisation / Settfement {9.26) (29.16)
Closing balsnce:

- Long-term Provision 75.60 4147

- Shott-terin Provision - 548
Movement in Major Maintenance of Other Assets:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balanca at the beginning of the year 4,49 L83
Add: Provision for the year 3.00 2,66
Less: Reduction on account of foss of control in subsidiary (refer note 50) {4.14) -
Closing halanee:

~ Long-ierm Provision 3.35 449
Movement in Provision for Construction Cos(:

Particulars 31 March 2423 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 28.51 12,81
Add: Provision for the year - 1570
Closing balance:

~ Long-term. Provision 28.51 28,51

Note 28

Dreferred tax (Mabilities) (Net)

Deferred Tax Asses 3126 93.05
Deferred Tax Liabilities (322.34) {36742}
Total - Net Deferved Tax Liabliitles {221.08) (274.37)
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Anat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 29
Other nen-current liabilities
Unearned rent 3.03 3737
3.03 37.37

*The unearned rent relates to difference pf present value of lease related security deposits received and actual amoont received and is
released to the statement of profit or logs on straight line basis over the tenure of lease,

Note 30
Corrent Borrowings {(Refer footnote to Note 25)
Unsecured
Short Term Loan
- From Banks - 290,00

Commercial papers
- From Muytual finds (Net of unexpired discount of Re. Mil crores (2022: - 1,796.83

Rs. 23,17 erores)#

Bank Overdraft - Repayable on demand - 4329
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings .

- Term Loans From Banks - 27.14
- Noa-convertible debentures 39237 . 944 .91
- From banks and financial institnitions 40,26 30,26

Others:

- Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 6.00 -

- Loatis from Others * 1.00 L.00
Interest acorued hut not doe on borrowings . 64.83 §2.44
Interest Pavable to Others . 0.17 -

1,011.63 3,265.87
Naote:

# The said borrowing represents Commercial paper issued to mufual funds af a discount rate ranging from 4.73% - 6.00% per annum
(2022: 3.80% - 5.00% per anmum), and the same are repayuble within one year st the agreed upon full face value.

* Borrowing outstanding as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is interest bearing equivalent to net FD Interest rate, which shall be
due and repayable after satisfaction of tranche 1 conditions suck as approval fiom relevant anthorities to consttuct road from Bhivpuri
10 ropeway base station, EIA Clearance as required under the Environment Impret Assessment Notificatton, 2006, approval of ROW
from District Collector and Forest Conservator and ofler conditions as menfioned in Share Holding Agreement. The Group estimates
that these conditions will be satisfied by March 2024,

Q” Genr:t B X

Hoth G o
ettt
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 31
Trade payables (Refer Note 62)

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Swall Bnterprises (Refer Note 48}
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises

Note 32

Current - Other financia! liabilities

Security deposits from customers

Capilal creditors

Financial liability for premiwm payient at falr value
Payable - Claim to EPC (Refer foot note to Note 21)
Other financial liabilities

Note 33 :

Other current liabilities

Advances from customers

Statutory dues

Corpus Fuad collection

Cornpensation on delayed possession payable
Unearned rent

Security Deposit from Customers

Other current Labilities

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 Maxch 2022
0.55 0.34
63.77 82,71
64.32 83.05
13.37 116.19
96.44 T0.19
54.54 48.53
42,61 42.61
2,70 3,13
216.66 280.65
296 J1.86
14.71 14.46
5.64 5.05
0,11 0.11
235 16.96
- 0.53
1.89 .65
27.66 T0.62

¥The unsarnex] rent relaies to difference pf present value of lease related security deposits received and actual amount received and is

released to the statement of profit or Joss on straight line basis over the tenure of lease.

Naote 34
Provisious
Provision for: employee bonefits:
- Gratuity {refer note 55} 1.49 077
- Compensated absences (refer note 55) 2.01 1.65
Provisions for:
- Major Maimenance of Road {refer footnote to Note No. 27) - 588
- Comtingencies : 0.97 -
447 8.30
Movement in Provision for contingencies:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Provision Tor the year 0.97 -
Closing balance:
- Bhort-terin Provision 0.97 -
Nate 35
Clurrent tax liabilities (Nef)
Provision for Tax 342,73 89.95
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (331.30) {72.14)
11.43 17.81

o G W
Heseo I P
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Tata Realfy and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 23
Equity share capital . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised share capital .
8,00.00,00,000 (2022: 8,00,00,00.000) equity shares of INR 10 each : 8,000,00 8,000.00
. Issned, subseribed and pald-up _
2,11,73,07,698 (2022: 1,61,73,07,692) equity shares of INR. 10 cach 2,117.31 1,617.31
2,117.51 1,617.31

A, Reconeiliatlon of the shares autstanding a¢ the begianing and at the end of the year

Equity sharcs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amgpunt
At beginning of the yvear 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31
Issned duting the vear # 50,60,00,0466 504,00 - .
Cutstanding at the end of the year 2,11,73,07,698 2,117.a1 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31

#During the current year, 50,00,00,006 Bquity shares of INR 10 each were aflotted at a premium of INR 10 each on rights basis.
b. Rights, preferences and restrietions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one yote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends, if any, in Indian rupees. The dividend ptopused by the Board of Directars, if any, is subject to the approval of
sharcholders in the ensuing Ansial General Meeting, In the event of lguidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion te the nunber of equity
ghares held by the shareholders, There are no shares issued for a consideration other than cagh,

c. Shares of the Compnny held by the Holding company*

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shaces of INB. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limiled and its nominees 1,11,73,07,698 1,817.31 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31
d. Details of shareholding more than 5% in ¢he Company
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares | % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Eguity shates of INR. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominees 2,11,73,07.698 100% 1,61,73,07.692 100%

e. Details of shareholding of promoters and percentage of change during the vear*
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares| % Holding Numboer of shares % Holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited and its noménees 2,11,73,07,698 100%% 1.61,73,07,682 180%|

*Foot Note:
There has been no change in percentage of promoters shareholding during the current year as well 83 in the previous year,

T
i ppnanl B

T G 3

fesco b

[

183



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
~ {Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 36

Revenue from operations

Disaggregation of Revenue is as follows:

{A) Sales of products
Sale of residential flats 85.63 73.81
{B) Sale of services
Construction revenue (Refer Note 50) 74,83 240.23
ToH revenue 429.85 324.16
Lease rentals _ ' 168.03 573.03
Project management consultancy fees 45.04 -
Asset Management Charges Income 14.00 0.72
Maintenance and other receipts 25,95 70,53
Utility income 9.83 2737
Parking fees income . 3.25 10.26
Room revenue 435 235
Sale of Food and beverages 3.00 1.29
Sale of scrap _ 0.16 0.17
Revenue from other services 0.61 0.67
864.55 1,324.59
Note 37
Other income
Interest income under the effective interest method .
- ot fixed deposits with banks 27.66 7.59
- ot Inter corporate deposits / non convertible debentures §9.52 375
Interest income on income tax refund 1.24 3.14
Cther non operating income:
Profit on sale of current investments in Mutual Funds 7.27 4.60
Mark to Market gain on current investment in Mutual funds 0.87 1,05
Profit on sale of Property Plant and equipment 0.33 -
Foreign exchange (Forward Contract Gain) : : - ' 0.12
Fair valug gain on derivatives (net) - 12.63
Other income from residential projects 0.19 0,46
Sundry Liabilities/ Provision weitten off 137 -
Miscellaneous income 0.73 1.03
99.18 36.37
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Tata Realfy and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 38

Changes in invenlory of finished goods

Finished Goods

Expenditure incurrved during the year:

Opening stock of Tnventories - Finished Goods

Less « pursuant to loss of control in a subsidiary {Refer Note 50 (&)}
Addition during the year

Other expenses

Less: Closing Stock of Inventories - Finished goods
Changes in inventory of finished goods

Noie 39
Constraction costs for Toll Roads (Refer note 51)

Note 40

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions o provident and other funds
Staff welfare

Gratnity expenses (refer note 55)
Compensated absences (refer note 55)

Less: capitalised to investment property under construction
Less: capitalised to intangible assets under development

Note 41
Finance costs
Interest costs on financial liabilities measured using amortised Costs:
- on term loans and NCD's from Banks and Financial Institutions
~ on cash credit and overdrafts from Banks
- on commercial paper from Mutual Funds
- on Leage liabilities
Marl-to-market loss on forward contract
Finance charges
Unwinding of interest expense

less: capitalised to investment property under construction
less; capitalised to intangible assets under development

A+R

31 March 2033 31 March 2022
201.85 271.29

- (24.34)
201.85 246.95
201.85 246.95
149.08 201.85
52,77 45.10
73.95 239.47
7395 239.47
95,60 87.39
2.81 3.34
4.04 3.02
1.58 2.63
0.88 113
104.91 97.51

. (0.34)

- (1.19)
104.91 95,08
414.27 55136
0.45 0.61
26.49 54,78
0.12 0.13
0.22 0.05
711 3.07
75.43 101.47
524.09 71147

- (12.79)

- (10.06)
524.09 688.62
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Curtency: Indian rupees in crores)
31 March 2023 31 March 2922

Note 42
Other expenses
Power and fuel 16.24 30.32
Provision for diminution in value of Investmenis (Refor Note 9) - 18.01
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 0.07 0.62
~ Plant and Machinery ) 0.69 021
- Provisicn for Major Maintenance of Roads (Refer Note 27) 31.81 27.82
- Provision for Major Maintenance of Others Assets 3.00 2.66
- Others 14.04 8.95
Project operating and maintenance charges 57.14 72.96
Advettisement and business promotion expenses 5.25 57
Legal and professional fees 20.79 19.62
Rates and taxes 11.83 8,70
Rent (Refer Note 47) 1.57 1.00
Travelling and conveyance 5.92 3.66
Bank charges 0.17 0.16
Telephone and communication expenses 0.34 0.27
Training and recruitment expenses 2,02 1.67
Loss allowance for Trade Receivables ' : 017 : 0.82
Auditor’s retnuperation (Refer foot note below) 1.57 1.76
Brokerage 21.41 5,12
Arbitration Award paid - -
Insurance charges 6.09 5.29
Fees to NHAL 1.14 1,08
Printing, courier and stationery 0.12 0.11
Diircctors sitting fees 0.55 027
Loss ot sale of property, plant and equipment ' 0.02 0.01
Expenditure on Corporate SBocial Responsibility 0.46 1.45
Provision for contingencies 0.97 -
Miscellaneous expenses . 9.57 8.59
212,95 226.84
Faot Note:
Auditor's remuneration include payments townards:
- for statutory audits 1.46 1.10
- for limited reviews / audits of condensged interim financial information 0.05 0.36
- for tax audits ' 0.05 0.18
- for other services 0.01 0.12

1,57 1.76
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statoments for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: [ndian mpeee {n crores}

Note 43
Earnings per share
31 March 2023 J1 March 2022
Basic eavnings per share
Profit after tax attributable $o eqnity sharebolders A 2416.27 8334
Numthor of equity shares owtstanding at the begining of the year 1,61,73,07,692 1,61, 73,07.602
Equity shares ssued on 11 October2022 20,00,00,006 -
Eemity shares issued on 27 March 2023 30,00,00,000 -
Number of squity shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,11,73,07,698 1,61,73,07 602
Woighted averzge number of equity shatss outatanding doring the year {Basiz) B 1,71,56,63,559 1,61,73,07,602
Woeighted gversge number of equity shares outatanding during the year (Diluted) C 1,71,56,63,859 1.61,73,07,692
Basic eanings per share of face valne of Rs 10 each [D=A/B] 14.08 0.52
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted santings pet shar of faco value of INR 10 gach [E = AMC] 14.08 0,52
Nole 44
Continpgncies aod commitments
{f) Continpent Lisbilitles {Refer footnots)
Claims against ilre Group not acknowledged as debis 31 March 2023 M March 2022
- Diirect tax 45,73 46.18
- Indlireet tax. 9.99 11,03
- Othes Legal Clalms 1871 20,62
Foot Note;

The Group does not expest any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefors no provision is made n tespect thensof.

({i) Commiimen(ts

(@) Indemnity for representations and warranties for disinvestment in retail business - INR 10,00 crores {2022: IMR, 13.50 aroras).
(b) Bank guarantess issued on behalf of the Parent Compatyy and its Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures qut of the overall non fand baged limits of the Company -

TNE 84 .00 crores (2022, INR 34,59 crares),

(¢} The Parent Company has issucd letict of contrt to banks in respect of loans avalled by a fow of its subaiﬁiaries and joint ventares :

Name of subsidiaries / folnt venturas

Nature of Combort miven

i |Mikado Realtors Pyt. Lid.

Shortfall indertaking b et any shortfall during the temue of facility

(€} The Parent Company has fssued financlal suppont lettsr to following subsidiaries on the basls of which the scparate financial

prapared on going concem basis:

1) Acime Living Solutions Frivate Limited
2) MIA Infrastmciure Private Limited .

t have been

3) Wellkept Facility Munagement Services Private Liméted (Previously known ag TRIL Hospitatity Private Limited)

4} TRIF Gurgaon Hovsing Projacts Private Limited
51 HY Farmg Private Limited

6) Tril Bengaluma Real Estate One Private Limited
7) TRIL Bengalucn Conaultants Private Lindied

B) Tril Bangalury Real Estats Three Pelvate Lindted
9) TRIL Roads Privatc Limited

10) TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited

11) Inteenational Efrabuild Private Limited

Note 45
Capital and other commliments

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

advanees)

Estiraated amount of cootracts remaining to be exeeuted ot capital account and oot provided for (pet of copiial 4,71

72.40
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currenoy: lodian enpees in crores)

Note 46
Segment reporting
A. Bagis for segmentation
The Geoup bes thres reporiable operating segments, as described below, which are the Group's sirategic business units, These business undts offer different
procucts and services, and are managed sepamtely bocanss they require diffierent techniolowry and marketing strategles,

The following suamaty describes the opemstians in each of the Group's reportabla eparating segments:

Reportahls gperating sooment
- Development of Residential property for qutright sale,
- Real Gatate
- Infrastroctura

B, Informatlou about reportable operating segments

Hiformation regarding the tesulis of each reportable opetating segment 15 included below, Perfornance i measured based on segment profit (befire tax), as
tocluded in the internal management reparta that are teviewed by the Group's CODM i.e Maneging Director, Segment protit & used to measure performance as
tnamagement belleves that such infonmation is the ost relevant in evaluating the results of certain seguents celative to ofber entities that operate within these
induatring, Tnter-segment pricing is deternined on an anm's length basis,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes i the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Cunency: Indian rupees in croms)

Note 47
Lease arrangements

A Operating leases - a8 n lessee

a) The Group has faken various premises under cancallabls operating kzases,

by  The Group has slse taken & commercial properly end certaln residential premises on non-cancellable eperating keases, The foture undiscountd mininuam leage
paymenis in respect of these propertics a5 on 31 March 2023 is as follows: Thete are no Jease copmmittments.

Lease Payments 31 March 023 31 March 2022
Not later than one year - -
Later than ong year but not Iatet then five yenrs . -
Later than five vgars - _
Paymenis of leasa rentals ducing the vear 1.57 1.00

) There ae no exceptdonalrestrictive co ig it the lesse agreements.

B As a lessor;

)  Oporating Lease
The Group hes Jeased some invesmoent propertics. As on 31 March 2023, fhe futare minimum lease undiscounted payments in tespect of these properties till
the expiry of lock in period is as follows: .

31 March 2423 31 March 2022
Mot later than one year 65.29 432,78
Later than ane year but not laker then five years 76.82 L,073.13
Eter than five years .13 195,89
145.24 1,851.80
Lense Reatal Income for the yesr 168,03 573.03

{ii}  Finaoce leases - Mi~ont and interlor work

The Group's leasing aranpement represenis the fit-out or intetlor worlkt complated for the customers which have been classified under Ind A8 116 aa Finace
lease, The lease tetms are for the perinds of five to seven years where aubatantinlly all #1e riske end rewerds of ownerslip are transferred to the lessee and are
teceived in advance on & monthly basis. The Group recerde disposal of the property concemed amd recognizes the subsequent interest in the finance lease, Mo
contingent tent is receivable in this regard,

Finanee leases are receivable aa follows:

Gross lnvestment In lease 31 March 2023 51 Mareh 2022
Receivable within one yeae - 0.52
Receiyable between ong and five years - 262
Rexedvable after five years - 0.33

- 347
Preseat value of minimum lease paymenis 31 March 2023 31 March 2041
Nar Iytar than ane year - 0,25
Later than one year but not later than 5 years - 1.§2
Later than 5 yeats - Q.31

- 2,38
Unearned Lease income - 1.08
Note 48

Micro, Small and Medlun Enterpidses
Miero and small enterprises under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Ast, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force fom 2 October 2006
have been datermined hased on the information available with the Company and the required disclosures ave given below:

31 March 2023 31 lacch 2022

Principal amount yamaining unpaid as at the year and (outstanding for less than 30 days } * 0.55 0.34
Interest due thereon - -
‘The atnount of interest paid by the bryer a3 per the Micio Swmall and Madiam Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - o
(MSMED Act, 2006)

The enwunis of the payments made to amicto and small syppliers boyond the appointed day during each - -
accounting year

The amquat of interast due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which have been paid bat - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the inferest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

The atmowriit of Interest acorued and rewaining uogeid at the end of each accommling year, - -
| The amount of Amthor interest remajning dus and pavable even In the succeeding yeats, urntil sush date when the - -
“_,f,{_‘ @ﬁ”ﬂs ucs as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposa of disellowance as & deductible

e under (e MSMED Act, 2006

T .
Q%EI‘I 1::][‘5 q.\lull_@nt \lﬂmt acnened and ining unpwid at the end of the ing year - -

bt & \
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Tata Realty and Infrastructire Limited

Notes to the consolidated finanelal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currenzy: Indian rupees in erprag)

Mate 49

{a) Gain on acconnt of loss of controel in TCG Entitiex iu 'Y 20222023

Upte 20 May 2022, the Group held 100% awnership intersst in (be entitics: Amow Infracstate Private Limited ("Amow*), Qurgaon Realtech Limfted
("GRL"jand Gurgacn Constract Well Pivats Limited ("GCWLM {also collectively refemred to s "TCG Entities” o "erstwhile subsidisries"). Subsequently, the
Group disposed off 24.5% ownership mterest in each of the TCG entities on 20 May 2022 which resulted in a loss of control on account of contrastual
amapgements entered nto with the JV patner in accordance with the requiretnents of Ind AS 110 - Consolldated Financixl Statsmments. Further 24.5%
ownership interest in each of the TCG entities waa sold on 13 Decamber 2022, Curalative consideration recleved for the sale of ownership interest In two
tragches amounted to R, 187.35 crores. The entity has recognised the residual stales held in tha TCG entities at its fajr valus on the date of loss of control as
dizclosed in "Investment accounted using squity method",

The detafls of auch dispoeal are a3 aat out in the tabla balow:

Partleulars Arrow GRL GCWL
Congiderstlon recetved {n cash - Tranche 1 14.8% 0.4 48,26
Equity Inveatmant ratained in the exstwhile subsidiavy at its fair value on (ie date of]
Tosa of control - Tranche 1 44.10 99,10 L1352
Other T tatned in the erstwhile subsidiary betng Compulsary convertible
Dabentures at its fair value on the date of loss of control - Tranche L 917 10,74 19.57
Other Invastments tetatned in the etstwhils subsidiary being Opttonally Cosvertible]
Debentwes at fis fair va]uF on the date of Joss of contral - Tranche | 1864 10.6 4821
Tatal (4) 86.80 160,21 231.95
Asgets, liabilities and non-controlling hterest of the subaldiary derecognised ab
their earrying amouats on the date of loss of contirol:
Praperty, FPlant and Bquiptent - Q.01 -
Tovestiiont Property 213.22 254,26 1021
Investment Property toder conetruction ’ - 31z 265.86
Intangible Asscks - - -
Non Current Investments - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 840 16.72 4,12
Giber current asseta 11,92 35,12 0.03
Current linbilllies {29.47) (35,30 {25.43)
Non-Current Liablkitles (198,773 (2T7.44) {0.74)
Total (B} 5.30 (3.50) 254,058
Profit on dsposal = (4) - (B) $1.51] 163.71 (22.10)
Parilculars ArEQW GRL GCWL
Consideration received in cash - Tranche 2 14,55 30.87 48,34
Total (A} 14.55 3087 45,34
Fuir Value as on dete of sale for 75, 5% ownership interest held in equity shares 44,10 99,10 115.52
Proportionata Fair Velue for 25.5% ovnerslidp hiterest held in equity shares to be sold] 14,31 I 37.49
in iramche 2 :
Total (B} 14,31 3316 3749
Profit on disposal = (A} -~ (B) 0.4 {1.29 10,85
Summary of Sale
Particulacs Arrow GRL GCWL
Cumulative Considernton received on sake of stake in erstwhile subsidinries 2944 61.31 96.60
Covulative Clain reocived on sale of steke i emtwlile sobeidiaries disclosed]
£p Iy in "Other T " in the statement of profit and loss 8175 16242 {11.24)
Ned Carrying Value of halance Equity Ivestment in the erstwlhile subsidiary, post salg|
of stake in erstwhils sobsidiarics, disclosed in "Investments eccousted under Bquity
“Methud" as Investment in Joint v 20,79 A6.04 7803
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian tupees in crores)

(b} Galo on acconnt of loss of contrel in subsidiaries L.o TIL and IFL in FY 2022.2023

Upto 2 July 2022, the Growp held 100% ownership interest in the entities: TRIL Infopark Limited ("TIE"} and Infopark Prapertics Limited (' TPL™) (hereinafter
collectively refered to as "erstwhile subsidiarics™), ‘The Group sold its eutires stake io TI. to fts subsidary IPL for a cumlative consideration of Rs, 3,882.99
crores and recoguised a gain hereon pf INIX 2,612.82 crores, Subsequent to the transfer of stake, TPL issued shares & extesnal antities which resulted in a Inas
of overall control by TRIL in accordance with he requirements of Ind A8 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. The entity bad recognised the residunl
stake held in TPL at its fair value on the date of foss of control as disclesed in "investment accounted using equity method” and recognised a fair valug gain of
INR 405,49 crores, On 29 March 2023, TRIL forther reduced its equity investment in 1PL to 51% by selling part of its stake to the T Partner and recognised a

gain of INR 145,74 crores on sale theceon,

The details of such disposal are as set out in His table below:

Los of contral
Pacdculars TIL Sale to [PL 1u TPL
Consickration reesivesd in cash 3,882.50 -
Equity [nvestient retained in the erstwhile subsidiacy at its fair vahie on - 434,18
the date of loss of control - Tranchs 1
: Total (A) 3,382.99 434,18
Assets, liabilities and nen~controlling interest of the subsidiary
Froperty, Plant and Equipment 0.64 -
Investment Proparty 1.855,13 -
Investment Properly ander construction 3.23 -
Intangible Asssts 141696 -
Mon Currant Inveatmants 2,52 ~
Cash and cash equivalaaty 7.6 4.33
Other current Rssets 160.48 4.25
Curgent linbilities (349.77) {570.63)
Non-Cutrent Lisbilities (1.986.66) 59074
Total (B} 1,270.17 28.69
Profit om disposal = (A) ~ (B} 2,612.82 405,48
Sale of Pariial
Particulars Stake lo IPL, |
Consideration teceived incagh 147.29
Total {A) 147.29
Fair Value as on date of sale for 51.18% ownership interest held in equity
shares 434,18
Proportionate Fair Value for 0.18% ownershp intercst held In equity 1.55
shares io be sold
Total (1) 1,55
Profit on disposal = (A} - (B) 145,74
Summary of Sale
Particalars Infopark IPL
Curnylative Cousideration recelved on sale of stake 3,882,099 147.29
Cumglative Gain received on sale of stale in esrtwhila subsidiaries) 2,612.82 351.22
disclosad seperately in "Cther Income" in the statament of profit and loss
Net Canying Valus of balancs Houity investment i the estwhile] - 432,42
'|subsidiary, post sale of stake in erstwhile subsidiaries, disclosad in
"Investments accowred under Bquity Methad" as Inveabment in Joint]
venmures )
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Tata Realty and Infrastrnciure Limited
MNotes to the eonsolidated fi fal stat ts for the yeor ended 31 March 2023
{(Currency: Indian rupees in srords)

{c) Galn on pecount of loss of control ln a subsidiary Le TCL in FY 2021-2022
Upto 16 Novamber 2021, tha Group bad 67.50% ownership interest in TRIL Constructions Limited ("TCL" or "former subsidiary"), & suhaidiary, On 17
Novaniber 2021, the Grovp disposed off 47.75% ownership interest in TCL, thereby losing control over TCL.

The details of such disposal are as set out in the able below:

Particulars INR n crores
Congidetation received in cash 47.13
Investoent retadned in the Former subsidiary atfts Bair value on the date of loss of’ 36,55
contral
Total (8) 83.68

Assots, liabilities and non-controlling interest of the subsidiary devecognised at
their caveying amounts on the date of lass of control;

Tnvastment Propetiy undar consimetion - 193.67
Inventorias 24.34
Cash and cash equivalents 111}
Other current assets 0.03
Current liabilitles {3.41)
Non-Cunent Lizbilities (93.3%)
Non-Ceantrolling interests (52.59)
Total (B) 68.67
Profit ou disposal ={A) - (B) 1501

{d) Aceuisition of a subsidiary Le TRIL IT4 in FY 20212022

Uptzr 27 July 2021, the Group had assessed and classified its 79.50% oquity fntecest in TRIL IT4 Private Limited (TRIL IT4) as a joint venture and had
accordingly accounted for its investment i1 TRIL 114 using the Bauity Method of recaunting in the consolidated financial atatements,

TRIL IT4 i engaged in the business of developing and leasing of commerncial real estate propertias, which quelifies a5 » bisinesa s dedined in Ind A8 103. On
28 Tuly 2021, the Group acquired the balange aquity intscest in TRIL IT4 to obtain 100% equity interest and control in TRIL IT4 far strategic purposes, The
goodwill acquired on acquisition of increase in stake o interest perlains to expected synergies on acquisition. ’

The details of such acquisition are as set out in the table below:

Paviienlars INR in crares
Comidaration tanafaerad in cagh 114.58
Tha aoepogtion date Fdr value of the Group’s praviausly held equity interest in TRIL 441.70
1T4 (Refer footnoie balow)
Total {A) 552,28

The amounts recopnised in respoct of the identifiable assels acquired amd
liabilities asswmed

Investment Property 991.64
Evestment Property under consiruction 940
Einanrcial Assets (Jovestrmants i mutos] fends) 414
Current Tax Assets 22.19
Cash and Cagh equivalents 4,05
Other Current Assets 2385
Current Liabilities 407.70)
Financial Liabilitles {Borrowings) (110.0m
Deferred Tax Liabilities (198.98)
Total (8) 340.55
Goodwill on acyuisition = (A) - (B) 21L73
Footnofe:

The carrying vahia of ihe Group's previously leld equity interest in TRIL 1T4 (prior to acquisition of centrol over TRIL IT4} under the equity method of
accoumting was INR MIL. Pursuant to the acquisition of control over TRIL Y14, the Group has remeasured jts proviously held syuity intersst i TRIL
T4 atits accuisitian date fair valus, Such remeastement has resulted in 8 gait of INR 44170 crores, which has been recognised in the Conselidated
Statement of Profit and Loss tn accordance with the requitements of Ind AS 103 on "Business Combinations”,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Naotes to the consolidated finanelal stntemenis Tor the yerr ended 31 March 2023
(Cwrancy: Indisn rupees in croves)

Note 50

Disclogurss pursuant to NI AS 115 - Revenue from Coutraet with Consumers

[A] Mscinsure tn respest of Constroction Centracts (refer note 36

For the Year For the Year
Tarticolars ended ended
31 ivEarch 2023 | 31 March 2022
Contract reveme recapnized 85 reveus
during the year 74.83 240.23
For the Year For the Yoar
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2012
Cunntativies reversie recopndzed 2,792,711 290334
Cumulative costs incumed 2,669.00 2,781.42
Cunulative merging gecounted 112,81 12193
Advances paid 42.53 16.28
Ratention money payabla 5.22 174

[B| Disclosure In reapect of disaggregatlon of reveuns basis Hming of revenup vevognition

For the Year For the Year

Farticulars onded ended

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Revenme tecoghised at a point in time 523.62 402,45
Rewenue tecoghised over a periad of tie 172.90 349.11
Total 696,52 75156
Add: Revenue from Lease ventals 168.03 57303
Total Reverue frem Operations 864.55 1,324,59

IC]  Reeoucllintion of Revenme as per transaction price and coniract price

Druring the year, the revenus a5 per transaction price reconeiles with the revenus a3 per coniract price,

@] Movement tn Contract Balances - Adyances from Cuostomers

Tor the Year For the Year
Particulors ended ended
31 Marel 2023 | 31 March 2022

Opening Balance

= Nou Current - 7050

- Current 3186 18.93
Add: Additional advances racaived - -
Laaa: Revenue recognised during tha year (28.90) (57.57)
Cloging Balange

- Non Currenf - -

= Current 296 31.86
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Tata Realty and Infrasteneture Limited
Notes to the Hdated Anancinl stat tz for the yenr onded 31 March 2023

{Cwrancy: Indian rupecs in erpres)
Note 51
Inierests in other enditles
{m) Subsldiaries

The Parent Company™s subsidiaties a131 March 2023 are sel out below.

Place of % of aenrarship interest

Namig of entity buiness 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Arie Living Solutions Privaty Limiped [ndia 100% L0D%
Arrow Inflasatate Private Limited (ceased tobea [ndia - 100%
aubsitiary w.e.E 20 May 2022) (Refer Nate 51(8)
Gurgeon Constractwel] Private Limited {ceased io bea India - 100%
subsidiary w.e £ 20 May 2022) (Refer Nots 51(d)}
Gurgoon Realftech Limiled {poased to be a subsidiary Indiz - 100%
w.af. 30 May 2022) (Refer Note 31{@))
TRIL Roads Private Limited Indis 1004 109%4%
TRIF Gurgaon Honsing Projects Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIL Uthen Transport Private Limited udia 1008 L00%
Wellkept Pacllity Managemant Sarvices Privata Limited India 20054 10054
TRIL Infopack Liwited {ceased to be a subsidiary w.ef. 8 India - L00%%
Tuly 2022) (Refer Mot 51(d)) :
Hampi Brpressway Private Limited Indin 100 100%%
HV Faxtns Private Limited Fndia 10 100%
International Infrabuild Private Limited (IIPLY* [ndia 26% 26%
Dharaeshala Ropeway Limited ndia A% 4%,
Uchit Expressways Private Limited India 1004 L00%
Wintheren Ropewsays Private Limited [ndia TS kS
Durg Shivosth Expressways Private Limiced Tadia 100% 100%
MIA Infiastrachere Private Limied [ndia 100% L00%
TRIL Bengaluru Beal Fstate One Private Limited lirdlia 100% 100%
TRIL Beogalum Consulrasts Private Linilted [ndia 100% 100%%
TRiL Bengalurn Real Estabe Three Private Limited India 100%3 100%
TRIL IT4 Private Limited {became 100% subsidiay India 100% 100%
w.af, 28 fuly 2021) (Rafer Note 50 {))
Infopark Properties Limited (subsidiary w.o.E 3 Tadia - 100%
Decamber 2021 and eeaeed 1o be 8 sutaidiary w.el 8
Tuly 2022) {Refer Note 51¢d))

*Signilicant judgentent: consolliation of entlies with les than 50% voting interest
Alibongh the Group ovwas less then cpe-half of the voting pewer of International Infralwiid Privale Limibed (EL), it 5 able to controd TFL by virue of an agreement with the other investora of TFL which inter-alin

provides the Group with powet to appoint majotity of the board of directors of ITPE. and povwer over relevant activities, Conseguently, the Group licabas its I in IIPL.
(b) Non-controlling Injerests (NCD .
Set ot below is sommarised fivancis! infivmation for sach subsldiary that hes non-contvolling ietecests o the Group, The lisclosed for each subsidiary am bofbre inter-company eliminativns.
[ $1ed balk heet
Dharamshnla Ropewny TRIL Constructions Inigraatipesl Infralulld Frivate  Matheran B Private
Limited (256%) Efmited ¥ Lintted (74%) Limited (30%)
A March 2023 3 March 2022 3 March 2023 3 March 2622 31 March 2023 3 March 2022 31 March 2025 31 March 2022
Non-cunent adscts Hig.a1 21378 - - 4704 4944 .30 16.94
Current essets : 5.64 977 - - &.66 449 1.20 830
Mo prrient Fabilies (1872.79) (176.80) - . (35,300 {38,22) - -
Cuyrrent liabililics {20.15) (35,081 - - (13.67) (8.17) (1.28) {119}
Nat assets . 6,30 11464 - - T 7.53 .25 24,08
et sssets attributatls 1o NCT (2.54) - - - - - H03 240
Dharamshala Ropewny TRIL Congtructtons Internatianal Infeabuild Pelvate Mathersn Ropewnys Privaio
Particulars Limdied {26%) Limited * Limbed {74%) Timdbed (M%)

3 Maorch 2023 31 Macch 2022 31 March 2023 Tl 17 Nov 2021 3f March 3023 31 Maorch 2022 31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022

Summarised stotemsent of profit and loss:

Reyenue 10.21 187,13 - - 1292 2.21 037 0.3
{Loag)/Profit (9.50) (8. 76} - {1.50 018 3,79} 0.18 0.23
Qact (0.15) 411)1 - - - - - -
Total comprehengive income (5, 76) (8.74) - {1,563 1,18 {3.79) 0.18 0.23
Profit/ {Loss) atlocated ko MCL (2.54) 227 - 0.4% 013 {2.30) 0.05 0.07
(Cl allocated o NCI - - n - - - - -
Total comprehensive income afy d to NCI (2.54) (227) - 345 0,13 12,80) 005 0.07
Loss to NCI Restricted 2.54) 0.91) - 0.45) v - 095 047
Sunwarilsed cash Bows

Caeh flows fron aperatlog actlvities 4,38 (3.66) - (0.3 475 .60 (.10 10.22}
Cash flows from investing activilies . (1.08) (45.31) - - 0,05 - .09 0.2
Cash flows from financity actviticy {2.583) 4309 - 0.26 (2.00) (0.08) (0.01) (0.00)
Net increasef (decrense] in cash and eazh equivalents (.69 602 - (0.04) .80 051 (.02 1.0%

* peased to be 2 subsidiary w.e £ 17 November 2021 (Refer Note 50 (2))
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Tata Realty and lnfrastructure Limited
Notes to the C lid lal stat tg for the yerv ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: kdian rupess in crars)

Nele 52
Flomelal lestroments — Foir values and vlsk management
Thia following iable shows tho carying amounts and it values of Eoancial asssts and Gngneial liabilities, including their beyels in the Ezir value hierarchy.  does net include fair value infirmation for fimancial Bsseis
isting of [ Trate regei Cash and cash equivalents, Leaso rent reccivable, Unbilled vevenue, Dreposil other thar inchided b cash mad cash equlvabents, Securliy depposits and Other fingnrisl assels and
ial liabilifies mtlng of Non 1hle det , Flraretal Habillly for prentium payment, Borrmwdng from Benks and fnancla! institotons, Commeeeis] paper isswed b motral fomds, nterest- fiee zeourdty
depnstts o rustomers, Other fianclal lialitites and Trade peyables which not measured at fhir valug as the carrying amouct i3 reasoaatle approximatiod of Balr vate

A, Accouniing dassliicatlon and fir values

Carrylng xmount Tair valpe
Level 2. Level 3=
31 March 2022 _ FVIPL  TVTOCI  Amortlsed Cost Total B e, Tok
fnputs Inputy

Tinanelal assets
Imvestments
~ Bonds and dehenfures - - 1,056.18 1,056.19 - - - -
Curyent invesiments n mwbee! futds 28 - - T4.28. 74.28 - - Fo ¥
Trade recsivables - - 5654 5694 - - - -
Cash and cash squivalenty - - 70269 702,69 - - - .
Lass rent receivable - - 0.06 0.06 - - - .
Uabilled revenue - - - - - - - -
Deposit other thas ingluded in cash and cash eqaivalents - - 106,52 106,52 - - - "
Security depoalts - - 4.54 4.54 - - - .
Other financlel assets - - 10147 10147 - - - -

3,11533 - 203733 515348 428 - 3841407 311838
Finamal linbHdes .
Nou convertible dehcotares - - 1,524.3% 1,524.3% . - - -
Finaticial Tability e premium payment - - 60054 699.54 - - - -
Borrowlng from Banle and fikaacial institutions - - 2,530.23 1,930.22 - - . u
Commevcial paper ssucd io imstua! funde - - - - - - - -
Interesi- frae pecurity depodits from custoreas - - 36,95 35835 - - - .
Other financial fiablllties - - 270,57 276.57 - - - -
Trade payahla - - 64.32 6432 - - - -

- - 583188 £331,88 - - . .
Carrying amaunt Fair valoe
Levell - Levell-
) Leyvel 1 ~Qoated prlee  Slgnlicant Slgnifeant
31 Mareh 2022 FYTPL FYTOCE Awgortleed Cost Total I setive matkets choervable  wobservahic Tolat
nputs Lagtila

Financizl assets
Investments
- Enuity instrumenis in othes (oofer note 10} 257 - - 257 - - 257 157
- Bondle and debreniurss - - 117,67 117,87 - "
Current investmens in mubual funds 10249 - 102,49 192,43 - - 102,49
Intet-cotporata Deposiia glven to Related Pacthe - - - - - - - -

Trade reasivables - - 244 2144 - - - -
Cash and cash equivelents - - 183,93 183,93 - - - -
Lease vaxit renelvable - - 2408 .08 - - - -
Untltled revenue - - B.98 §.95 - - - -
Deposit other than fncluded in cush and cash oqrivelent - - f1.55 61.55 - - - -

ity deposits - - 11.40 1140 - - - .
Loang - - - - - - - -
Other fnancia! ascs - - 106.44 106.44 - - - -

1,700.46 - 1367 2,281,132 102,42 n 1,664.97 A, 75746
Finencizl Dablllties

‘Non convartibta deh e - - 1,968.24 1,968.24 - . B -
Financial lishility foc premiom peyment - - 692,62 692.63 - - - -

[ Bottenrlng from Hanks and financial betiturions - - 5 MLES 544189 - - - -
Commercdal paper issucd to mutual finds - - 1,796.83 1,796.53 - - - -
Interest- fres seourity deposlty fram customens - - 25561 156,61 - - - -
Other Brancial lighilitiss - - 25270 5270 - . - -
Trade payables - - B3.05 33.05 - - - -

- - 1553524 1055524 - - - -

B. Measurement of falr valnes
Flnzncial tisk managensent
The Company hes expeaure ko the fullowing rigks ariging from Goancial insirments:

A Crodit risk
B. Liquidity tl=k ; and
C. Murket risk
Hisk anagement [eanserork .
TheC'ompany's boerd of direciers hay overail responslililty for the i and dght of tie Company’a risk management framewerk. The Company manapes market sk through 8 treasury deparimant, which
I and iges indepentdent comral aver the entire process of merket risk Tha homsucy d da rigk ij| and policles, whieh sro approved by Board of Divestors. The
of this dey inchade of cash , berrowing earategies, and i ypliance with market cisl; limils and policics.

The Conpany’s sfsk ik ibhshcd to deatify and anelyse the risks Gaced by the Company, o set appropeiate risk Timils and controls 2nd 10 monitor risks and adherence to limits, Rigk mamgemant
potlcles aad Fystots are m\dewed regularly bo reflect changes in market conditione and the Company's activiiics. Tha Company, through iis training and $ards and dures, aims 1o wmai a |
pad consinuctive eontrol enyironmeat in which !l employeos undaetand thar robes and dbligations.

The Board } i diance with il \pany’s fsk poticis and procedures, and revisws the adeuscy of the sk 2 k it velation 10 the risks Ezoed by Ihe

Cmﬂpany leHcam in assited in lts oversight role by fnternal anct, Intemnal audit wadertakes both regular and ad hoo reviews of risk ) ennirels and procedures, 1ha resulm of which are reported to the Board
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consclidated financial staitements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

A. Credit Risk

Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer ot counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contrectugl obligations, and atises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing eredit limits and continiously monitoring the creditworthiness of custemers {o which
the Group grants credit terms in. the normal course of business, The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debis and
impsirment that represents iis estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables, loans and advances and
investnent ( ECL Method). '

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure fo credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, ineluding the defavlt risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also
has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. The carrving amounts of the financial assets represent the maximwn expected credit exposure,

Cash & Cash Equivalents & Current Investments

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of Ra. 702.69 crores as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2622: INR 183.93 crores),
The cash and cash equivalents aud other bank balances are held with banle which are hiphly rated based ot ratings from
external agencies. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents and current investment have low credit risk based
"on external credit ratings of the counterparties. Similarly investment in mutual funds ere in quoted investments which are
highly rated by external credit rating agencies.

Credit risk for receivables pertaining to residential business
The risk for trade receivables pertaining to residential business is considered nil as the possession of the residential
property is transferred only after the receipt of payment from the customer,

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars 31 Mavch 2023 31 March 2022
Unbilled 11.99 -
Past due 0-180 days 44,13 16.47
Past due 181-365 days - 4.03
Past due 366=730 days 0.01 0.63
Past due 731-1095 days . 031
Past due more than 1095 days 0.41 -
56,54 21.44
Movement in Expected Credit Loss on-Loans and Trade Receivable
Particulars M March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance {8.37) {0.36)
Add: Provision recognised (2.50) {8.01)
Closing Balance {10.87) {8.37)
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consalidated finnneial stntements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indiat rupees in crores)

B. Liguidiy risk

Liquidity risk is ¢l risk thet the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far a3
possible, that it will always have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccaptab]e losses prrlsk
to the Group's reputation.

The Group has shiained Fund and non-fund based working capitel lines from various banks. Purthermare, the Group hias access to fueds from eompulsory convertible and non-
convertible debentures from holding Graup and other finaneial {ustitution. The Group also conetantty monitors funding options available in the debt and capltal markets with

a view lo maintaining finanial fexibility.

Exposure tp liguidity visk

The talile below analyses the group's financial abilities into relevant maturity proupings based on their contractual makrities for:

# gll non derivative financial liabilities

* nat and gross settled derivative financial inatnunsate far which the contractual maturitics are essential for the understanding of the timing of the undiscounted cash flovs.

31 March 2023
Non~derivative financtal Tabilitles

Contractual cash Nows

Carrying amount 1 year or less 1% yoars 2-5 years More than 5 yvears
Mon convertible debentures 1.524.37 960.00 625.00 - -
Finiancial Hability for premium payment 699.54 53,97 80.71 155.79 204737
Tteresi- free security deposits from customers 36,85 13.37 - 23.48 -
Lease liabilities 1.15 0.26 026 0.84 0.18
Commercial paper issued 1o nmiual fund - - - - -
Ttade and other paysbles 64.32 g4.32 - - -
Borrowing from Banks and financial institutions 293023 280.16 55130 85042 3,853.53
Other financial liabilitias 276.57 276.57 - “ -
5,533.03 1,598.65 1,25747 1,031.53 550107
31 March 2022
Nonwderivative financlal llabjlities Contractual eash flows
Carrying amowat 1 yoar or Jess 1-2 vears 2-5 years More than 5 years

Non convertible debentures 1,968.24 945.00 400.00 625,00 -
Financial liability for premium payment 692.63 51.29 754 150.22 2,138.21
Bank Overdraf 43.2% 43,29 - - -
Lease Liabilities 1.28 . 025 0.26 (.82 447
Tnterest- free seourity deposits frorn enstomers 25661 116.19 - 140.42 .
Cormereial papar issuad to mutual fond 1,796.83 1,820,00 - -
Trade and other payables 8305 £3.05 - _ .
Botrowing from Banks and financial institutions 5,441,589 440,60 1583 586.01 417945
Other financial liabilities 252,70 252.7¢ - .

10,536.52 375236 713.63 1,502.47 6,318.13

; ) inin E—h e,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency; Indian rupees in crores)
Note 52 (continued)

C. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
prive risk, However, the entity has assessed that the impeact of currency risk and equity price risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instriument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates borrowings
from financial institutions.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars 3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 700,82 80.28
Finaneial Habilities 2,237.28 4,866.99
Variable-rate instraments

Pinancial liabilities 2,091.23 4,912.52

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, and the Group does not have any designate financial liabilities, Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basie points in interest rates at the reporting date wounld have increased /
decreased equity and profit or loss by amounts shown below, This analyses assumes that all other variables, in
particular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at
the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstending as at that date. The period end
balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Asg at '31 March 2023
Variable-rate instraments (PAT and Equity) 26,91 {26.91)
Cash fMow sensltivity (net) 26.91 (26.91)

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments (PAT and Equity) 49.13 (49.13)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 49.13 (49.13)

(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/loss and equity after tax basis)
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Tata Reaity and Infragtructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indizn rupees in crores)

Note 53
Capital Management

The Group’s polizy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
developinent of the business. Tt sets the amount of capitsl required on the basis of annual business and long-tenn operating plans which
include capital and other strategic investments. ’

The funding requirement of the Group are mel from fund and nop-fund based worldag capital lives from various banks, Furthenmore, the
Group has access 1o funds from compulsory convertible and non-convertible debentures from holding Group and other financial institution.
The Group’s policy is & use shori-term and long-tern borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. Certain borrowings from banks
and financial institutions contain a loan covenant and a fistuee breach of covenant may require the Group to repay loans earlier than agreed

pon,

The Grovp monitors capital using & ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to “adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations nnder finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents, Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity other than amounts accurnulated in the hedging reserve.

Asat31 March  As at 31 March

2023 2022
Total borrowings } 4,461.77 9,251.25
Less ¢ Cash and cash equivalents 702,69 183.93
Adjusted net debt 3,759.08 9,067.32
Adjusfed equity 4,271.50 858.13
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio {in times) 0.88 10.57
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated finanelal statements for the yenr ended 31 March 2023
{Crrrency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 54
Tax expense
{a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

31 March 2423 31 March 2022

Current tax expense (Including prior years) IM.66 £.42
Total Current Tax (2) 134,66 642
MAT Credit entitlement of earlier years nritten off - 2098
Deferved Tax Expense 111.99 51,08
Total Deferred Tax (b) 111.99 #1.9%
Tax expense for the yeor 446,65 88,38

(b) Amounis recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year  Tax (expense) WNet of tax For the year Tax (expense) Net of tax
Before tax Before tax
INE INR INR. INR INE INR.

Ttems that will mot be reclassified to profit or boss
Remensurements of the defined benefit plans {0.44) (.02 {0.42) (0.65) .20 {0.45)

. {0.44) 0.02 (0.42) (0.65) .20 {#45)
{¢) Reconciliation of effectlve tax rabe

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit before tax 2,860.44 17129
Domestic Tax Rates 2517% 25.17%
Tax using domestic tax rates 71992 3539
Ty effect of:
Current-year losses and Profit taxabla at differant rates for which no deferred lax asset It recogrised B30.62 41,38
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax logses and utilisation theracn 4249 54,28
Non Deductible Expenses (117.86) -
Capital gains samed on sale of investments classified as FVOC] (325.00) -
Share of profit from Joiot ventures and associates and other adjustments (A8.05) -
MAT Cradit entiflament of esdier years writien off (Refer note below) - 2008
Othsrs : 16.05 (1.86}
Subtotal 273.27 123,77
Total 446.65 88,38
Note:

The Trarant antity of the Group hes decided io exercise the option to be taxed under the section 115BAA of the Income-Tax Ack, 1961 (the Act) with effect from the finanelal year
anded 31 March 2022, Therelora, the MAT credit satiflement of Bs.29,98 crores, accounted in the books of account of parsnt entity will no longer be recoverabls. Aceordingly,
thiz amount has been written off.

Cenerl B Wi dad ™
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Tata Realty and Infrastruciure Limited
MNotes te the ldated fl |nl stats is for the year ended 51 Mnarch 2023
{Cwsrency: ludipn ropess in crores)

Note 54 Tax Txperes [Continued)

A, Deferred Tax Assots

Particulars Adst March, 2023 1isi Moeh, 2002
Defored Tax Astets 64.29 68.00
Deferzed Tax Lisbilitics {37.37) [0.79}
Total - Nel Deforred Tax Assms 27.03 7.,
Movenient for FY 2022.2023

Recogilzed In
Profit or Loes |
Partleulars Opening Balance Rﬁzﬁﬁed feum Cm"}f&’::h': ?“';'“m amn ﬂfy";ﬂ”ﬁi | LessofConal | Closisg Baiance
ved Tax
Liahifiy
Deferved Tax Assets relating to:
Provision For Bnployts Benefits & Others (.02 4.9 48 - - 9.05
Unabsoked Dopreclption carried forwend 64.77 -L.52 - - - 64.25
Property, Flant and Equipment sod Right of Use Asgety 1.07 =Lt - - -
Other Adjustments 112 -L13 - - - -
G8.00 3.4 -0.06 - - 0429
Dederred Tax (Liab¥ities) relating to:
Dreetiied linvesi peation DF C ihle | rod
umwinding thereon - -1B.42 - - - -[342
Finaucial Assety 79 1693 - - - -7
Diben Adjustmouts - -1 14 - - - <14
-0.78 1648 - - - ATLT
Wef Dalpernd Trx Amsiis §7.21 -40.13 0.06 . . 27.03
Movetitent for FY 2021-2022
Recognized in
Profitoc Loss f o lzedd iin Offier - -
Tacticudare Qpening Balanee | Reclassified fam Comprehansive Ineeuse | drectly Eﬂ:q ulty | . Lose of Corired Qlosing Balance
Deferved Tax
Deferred Tax Assels velating is
Provislon for Employea Benefits & Othars - 0.0z - - - X1 e]
Unabsorbed Deprectation carricd forward 118.05 5228 - - - €577

Caury Forward Loests 45.97 -1 - - - -

1Property, Plant and Equipment end Right of Use Assela 13.38 -17.4 - - - Lo7

Ot Adjustments 033 0.59 - - - L3

’ 178,95 -110,9% - - - £5.00
Deferved Tax {Liabititles) relating to:
Thning Differonces in Enterest incoms secoghlton - 07 - - - -0.7%
- -0.7% - - - -7
Ned Defecied Tax Assots 174,05 ~ALL.74 - - - 57,21
B. Deferred Tax Linbilitles

Farileulars JIni March, 2022 3fst March, 2812
Deferred Tax Aesels 26 %3.05
Deferred Tax Lisblitles {322.34} {36740
Tetal - Net Deferrad Tax (TiabUlies) (28108 27437
Movement for Y 122-202]

Reeoguized In
Profit or Loas / .
Partoulore Opontug Balancs | Reclsssited from | oo oo 1° Oler f enized Lusof Coatrol | Closing Dalamce
Deferred Tax Qe ve Income | directty ln Degulty
- Liabillly

Deforred Tax Assets eebating to; X
Provisicn for Employee Benglils & Others .52 .56 0.9 - 0.01 349
Deamed Iny potion of C ihle i and
witwitding teteon - 10.42 - - - 10,43
Carry Forward Losses and Unabsorbed depreviation 084 .11 - . -BLER 16.30
Qtier Adjustments 0.44 0,65 - - - 1.4

93.05 20,78 1.0 - -52.67 .26

Deferrad Tax (Liabilliles) relniing bo:

Fair ¥ ahoatlon of Pimncial ishuments -E89.27 -104 60 -0.01 - - 190,88
Praperty, Plam and Equipment and Right of Use Assets -165.71 -3.50 - - 137.75 -H.46
Other Adjustmenta -12.45 1245 - - - -

-367.42 02,65 -{.01 - 13175 322,34

Net Deferred Tax Diabllitles 2HIT <187 0.08 - 55,08 -281.08

< -
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Movemend for FV 2021-2032

Recogaliedl m
Proflt or Lues /
Paxticutars Opening Balanee | Reclasslfled fiom C:‘mt:dml: ::: ;:;E mr:::;ﬁfl;qﬂl ty Lots of Control Closing Balance
Deferrod Tax
Linbility
Deferred Tax Assets celatlng to:
Provision for Emplayes Benefits & Othes 165 302 q.19 - - 2,82
Carry Porward Losses 9212 128 - - - 39.54
MAT Credit Bnttlemernt 29.98 «29.98 - - - -
Other Adinstnents 5644 <5604 - - - .40
184,18 2132 0.59 - - 93.05
Deferred Tax (Liablliites) relnting to: .
Pair Valuatiott of Pinaneial Inatrumania -17332 -lade a0l - - -18%.27
Propesty, Flant and Equipment and Right of 1sc Assets -301.05 136.25 - - - -165.71
Deemed Invesiments portien of Convertible instruments and
unwinding theveoo <276 0.51 - .00 - -12.23
Other Adinshneats - 19 - - - £0.1%9
-4BR23 121,10 U211} 0,00 - -3T.42
Net Deaferred Tax Liablllibes =204.35 29.78 3,20 1,00 - 37437

Mote; Deferved tax assels have oot been recognised in Tospest of unabsorbed buginess losscs, hocauss it 19 net probatile that folore mpital gains / laxabls profic will be avaltable againel which the reepective entitias
ca wse the benefits (hersfrom. The entity has not recogniscd deferred tax assers on wnvecognised s shown helown

Ag ak 31st March, 2023 Within one yesr | Greater 1han omayaar, | Greaber than five Wo axplry date Cosing balance
Unrecagnised defarred tax assets legs thaw five years years

Business losses 508 433,44 670.98 - 1,105.49]
Unabaarbed depreclation - g - 120,18 120.18/
Capital Loss 1n.1q . 210.13] R 220.23
Total 15.15 433.44 B881.17 120,18 1,449.95/
As at 315t March, 2022 within oneyear | Greater thaneneyear, | Greater than five Mo expiry date Closing belance
Unrgcognised daferrad ax amets less than five years Years
[Business lossss - T025 A58.91 g 829,16
Unabsorbed depreciation g - - 117.35: 117.96
Capital Lass - m.ﬂ 189.42 - 180,52
Totad = 80 1,048.33 117.96| 1,246.63

Reconciliation of Deferved Tax Expense amount recognized in profit or lass and Other Comprehensive Ticome

Particalars Recogrlzed n profit or loas Recopnized i Other Comprebensive Tnconte | Recognlzed direetly I equity
IrseMareh, 2023 3ise Marek, 2022 st March, 2023 3Is¢ Margh 2422 o Meveh, 2023 _ilg Marel, 2022

Deforred Tax Assets (Net)

et ingrens ef {decrease) in Deferred Tax Assets 4013 {11174y {006} - - -

Doferred Tax Linbititles Neth

Net {incieese) /decreass in Deferned Tax Labilithes (7L.37) 19,78 0.08 0.20] - (0.0}

Deferred Tax (Expensé) f Credit {Net} 11,99 18].95:" 202 0.20] - (ﬂ,tlg}j
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the conyolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2623
[Curtency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 55
Disclosure purzuant tc Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits®

(i} The Group has adopted Ind A5 19 on “Employec Benefits™ ag per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 netified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. -

(ii} Contributton to Provident fund
31 March 2023 31 March 2032

Contribution to provident fiund recognised as an expense under "Employee benefits expense”. 281 334
{iif) Defned Benefii Plans
Gratulty

The Group has a defined benefit gtatuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of secvice gets a pratuity on death or
resignation or retirement calenlated aa per the Payiment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with no ceiling.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Change in the defined benefit obligation
Liability at the beginning of tha year 6.52 5.51
Interest Cost 0,42 0.3%
Current Service Coal 1,46 222
Benefit Paid {1.01) {0.97)
Actuarial Loss on obligations 044 (0.65)
Liability {settled on account of loss of control in subsidiary) / acquired o acquisition (0.92) 0.06
Liability at the end of the year 6.61 6.52
I Ameunt Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the year 6.61 6.52
Fair Vahie of Plan Assets g| the end of tha year - -
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet : 6.61 6.52
OI Ixpenses Recognised in the statement of profit and lees and ether comprebonsive income
Cmrent Service Coat 116 2.22
Interest Cost 0.42 B33
Lishility acquired on acquisition / (setfled on Divestiture) - 0.06
Expense Recognised in statement of profit and loss 1.58 263
Net Actuarial Logs to Be Recognizad .44 (0.55)
Txpense Reeognised in statement of other comprehensive income .44 {0.65)
IV Balance Sheet Reconcillation .
Qpening net lability 6.52 551
Expense a3 above 2.02 1.98
Employers confritration (paid) (1.61) {0.97)
Liability (settled on account of loge ol control in subsidiaty) / acquired on accuisition (0.82) -
Amount recognised le Balance Sheet 6,61 652

AT i aa i,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupaes in crores)

(iv} Defined Benefit Plans (Continwed}

Gratulty fContinaned) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
¥V Actuarial Assumptions :
Discount Rate T.25% - 1.45% 6.10% - 7.05%
Salary escalation 4.00% - 8.00% 7.00% - 9.00%
Mortality rates ) 100% of Indian  100% of Indian Assured

Assured Lives Lives Mortality 2012-14
Mortality 2012-14

Atirltlon Rate for year ended 31 March 2023 : Directors - NII, Age 21-30 years - 5%, Age 3140 years - 3%, Age 41-59 years -2%
Attrition Rate for year snded 31 March 2022 : Directors - Nil, Age 21-30 years - 5%, Age 3140 years - 3%;, Age 41-59 years -2%%

Hstimates of future salary increases, considered in actoarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as aupply and demsnd fn the employment tatket,

The Gronp's lisbility on acoowst of gratuity is not funded and hence, the disclosures relating to the planned assets are not epplicable,
As at March 31, 2023, the weighted average dwation of the defined benefit oblipation is 3 years {FY 2022: 4 yeas)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
VI Ezporience Adjustments:
Defined benefit obligation 6,61 6.52
Plat: assets - . -
(Daficit) {6.41) (6.52)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (1.37) (0.65)
Experience adjustraent on plan assets - -
Sensitivity anakysis

The sengitlvity of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, to a change o one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, halding
othet assumpticns constant, would have affected the defined benefit abligation by the smonnts shown belaw:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Dizconnt rate { -+ 0.50% movement) 1.7% -1.7% 2.4% “2.3%
Salary esealation { - 0.30% movemaut) -1.6% 1.7% -2.2% 2.3%
Attrition Rate { -+ 50% movement) 9.4% -6.7% 16.9% 9.9%

(¥) Qther fong term employment benefits
Compensated absences
The lizbitity towards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2023 recognised in the Balance Sheet based on actuarial valuation using

the projected vnit credit method amounted to MR 7.01 crores (2022: IR 7.68 crores) and the charge to the Statement of profit and loss
amounted to INR. 0,88 crores (2022; TN 1.13 crores).
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Curtency: Indian rupess in crores)

Note 56
Related Party Disclosures

Parent Company and Ulthuate Holding Company:
Tata Sons Private Limited

Joint Vanture

TRIL IT4 Private Limited (upto 27 Tuly 2021)

Mikado Realtors Privata Limited

Industrial Mineral and Chetnicals Company Limited

Atrow Infraestate Private Limited (w.ef, 20 May 2022)
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited (w.c.f. 21 May 2022)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited (w.e.f. 21 May 2022}

Infopark Properties Limited (w.e.f. 9 Tuly 2022)

Joint Venture of a Subsidiary

Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited

A & T Road Construction Manegement and Operation Private Limited {upto 28 January 2022)
Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited

Associate:
Tata Housing Development Company Limited
TRIL Constructions Limited (w.e.f, 18 November 2021}

Oilier related parties with whem transactions have taken place during the yeap:

Fellow Subsidiaries:

‘Ewsrt Investments Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
Tata ALA Life Insurance Company Limifed
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited
Infinity Retail Led.

Tata Asset Management Limited

Tatz Housing Development Company Limited (upto 24 March 2021)
Tata Elxsi Lid,

Tata Teleservice (Mabarashire) Limited

Tata Consulting Engineers Ltd

Tata Img Technologies Private Limited

Tata Communications Limited

Tata Unistore Lithised

Infiniti Retail Limited

Synergizers Sustainable Foundation

Other Group Comparles:

Tata Chemicals Limited Agsociate of Parent Company

Titan Company Limited Associate of Parent Company

The Indian Hotels Company Limitad Associate of Parent Company

Voltas Limited Associate of Parent Company

TRIL Infopark Limited (w.ef, 9 July 2022) Subsidiary of Joint Venture ([nfopark Properties Limited)

Promont Hilltop Private Limited Subsidiary of Associates

Key Management Personnel

Sanjay Dutt Managing Director & CEQ

Sanjay Sharma Chief Financial Officer (upto 30 November 2021)

Bhavesh Madeka ’ Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 10 May 2022 upto 31 May 2022)
Aravind Maiva Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f | June 2022 upto 24 April 2023)
Sudhakar Sheatty Company Secretary (upto 31 March 2022)

Rashmi Jain Company Secretary (w.e.f. 1 April 2022)

The Company had a Chief Financial Officer during the year, till 24 April 2023, The Company is in the process of appointing a new Chi
Financial Officer.




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes te the conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indlan nipees in crores)

Related party disclosures {Gontinued)

Related Party Transactions

For year For year
. ended ended
Sr. No. Party Nama Naturs of Transaction %1 March 31 March
2023 2022
1 |Tais Sons Private Limited a} Expansas
{Holding Company) Consultent Fees 0.0& 0.8
Daputallon 0,68 -
b} Cthwr Transactions
Recavery of Expanses * 000 oM
o) Dutstanding Balances Recelvables
tewvards intersst and debl notes and sdvances 0.77 0.3
d) Outstanding Balances Payahle
tomeards oapansos . 008
2 |TRIL IT4 Private Limlted + |a) income
{Subsidiary we f, 28 Juiy 2021} Aeset Managemenl Fees - 0.78
Interest an NCDs - 4.73
Project Managament Consultancy faes - -
b} Expanzes
Relmburgement of expanses - -
@) Dutstarding Balances Recelvables
teroards interest and debit notes and advances - -
3 |Mikado Rsalters Private Limllad a) Income
[Jelnt Vantura) Projecl Management Consultancy fees - .
Aesst Management Fees a1 -
b} Expenaas
Recovery of Expensea 0.28 -
Imvgtrient i Nen Canvertible Deberitures 111.74 -
¢} Outstanding Balances Recaivables
{owards Interest and debit notes end advances 0.03 2.5
4 |Induslilal Minerals and Charricals Cormpany Privals Limited a} Incoma
{Joint Venturs) Preject Managemeanl Consultancy fees 248 -
) Dutstanding Balances Roceivables
Other Revoverable 11.19 -
& [Funa Solapur Exprossweys Private Limited a} Expenses
{Jaint Ventura} Racovary of Expenses Gaz -
d) Cutstanding Balances Payahle
lowards expenees 0.03 -
B Puns IT Clty Matro Rall Limited a) Expenses
(Joint Venture) Success Fess Recelved 24,67 -
Recovary of Expanses 4,18 -
&) Dther Transactlons
Invesimanis in Equity 545,70 14540
b) Expanses
Reimbursemenrt of expenses - 4,68
¢) Qutatamding Balances Receivables
fowarda Inferest and deblt notes and advances 32.28 4.24
d) Outstanding Balancas Fayable
fawards expenges 042 -
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Tata Roalty ard Infrastructurg Limited

MNotes to the lidated f| lal stat 1ta for the yaar ended 21 March 2023

[Cumency: Indlan rupess in crores)
Related party disclosures {Continusd}

Related Party Transactlons

Foryear Far year
ended andad
. Mo. M.
Sr. Mo, Party Name Nature of Teansactlon 31 Wareh 3 Harch
2023 2022
7 |Arow Imraestate Privale Limlted &} Income
{Joint Ventura w.e.f 21 May 2022) Aaset Menagement fees 059 -
Interest on OCO * 0.00 -
Rant 0.g1 -
b) Expensea
FRent sxpensaes 024 -
¢y Other Transactions
Recovery of Expanszes * pa] -
Radempion of Orplonally Corvertible Debenture { OCDs) 18.64 -
Serles A Compulaory Cenvertible Debenture { Series B 0Ds) .51 -
d} Cutstardlng Balances Recelvables
Security Deposit Payable 0.07 -
Rent Recaivabls 810 -
o) Qutstanding Ralances Payable
Rent 0.7 -
Seourity Deposit Payable &3 “
8 |Gurgaon Constructwel] Private Limited a) Income
(el Venture w.ef 21 May 2022) Interest Income on OCDs * 0.0 -
<} Odher Transactions
Recovery of Expenges 0. -
Redemption of Optionally Convertible Usbenture { OC0s) 48.81 -
Saries B Compulsory Sonverlible Dabenture { Serles B GCDs) 24.89 -
Devaloprent Management Fees AL -
Sele of Land 0.3¢ -
8  |[Gurgson Realach Limited a) Income
{roint Vanture w.ef 21 May 2022) Asset Management feas 1.30 -
{imarast on OCD ™ a.no -
Rent 0.19 -
b} Expanees
Offlce, comman area malnterdncs charges 2.05 -
¢) Other Transactlons
Recovery of Expenses 0.48 -
Series B Cornpulsary Cunvertible Debentura { Series B CCDE) 1018 -
Reemplion of Cpticnally Convertile Debenture { 0008 19.92 -
d} Outstanding Balances Receivablas
Other Recoverable 0.04 -
Trade Recaivabla a.02 -
Sacurity Deposl 0.1 -
&) Dutatanding Palances Payable
Trads Payabla o.m -
Securlty Deposl 0.06 -
10 |Infopar Properes Limited a) Income
[Joint Venture wa f 3 July 2022} Interest on 1C0 * 0T .
b} Other Trangacticns
NCD lzaued 708,50 -
a) Outstariing Balances Receivables
Inter Comarale Deposlt - Gurrant - Unsecurgd 2,25 -
Interesl Accnsed but not dus ™~ 0.18 -
WCD 708.50 -
11 |TRIL Infapark Limfted a} Incame
[Joint Ventura w.e f8 July 2022}) Preject Management Consultancy fass
Aszet Mansgement fees 11.78 -
Income from Manpower Cansullaney 318 -
+) Other Traneaciions
Recovery of Expenses 2.68 -
Expenses incurred on hehalf of comparty by related party o7 -
¢y Outstanding Balances Payable
Trads payabls o.08 -

¢} Outstanding Baelances Receivablas
Trade Receivabla




Tata Realiy and Infrestructure Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statemants for the year snded 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Relatad party disclosures (Gontinuedd)

Relatad Farly Transactions
Far year For year
nded andax
&r. No, 2
r. Mo, Party Naime Mature of Transactlon 31 March T March
2023 2022
12 {Promant Hillfop Private Limited B} Expensas
[subsidlary of Assoclates) Iniprest on ICDs 0.2¢ .
b] Other Transactions
Intar Corporate Depasit taken £.00 -
¢} Outstanding Balances Payable
Intar Corparats Deposlt - Currant - Unsecured 6.00 -
Intzrest Accrued but not due 0.24 -
13 |Tata Housing Development Sompany Limiled a) Income
(Aszoclates) Rent Ingame el 1.07
b) Expenzes
Relmbursement of expanses - 497
Interest expenses on unagcured loang - 9.82
¢} Cther Transactions
Renovery of Expenaes 745 2.68
Unsecured loan rapafd - 20.00
Invesimants in Egulty £00.00 00.00
Dapoeil - 0.08
d) Qutstanciing Balances Roceivables
towards Infereat and deblt notes and advances 0.53 027
Trade Recelvable B 0.3
@} Cutstanding Balances Payable
towards advances/Daposit rom customers - 0.37
tawards expensas - .84
14 | TRIL Conslructions Limited a] Ingoma
{Agsoctate) interest an 1D - 1149
by Other Transactlons
Inter Corporate Deposils glvan - 0.26
Irler Corporate Deposils rafnd recalved - 18.38
¢} Duistanding Balances Recelvablas
Cther Recoverable 2.04 204
15 |Infimity Retzil Limited a) Other Transactlons
(Fefiow Subafdlary) Purchass of property, plant and equipment G068 0.03
b} Qutstanding Balences Payahla
Trade Payable 0.0 -
16 |Ewarl Invastments Limited a) Bxpenses
{Fellaw Subsldiary) Reimburssmant of expensas 1.44 om
b} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expanses - 1.42
&) Quistanding Balances Recaivables
Heweards depasits placed 2.40 2.40
17 |Tata AlA Life Insurancs Cornpany Limited a) Qthar Transactions
(Fellow Bubaldlary) Recovary of Expensas 018 040
18 | Tata AIG General [nsurance Limited a) Income
(Fellow Subsidlary) Rent Income 373 3.82
Claim Received Q.05 -
b) Expensea
Insurance cost 578 0.03
¢) Dther Transactions
Recovery of Expenaes - 238
d) Quistanding Balances Recaivables
fowards deposits plaved 258 0.03
Trade Recelvable .16 [ili]

£

O, \(.-(} N
& W il s, :
. Ydmg
1E Farkd,

Couzgasn thaty,
i - 400 ﬂﬁl!/.




Tata Realty and Infragtructurs Limited

Notes to the consolidated flianclal statomants for the year endaed 31 March 2023
{Curreney: Indian rupees In crores)

Related party dieclosures (Continued)

Relatad Party Transactlons

For year For year
. endad andad
ST, No, Party Narme Naturs of Travmaction 31 March 31 March
2023 2022
18  [Tata Communications Limited a} [ncome
{Fallow Subaldiary) Rant Incame 0.56 040
b) Cther Transactions
Recavery of Expenses 018 0.26
¢) Gutetandlng Balances Raceivaliles
Trade Recelvable 0.08 .02
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses 005 o.M
20 |Tata Gonsultancy Services Limited a) Income
{Fellow Subsidiary) Rent Income 48,35 74.77
b} Ofher Transactions
Purchase of property, plant and equlpment - 005
Recavary of Expenses 447 575
¢} Dutstardling Balances Racelvables
Trade Recelvabls - 578
towvards deposits placed ' . 2040
d} Outstanding Balances Payable
towards sdvancas from customers 20.80 2583
towrards sxpenses 0.27 1))
21 |Tata Consulting Enginesrs Limitad a) Other Transactions
{Fellaw Subaldlary] Recovery of Expenges - 212
22 |Tata Teleservives Maharashira Limitsd &) Other Transsctions
{Fellaw Subsidiary) Regovery of Expenses 018 Qv
b} Outstanding Balances Payabl
tovards axpenses - .01
23 |Tata Capilal Financlal Services Limitad a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Term loan Intarest 0.62 -
b) Other Trensactions
Term Lean Taken 85,00 -
Term Loan repald 95.00 -
24 | THan Comparyy Limited a) Expansas
{Fellow Subsidiary) Gift Waucher G.20 -
lcan Interest Paid 0.87 -
h) Other Transactlons
1CD Taken 12000 -
1CD repaid 120.00 -
b Quistanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable o.02 -
25 |Veltas LimHad a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Rent . 2.48 -
b) Cutstanding Balances Raceivables
Sacurily Deposit ©.53 -
26 |The Indlan Hotels Campany Umlted d) Expenses
[Fallow Subsidiary) Sarvioa Expenses 0.45 -
27 {TATA 1MG Hesltheare Solutions Pl Ltd a) Expansgs
(Fellow Subaldiary) Health Plan Subscription 002 -
28 |Tata Chamicals Limltsd ) Expanses
(Fellow Bubaldiary Recovery of Exgenasa * 0.80 -
28 |{Tata Unistore Limited ) Expanses
(Fallew Subsidiary) Gift wounther * 0.0 -
30 | TATA Teleservicas Limitod a) Other Transaclions
Recovery of Expenass 0.25 -
k) Outstanding Balances Payable
iy
s toweards expenses 0.0 -
- 1dms e \
A ] i . .
HED IipmMp‘r;lgl.gﬁj Is‘;fil“'éahr% Managerial remuneration 18,74 12,29
3‘ N L G iza

o ool Mg
# Remunefﬁtloﬂﬂo WP doi not'undude prowisiona for encasheble leave, gratulty and premium pald for group heaklh Insurence, a3 separate acturial valuation / premium pald
s ,.Nsp recwery of managerlal ramuneration fram group compsnles is nof netled off far this disclosure,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructare Limited

Notes to the consolidated lnanelal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Cunency: Indian mpees in erores)
Nofe 57

Additionat information pursnsnt t paragraph 12,3 of Division 11 of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 *General instructions for fhe preparation of consolidated finenoial

statements’ of Division I of Schedule I

PartA
Blerch 2023
Net Assets Share In profit or loss Share In other comprahenshve | Share In totel comprehensive
[Totnl Assuts - Total Liabilities] incame Incoma
ama ofthe endity Asa % of Amount Az % of Amount Asp %of Amowst A5 3 % of roral Amount
consafidated net conselidated consolidated cther comprehenslve
assals profitor loss comprehensive Bcome

Parant

Tata Realty and infrastructure Lmited 52.38% 5.823.59 27.95% (148.17} 87.94% 107827 152.46% 927.10
Subskliaries

Indlan

Actre Lving Solutlons Privata Limitad 0.00% [0.08] 00008 - 0.00% - Q.00% -
TRIL Fioade Private Lirited 517% £74.85 4. 569 [23.87} 12.16% 14835 17.79% 124,53
TRIF Surgaan HousIng Projects Privete Limited 0.00% {a.nd) 0.008 - 0.00% - 0L0% -
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limitad €.55% 728,61 0.76% {3.98} -0.08% {1.05) O.78% {5.04)
Wallkept Facillty Managament Servicas Private Limitad 0,06% [C.02) 0.00% - 000% - 000% -
Hempl Expressway Private Limited 1.30% 15491 9.73% [50.28) 0.00% a1 Brivr ] {50.87)
HY Farms Private Uimitad ©0,10% 10.60 D.OL% {0.03) 0.00% - 0.00% {0.03)
Intermational infrabulld Private Limited 0,05% 573 D03 018 0.00% . 0.03% 018
Dharamshala Ropaway Limited 0.06% .30 184% (9‘\"3‘0# -0.01% {045) =L.38% {9.76)
Uchtt Expressways Privabe Limited 1.12% 134.26 6.35% (83.42] 0.00% 002 -4,77% (33.90)
Durg Shivhath Exprassways Put Ll 178% 19784 5.05% 4735 0.008 {0.02) &.76% 4733
{ntatheran Ropeway Put Ltd 0.23% 24,25 -0,05% 018 a.00% - 003% 018
TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate One Privake Limlted 0.00% 041 0,00% {o.0q) 0.00% - 0.00% {0.00)
TRIL Bergaluru Consultants Privata Limited 0.00% 004 0.00%% 0,02 0.00% 002 Q01% Q.04
TRIL Bengaluru Resl Estate Thrae Private Limited 0.00% [@.01) 0.00%% .00} Q.00% - 2.00% {0.00)
THIL IT4 Private timitad 3.83% 435,74 SAz AL 0.00% 040 7.09% AD.60
LA thfrastructure Prvate Limited Q.00% [a:38) 0.01% foas) Q.0 - 0.01% {0.ns)
 Nlon-controlling interests 0.00% (.48} 047% {2.48) ,00% - 0.00% -
Jolnt Vantures and Ascociate jinvestment as par equity mathod)

Indfan

Pune Solapur Expressways Privata Limited 0.53% £8,27 £.41% 2832 0.00% - A05% 2532
TRIE Constructions Limited 0.33% A6.42 0% (@13} 0.00% - -0.02% f0.a3)
Mikado Realtars Pyt, Ld. 1.37% 15268 1037%  [54.23) 0.00% . 275%  (54.23)
Industial Minerals and Chemicals Company Prvate Limlted 1.96% 21813 0.13% {0.58) 0.00% - -0,10% (O,EBﬁ
Fune IT £ty Metra Rail Limited 7.21% Bol63 5.53% (2851} 0.00% - -4.13% {2881}
Toim Houstng Developiment Company Limited 1169% 129940 30243 {161.20} O00% - -23.05% {161,304
Arrow Infraestate Privats Limited {w.a.f, 20 May 2022) 0.23% 25,60 0.8 {d.19} Q.00% - 0.60% {419},
Gurgaon Resltech Limltad {w.e.f 20 Way 2022) 0.58% 64,08 0,51% (2E7) 0,00% .- -0.58% {2.67)
Gungaah Constructwell Private Umbted (w.e.f. 20 May 2022) 067% T4.75 0.63% {3.28) 0.00% - £.47% {3.28)
Infopark Properties Limited fw.e.F. 2 July 2022) 279% 309.81 23.48% {12281} 0.00% . -17.55%  (122.83}
Total 100.00%  11,116.33 100.00% 523,05 100002 122048 100004 699,51
Ad) 1ts anising out of Ndatlon {6,845.83) 2,939,352 {1,22040) 1,715.94
Cormsolidated Net Assets / Comprehensive Income 4,273.50 2,416.27 1042 241585
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Tata Realty and Infrastructnre Limited

MNates ta (he fow the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency? ndian rpees i crores)
Nota 58
[&1 Captial work-An-progrees (CWIF) agelng pontysls
Bartloulnr Asnt 31 March 2023
Lesstbanl { 1-2¥ears | 3-3¥ore | Maoroiliend Toial
year Years
Praledt in Progress - - - .63 1.63
Projevt Tatporazily suspended - . - - .
Pardeulors Azat 3 Mopeh 2022
Lessthand | 1-2¥enrs | 223%enw | Morcthan3 Totl
b <l ¥eara
Project in Progress 062 - - pLx) 1.5
Projact Tenporarily anspended - - - - -
Notas Therg is no malerdal project wings completion ia overcue o hes excoedad e costs eompared to s orgina] plan. ’
[B] Toveshuent Eroperty Under Comstrretlon {CWIES ngelng noalysls
Farticulars Agar 3L hergh 2023
) Leasthan 1 | 1-2Vears | 2-3 Voors | Moreiand Tatel
Fear Years
Project in Progress - 0.09 v 014 0.23
oot Tempararily suspended : - . - . .
Particulars Asnp 31 Mareh 2023
Lasithenl | 1-2Vears | 2-3Vears | Marcthan 3 Total
Yy Yaory
Project in Progress ngs - D4 - . 0.23
Projec! Temporerily suspended - - - - .
Mote: There 55 o matsrial project whose leticm i overdoe o has ded ilg oosts ? to itn original plam,
Notc 59
gible nsscts under lop ngeing mualysly
Fartienlars Aa ot 31 March 2823
Lemtinnl | 1-2Veers | 2-2Veers | More thon 3 Toizl
_ YECAr Noary
Profect in Prosress 0.4y - 700 - 7.59
Profest Tengrorarily suspeslsd - - - - -
Parileudary Adt 51 Maceh 3022
Logs thasel | E-%Yomes | 2-3Years | Morethuod Total
year Yeary
Project dn Progress - 7.00 - - 7.0
Projenl Temporacily sspended - - - - -
Woie 50
‘Trade Rereivabte pgeing fabdyyis (fvom the due date of paymenty
Farteulzrs Az ar 3 Marck 2423 Tl .
Trabillcd Tesstmé | 6montla-1 | 1-XYeara | 2-3Years | Dloex than3
manihs yenr Xiars
(i) Undipated - Constdered good 1195 4413 - [T - 041 5634
(i Undispoted - Credit impelred - 0.34 s - - 233 3.458
(i} Digputed - Considered good - - - - - - -
(v} Disputed - Credlt impaired - - - - - 203 243
Partkulan Ap ot 31 Tarch 2022 Towl
Unkillled Lessiond | €saonths-1 | 1-2%ears | 2-3%oms | Morothen 3
monthy Fear Yems
(i Undispyted - Considesed good - 1647 4408 .61 0.51 - 2144
(idy Undisputed - Credit impaired - - - - - - .
[iily Drisgrubed - Commsidernd good - - - - - - -
1lie) Diisputed - Credit impraived - . - 0.7 439 199 308 6.2¢
Node 61
Trade Payalle ageing analysis (enm e duc date of payment)
Porilevlngs Asar3E Mareh 2023
Unbllled Lesstbow 1 | 1-2Yews | 2-3 Yomrs | Morethen3 Total
vegr Nomrg
) MEME 0.33 0.2t - 0.01 B 055
i} Others 45.73 16.53 063 0.26 54 6170
{iii} Disputed deey - WSME - - - - - -
!f\.'! D'ﬂul&‘l chies - Others - - - - .08 .48
Agsat 31 Marek 2022
Unbilled Lessikanl | 1-2Yesrs [ 2-3 Years | Morethan 3 Total
yem Years
- .32 0.0 - - 034
- T7.03 4402 0uetf] 112 82.63
- - - - .08 008
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Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited

Motes €0 the consoldated Tanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Cursency: fndian rupees in arors)

Note 65
Cther Stawétory Information
(1) Mo caunpany i e Group has aby Beaami property, where any proceeding has been initisted of pending agninst them for liolding any Benami praperty,

(i) Mo company in the Croup has any fransactions with companies stack off.
(ifi} No campany fn the Group has ey charges or satisfaction which is yut to be registered wilh Ragistrar of Companiss (ROCT beyand the statatary parlod,

(iv} No campany in the Group has traded or inveated in Crypro euaency or Virual ¢ v during the finsmcial year.

{¥) The Guonp bas ot bear declared a wilful defandler by any bank of financial lnstltuition.or any othwer lander,

{vi} Tha Group ie in compliance with (e aomber of layers presoribed under slivse (37) of Sectlon 2 of the Compeay Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Resfrichion on
tmmber of layers) Rules, 2008 (a5 ameuded).

a I

{viF) No company in the (roup ms any sueh trarsaction whicl: is not recorded in the bpoks of accounly that bes been sur or diselosed a1 i during the year
in (he lax assessiments under the hicome Tax Act, 1961 (sush s, search or susvay or any other relevant provisions of the Ineome Tax Aol, 1961}

For BSR & Co. LLP For ant o bahall of the Board of Birectors of

Chartered Aceountanis Tata Realty and [afrastructura Limiled

Firm’s Registration MNeo.: 101 248WrAa100022 CIN: UTQ102MH2007 FLC 168300

: 4
: AN A o e

Faclad Bamji Banmali Agehiyrala Bunjay Dutr

Tartmer Choinnen Manaping Direclor

VI T 105’2_.;4.\ DIN - 00120029 PIN - H5281670
Ras ]
Compiny Secratary
Membership Mo: ACS15975%

Mutabal Mumbaj

Dated: 23 May, 2023 Dated: 2§ May, 2023
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TATA

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited will be held on Friday, July 21, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. (IST)
at shorter notice through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means to transact the
following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN:00120029) as Director of the Company,
who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Special Business:
3. To approve alteration of Articles of Association of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 14 of the Companies Act,
2013 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to approvals,
permissions and sanctions from the appropriate authority, if any, approval of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to insert the following article in existing set of
Articles of Association of the Company:

"Article 91(a) -

If it is provided by any Trust Deed securing or otherwise, in connection with any
issue of debentures of the Company or as provided under any regulation(s) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Board of Directors of the Company shall
appoint the person nominated by the Debenture Trustee(s) in terms of clause (e) of

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 email id — trilsec(@tatarealty.in
Website: www.tatarealty.in
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TATA

sub regulation (1) of regulation 15 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (as amended from time to time) as a
Nominee Director of the Company at the earliest from the date of receipt of
nomination from the Debenture Trustee and within the time period as specified
under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 and other applicable provisions or regulations and
modifications, including any amendments thereto.

A Nominee Director may be removed from office at any time by the person or
persons in whom for the time being is vested the power under which he/she was
appointed and another Director may be appointed in his/her place. The Nominee
Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation nor required to hold any qualification
shares.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
take all the requisite, incidental, consequential steps to implement the above
resolution and to perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its
absolute discretion, deem necessary, any question, query, or doubt that may arise in
this regard, and to execute/publish all such notices, deeds, agreements, papers and
writings as may be necessary and required for giving effect to this resolution.”

. To approve Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement
Basis:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of Resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Members held on September 14, 2022 and pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 23, 42 and 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) (‘Act’) and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014, both as
amended from time to time, and subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules,
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India ('SEBI'), as amended, including the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended, the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, if applicable and the
enabling provisions of the listing agreements entered / to be entered into with the
Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company be listed (the 'Stock
Exchanges'), and subject to the applicable Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars
and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI'), the Memorandum of
Association and the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to such
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approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be required from the
Government of India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or statutory
authority as may be required (the 'Appropriate Authority') and subject to such
conditions and/or maodifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate
Authority while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, which
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to
as the 'Board'" which term shall be deemed to include any Committee(s)
constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including the
powers conferred by this Resolution), subject to the total borrowings of the
Company not exceeding the borrowing powers approved by the Members from time
to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors for making offer(s) or invitations
to subscribe to rated, redeemable, cumulative/non-cumulative, listed/unlisted Non-
Convertible Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter collectively referred as NCDs) up to an
amount of Rs.6,000 Crore (Rupees Six Thousand Crore only) on private placement
basis to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks, financial institutions
and any other categories of investors (eligible investors) permitted to invest in the
NCDs under applicable laws, in one or more series/tranches, during a period of one
year from the date of passing of this Resolution on such terms and conditions as the
Board or any Committee authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the
Board, may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial
to the Company including as to when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for
the issue, utilization of issue proceeds and all matters connected with or incidental
thereto and that the said borrowing is within the overall borrowing limits of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the
Board be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the
terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued,
time, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate,
premium/discount, listing (in India or overseas) and do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable
and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowings
aforesaid and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper,
desirable or expedient."
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5. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration up to Rs. 1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh
Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 00294), who are appointed by Board as
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company,
for the financial year 2023-24.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and hereby authorised to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

di

Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 5, 2020 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting
(AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” read
with General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/
2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No.39/2020 dated December 31, 2020,
General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular No. 2/2022
dated May 05, 2022 and 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 in relation to
“Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder” (collectively referred to as
“"MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“"AGM")
through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and
MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on Friday,
July 21, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. (IST). The deemed venue for the 16" AGM will be the
registered office of the Company E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT
TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF
PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH.
ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS THE FACILITY FOR
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE
FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE
NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4, Corporate members intending to attend through their authorised representative, to
attend the AGM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) a certified
copy of its Board or governing body Resolution / Authorization to the Company,
authorising them to attend and vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the AGM.

5. As per the provisions of Clause 3.B.IV. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated
May 5, 2020, the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item No. 3, 4 and 5 of
the accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence,
forming part of this Notice.
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The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material
facts concerning the business under Item No. 3, 4 and 5 of the Notice is annexed
hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director
seeking re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed.

The Company shall provide the required link to attend the 16* AGM of the Company
at their registered email address / at the email address of the authorized
representative, as the case may be, before the meeting, which would facilitate the
Members/Authorized Representatives, as the case may be, to attend the AGM via VC
or OAVM. In case, any Members/Authorized Representatives, as the case may be,
need any assistance with using the technology, can contact the Company at
following email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in or call during the business hours at 022
6661 4444.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 15
minutes after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by clicking
on the invitation link which has been provided separately while circulation of notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23, is being sent by electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal
address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination,
power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the
shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at www.kfintech.com in case
the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have
not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting
Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a
fresh nomination, he may submit the same in Form SH-14. Members are requested
to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and
to the RTA at www.kfintech.com in case the shares are held in physical form,
quoting your folio no.
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The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act
requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to record
additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank
details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to submit the filled in form to the Company at the registered office or to
the Registrar in physical mode, or in electronic mode at www.kfintech.com, as per
instructions mentioned in the form. Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to submit the details to their respective DP only and not to the Company
or RTA.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email
addresses are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants
("DPs").

Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can
send an email to_trilsec@tatarealty.in the conclusion of the Meeting. The Members
who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the
same at the meeting or send them in advance (mentioning their name and folio
no./DP ID and Client ID), prior to the date of the AGM by email at
trilsec@tatarealty.in .

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements
in which Directors are interested, if any maintained under Section 189 of the Act will
be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. Members
who wish to inspect the same can send an email to trilsec@tatarealty.in up to the
conclusion of the Meeting.

Since the Company is not required to conduct e-voting, the voting at the meeting
shall be conducted through show of hands, unless demand for a poll is made by any
member in accordance with Section 109 of the Act. In case of a poll on any
resolution at the AGM, members are requested to convey their vote at the following
designated Email ID — trilsec@tatarealty.in.
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17. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this
Notice.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory
statement set out all material facts to the business mentioned under following Items of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 2:

The brief profile of Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029) in terms of Secretarial Standard-
2 on General Meetings (S5-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is
provided in Annexure A.

Item No. 3:

As per SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations,
2023 (“SEBI NCS Regulations”), the Debenture Trustee has been empowered to nominate
any person(s) as Nominee Director on the Board of the company. Further, the company
shall ensure that its Articles of Association require its Board of Directors to appoint the
person nominated by the debenture trustee(s) in terms of clause (e) of sub regulation (1) of
regulation 15 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees)
Regulations, 1993 as a director on its Board of Directors.

Accordingly, as per SEBI NCS Regulations, the Company shall amend its Articles of
Association to comply with this provision, on or before September 30, 2023.

As the existing provision of Articles of Association does not meet the aforesaid requirement
of SEBI NCS Regulations, the Company is required to make suitable changes to the existing
provisions of Articles of Association by inserting the new Article 91a as mentioned in
resolution to comply with SEBI NCS Regulations.

Hence, it is required to modify Articles of Association of the Company to reflect the new
Article 91a, for which approval of members is required under the provisions of Section 14 of
the Act.

Drafts of altered Articles of Association are available for inspection at the Registered Office
of the Company during the office hours on all working days till the date of AGM.

The Directors recommend the resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of
the Members of the Company by way of a special resolution.
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their respective
relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set
out in this Notice.

Item No. 4:

To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time
issued NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

In order to augment long term resources for financing, /nter alia, refinancing of the existing
debt, ongoing working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the
Company may require further offering or inviting or subscription, from time to time, in one
or more tranches and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-
cumulative, listed or unlisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not
limited to bonds and/or other debt securities, denominated in Indian rupees (‘NCDs') on
private placement basis. The pricing for any instrument which may be issued by the
Company on the basis of the Resolution set out at the Notice will be done by the Board
(which term includes a duly constituted Committee of the Board of Directors) in accordance
with applicable laws, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Non Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 and other Regulations, as may be
applicable.

The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'), provide that a
Company shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of
securities or invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the
Members of the Company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the
PAS Rules provides that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private
placement basis, the Company can obtain prior approval by means of a Special Resolution
once a year for all offers or invitations for such NCDs during the year. Further, fourth
proviso to Rule 14(1) of PAS Rules provides that in case of offer or invitation of any
securities to qualified institutional buyers, it shall be sufficient if the company passes a
previous special resolution only in a year for all the allotments to such buyers during the
year.

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are
as follows:
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Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board
Resolution:

The Board resolution passed on July 21, 2023, for the issuance of NCDs and on a
private placement basis up to limit of up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from
time to time.

Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the
offer or invitation is being made:
As may be determined by the Board from time to time.

Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:
Not Applicable '

Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:
Up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule,
purpases or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or
directors either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects;
principal terms of assets charged as securities:

As may be determined by the Board, from time to time

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to Rs. 6,000 Crore
vide its resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on September 14,
2022. To streamline and for better operational convenience, it is proposed to seek
approval of members at every Annual General Meeting. The Board at its meeting
held on July 21, 2023, subject to the approval of members of the Company, had
approved the issuance of NCDs on a private placement basis, amounting to Rs.
6,000 Crore. This was within the overall borrowing limit of Rs. 6,000 Crore, pursuant
to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of
Rs.6,000 Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the
manner as set in this Notice.

The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the
approval of the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their
respective relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the Resolution set out in this Notice.

Item No. 5:

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on May 25, 2023,
approved the remuneration of M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 00294), as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost records of the
Company for the financial year 2023-24 at a remuneration not exceeding
Rs.1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes
and out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is
being sought from the members as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice
for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors and the key managerial personnel(s) or their relatives is
deemed to be concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Y
\’J&E’/
Rashimi Jain
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A18978

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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Annexure A

Information pursuant to the Secretarial Standards in respect of Re-appointment

of the Director:

Particulars Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029)

Designation Non-Executive Chairman

Age 60 years

Qualification Mr. Agrawala is a Mechanical Engineering graduate from
Mangalore University and an alumnus of the Advanced
Management Programme of Harvard Business School.

Experience Mr. Banmali Agrawala is the President, Infrastructure and Defence

& Aerospace, Tata Sons Private Limited. In his earlier role, he was
President and CEO of GE, South Asia, where he was responsible
for all of GE’s operations in the South Asia region. Prior to GE, he
was Executive Director (BD & Strategy) and a member of the
Board of Tata Power.
A veteran in the Energy domain, Banmali has over 30 years of
global experience. He started his career with the Wartsila Group
where he spent over 20 years, both in India and in Finland. At the
time of leaving the Wartsila Group, he was the Managing Director
of Wartsila India Ltd, the Global head of the Bio Power Industries
and a member of the Global Power Plant Management Board.

Terms and Conditions
of Re-Appointment

To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration NIL Remuneration (Sitting fees would be payable to Mr. Agrawala for
(Proposed) attending the Meetings of the Company)

Remuneration Rs.2,00,000/-as sitting fees for attending the Board/Committee
(Drawn) meetings during FY 2022-23

Date of First
Appointment

March 24, 2018

Shareholding in the

Company

NIL
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Relationship with | None
other Directors

| Number of Meetings | 7 out of 7
of the Board Attended
during the year

Other Directorships/ | Directorship:
Chairman/Membership
in committees of the 1. Tata Housing Development Company Limited
Board 2. Tata Electronics Private Limited

3. Tata Medical and Diagnostics Limited

4, Tata Advanced Systems Limited

Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the Board:

Sr. Name of the Name of Chairman/
No. Company Committee Member
1 Tata Housing 1) Nomination & 1) Member
Development Remuneration 2) Chairman
Company Limited Committee
2) Securities
Allotment
_ Committee
2 Tata Advanced 1) Audit Committee | 1) Chairman
Systems Limited 2) Nomination & 2) Chairman
Remuneration
_ Committee
3 Tata Electronics 1) Treasury 1) Member
Private Limited Committee
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300 By order of the Board
Place: Mumbai For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Date: July 21, 2023
Registered Office:

Ll
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam MX P

Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 Rashmi Jain
Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)




